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GREAT-WEST
INC.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
{in § millions except per share amounts)
For the three months For the twelve months
onded December 31 ended Decomber 31
2006 2005 % Change 2008 2005 % Change
Premiums;
Life insurance, guaranteed annuities $ 6253 $ 4528 38% $ 18,724 $ 16,058 17%
and insured health products
Self-funded premium equivalents (ASO contracts) 1,849 1.850 - 7,386 7.635 -2%
Segregated funds deposits:
Individual products 2,415 1,861 30% 8,420 6,254 35%
Group products 1,399 1,268 10% 5,240 5,040 4%
Total premiums and deposits 11,91€ 9,507 25% 39,770 34,887 14%
Fee and other income 706 616 15% 2,688 2,424 11%
Paid or credited to policyholders 6,677 4,888 37% 20,608 17,435 18%
Net income - commen shareholders before adjustments (1) 491 469 5% 1,875 1,802 4%
Adjustments after tax (1) . 13 - - 60 .
Net income - common shareholders 491 456 8% 1,875 1,742 8%
Per common gshare
Basic eamings before adjustments (1) $ 0650 $ 0526 5% $ 2104 $ 2022 4%
Adjustments after tax (1 - 0.014 - - 0.067 -
Basic eamnings after adjustments 0.550 0.512 7% 2.104 1.955 8%
Dividends paid 0.240 0210 14% 0.9275 0.810 15%
Beok value 11.24 9.76 15%
Returmn on commeon shareholders’ equity (12 months):
Net income before adjustments (1) 20.1% 20.9%
Net income 20.1% 20.7%
At Decomber 31
Tolal assels $ 120,463 $ 102,161 18%
Segregated funds net assets 90,148 75,158 20%
Total assets under administration $ 210,609 § 177,319 19%
Share capital and surplus $ 11114 5 8489 17%

(1) Netincome, basic eamings per common share and retum on common shareholders’ equity are presented before the following adjustments
as a non-GAAP financial measure of eamings performance:

a) Following the acquisition of Canada Life Financial Corporation {CLFC) by the Company, a plan was developed to restructure and exit
selected operations of CLFC. Shareholder net incomne for the year ended December 31, 2005 includes restructuring costs related to
the acquisition of $17 after tax, or $0.019 per common share.

b}  Fourth quarter 2005 results include a charge of $13 after tax, or $0.014 per common share, related to a provision for expected losses
arising from hurricane damage in 2005. 2005 results include a charge of $43 afler tax, or $0.048 per common share, related to a
provision for expected losses arising from hurricane damage in 2005.
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS

(in § millions except per share amounts)

Income
Premium income
Net investment income (note 3)
Fee and other income

Benefits and expenses
Paid or credited to policyholders and beneficiaries
including policyholder dividends and experience refunds
Commissions
Operating expenses
Premium taxes
Financing charges (note 8)
Amortization of finite life intangible assets
Restructuring costs (note 2)

Net income before income taxes

- current
- future

Income taxes

Net income before non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests (note 12)

Net income - shareholders

Perpetual preferred share dividends

Net income - common shareholders

Earnings per common share (note 16)
Basic

Diluted

For the years ended

December 31
2006 2005

$ 18,724 5% 16,058
5,910 5,389
2,688 2,424
27,322 23,871
20,508 17,435
1,401 1,284
2,230 2,198
259 238
202 187
18 18
- 22
2,704 2,489
550 476
65 125
2,089 1,888
162 113
1,927 1,775
52 33
$ 1,875 % 1,742
$ 2104 § 1.955
$ 2089 § 1.839
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INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{in $ millions)

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005
Assets
Bonds (note 3} $ 65,246 3 59,298
Mortgage loans {note 3) 15,334 14,605
Stocks (note 3) 4,766 4,028
Real estate (note 3} 2,216 1,842
Loans to policyholders 6,776 6,646
Cash and cash equivalents 3,083 2,961
Funds held by ceding insurers 12,3711 2,556
Goodwill (note 5) 5,444 5323
Intangible assets {note 5) 1,575 1457
QOther assets (note 6) 3,652 3,445
Total assets $ 120,463 3 102,161
Liabilitles
Policy liabilities
' Actuarial liabilities (note 7) $ 89,363 $ 71,263
Pravision for claims 1,266 999
Provision for policyholder dividends 568 535
Provision for experience rating refunds 452 401
Policyholder funds 2,202 2,088
93,851 75,286
Debentures and other debt instruments (note 9) 1,980 1,903
Funds held under reinsurance contracts 1,822 4221
Other liabilities (note 10) 4,229 4,099
Repurchase agreements 987 1,023
Deferred net realized gains (note 3) 2,821 2,598
105,700 89,130
Preferred shares (note 13) 756 787
Capital trust securities and debentures (note 11) 648 648
Non-controlling interests (note 12)
Participating account surplus in subsidiaries 1,884 1,741
Preferred shares issued by subsidiaries 209 209
Perpetual preferred shares issued by subsidiaries 154 157
Share capital and surplus
Share capital (note 13)
Perpetual preferred shares 1,099 799
Common shares 4,676 4,660
Accumulated surplus 5,858 4,860
Contributed surplus 28 19
Currency translation account (547) (849)
11,114 9,489

Liabilitles, share capital and surplus $ 120,463 $ 102,161
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SURPLUS

{in 8 millions)

For the years ended
December 31
2006 2005

Accumulated surplus
Balance, beginning of year $ 4,860 $ 3,890
Net income 1,927 1,775
Repatriation of Canada Life seed capital from participating account {note 12) - 2
Share issue costs - preferred shares {6) (6)
Common share cancellation excess (45) (46)
Dividends to shareheclders

Perpetual preferred shareholders (52) (33)

Common shareholder {826) {722)
Balance, end of year $ 5,858 $ 4860
Contributed surplus
Balance, beginning of year $ 19 $ 14
Stock option expense

Current year expense (note 14) 10 5

Exercised {1) -
Balance, end of year $ 28 $ 19
Currency translation account
Balance, beginning of year $ (849) $ (426)
Change during the year 302 (423)

Balance, end of year $ (547) $ (849)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in $ millions)

For the years ended
December 31
2006 2008
Cperations
Net income $ 1,927 $ 1,775
Adjustments:
Change in policy liabilities 1,560 2,969
Change in funds held by ceding insurers aseé (219)
Change in funds held under reinsurance contracts {141) (543)
Change in current income taxes payable (75) (33)
Future income tax expense 65 125
Other 80 {123)
Cash flows from cperations 3,812 3,951
Financing Activities
Issue of common shares 25 20
Issue of preferred shares 300 300
Purchased and cancelled common shares (54) (57}
Redemption of preferred shares (31) (10)
Issue of subordinated debentures in subsidiary 351 -
Repayment of subordinated debentures in subsidiary {250) -
Repayment five-year term facility - {150)
Repayment of debentures and other debt instruments (22) (N
Share issue costs (6) (6)
Dividends paid (878) (755)
(565) (665)
Investment Activities
Bond sales and maturities 30,162 24,742
Morigage loan repayments 2,147 2,045
Stock sales 1,334 1,500
Real estate sales 181 200
Change in loans to policyholders {18} (272
Change in repurchase agreements 94 224
Acquisition of business (note 20) 1,467 22
Investment in bonds {33,636} (26,010}
Investment in morigage leans (2,792} (2,381)
Investment in stocks {1,713} (1,993)
Investment in real estate {631) (588)
{3,405} {2,511)
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 280 (286)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 122 489
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,961 2472
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 3,083 3 2,961

Supplementary cash flow information

Income taxes paid $ 496
Interest paid $ 216

L]

441
201
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in $ millions except per share amounts)

1.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements of Great-West Lifeco Inc. (Lifeco or the Company) have
been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and
include the consolidated accounts of its subsidiary companies, The Great-West Life Assurance
Company (Great-West Life) and Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company (GWL&A). The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance
sheet date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The
valuation of actuarial liabilities, income taxes and pension plans and other post retirement
benefits are the most significant components of the Company’s financial statements subject to
management estimates. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates. The significant
accounting policies are as follows:

{a) Portfolio Investments

Investments in bonds and mortgage loans (debt securities) are carried at amortized cost net
of any allowance for credit losses. The difference between the proceeds on the sale of a
debt security and its amortized cost is considered to be an adjustment of future portfolio
yield. Net realized gains and losses are included in Deferred Net Realized Gains and are
deferred and amortized over the period to maturity of the security sold.

Investments in stocks (equity securities) are carried at cost plus a moving average market
value adjustment of $402 ($293 in 2005). The carrying value is adjusted towards market
value at a rate of 5% per quarter. Net realized gains and losses are included in Deferred
Net Realized Gains and are deferred and amortized to income at a rate of 5% per quarter
on a declining-balance basis (see note 1(q)).

Investments in real estate are carried at cost net of write-downs and allowances for loss,
plus a moving average market value adjustment of $178 ($144 in 2005). The carrying value
is adjusted towards market value at a rate of 3% per quarter. Net realized gains and losses
are included in Deferred Net Realized Gains and are deferred and amortized to income at a
rate of 3% per quarter on a declining-balance basis (see note 1(q}).

Market values for publicly traded bonds are determined using quoted market prices. Market
values for bonds that are not actively traded and for mortgages are determined by
discounting expected future cash flows related to the securities at market interest rates.
Market values for public stocks are generally determined by the closing sale price of the
security on the exchange where it is principally traded. Market values for stocks for which
there is no active market are determined by discounting expected future cash flows based
on expected dividends and where future cash flows cannot be readily determined, market
value is estimated to be equal to cost. Market values for all properties are determined
annually by management based on a combination of the most recent independent appraisal
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(b)

{c)

(d)

(e}

and current market data available. Appraisals of all properties are conducted at least once
every three years by independent qualified appraisers.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, current operating accounts, overnight bank and
term deposits with original maturity of three months or less, and fixed-income securities with
an original term to maturity of three months or less. Net payments in transit and overdraft
bank balances are included in other ligbilities.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative products as risk management instruments to hedge or
manage asset, liability and capital positions, including revenues. Policy guidelines prohibit
the use of derivative instruments for speculative trading purposes.

The Company documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items,
as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. This process includes linking derivatives that are used in hedging transactions
to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific firm commitments or
transactions. The Company also assesses, both at the hedge's inception and on an
ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

Derivative financial instruments used by the Company are summarized in note 19.

The accounting policies for derivative financial instruments used for hedging correspond to
those used for the underlying hedged position. In the event a designated hedged item is
sold, extinguished, matures or ceases to be effective prior to the termination of the related
derivative instrument, any subsequent realized or unrealized gains or losses on such
derivative instruments are recognized in income.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company follows the current rate method of foreign currency translation for its net
investment in its self-sustaining foreign operations. Under this method, assets and liabilities
are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
dates and all income and expense items are translated at an average of daily rates. The
Currency Translation Account is presented separately on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
The Company may enter into certain daily average rate forward exchange contracts to
manage volatility associated with the translation of a portion of revenues and investment in
foreign operations into Canadian dollars. Foreign currency translation gains and losses on
foreign currency transactions of the Company are included in net investment income and
are not material to the financial statements of the Company.

Loans to Policyholders

Loans to policyholders are shown at their unpaid balance and are fully secured by the cash
surrender values of the policies.
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(f

(9)

(h)

©

0

Funds Held by Ceding Insurers/Funds Held Under Reinsurance Contracts

Under certain forms of reinsurance contracts, it is customary for the ceding insurer to retain
possession of the assets supporting the liabilities ceded. The Company records an amount
receivable from the ceding insurer or payable to the reinsurer representing the premium
due. Investment revenue on these funds withheld is credited by the ceding insurer.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase consideration over the fair value of net assets
of acquired subsidiaries of the Company. Intangible assets represent finite life and
indefinite life intangible assets of acquired subsidiaries of the Company. Finite life
intangible assets include the value of customer contracts and distribution channels. These
intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, generally not exceeding 20
years and 30 years respectively. The Company tests goodwill and indefinite life intangible
assets for impairment on an annual basis by reviewing the fair value of the related
businesses and the intangible assets. Goodwill and intangible assets are written down
when impaired to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value.

Revenue recognition

Premiumns for all types of insurance contracts, and contracts with limited mortality or
morbidity risk, are generally recognized as revenue when due. When premiums are
recognized, actuarial liabilities are computed, with the result that benefits and expenses are
matched with such revenue.

The Company's premium revenues, total paid or credited to policyholders and policy
liabilities are all shown net of reinsurance amounts ceded to, or including amounts assumed
from, other insurers.

Fee and other income is recognized when earned and primarily includes fees earned from
the management of segregated fund assets, fees earned on the administration of
administrative services only (ASQ) Group health contracts and fees earned from
management services.

Fixed assets

Included in other assets are fixed assets that are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization computed on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which vary
from 3 to 15 years. Amortization of fixed assets included in the Summary of Consolidated
Operations is $77 ($77 in 2005).

Actuarial liabilities

Actuarial liabilities represent the amounts equal to the carrying value of the assets that,
taking into account the other pertinent items on the balance sheet, will be sufficient to
discharge the Company’s obligations over the term of the liability for its insurance policies
and to pay expenses related to the administration of those policies. Actuarial liabilities are
determined using generally accepted actuarial practices, according to standards established
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(k)

0

(m)

(n)

(0)

by the Canadian Institute of Actuaries. In accordance with these accepted practices,
actuarial liabilities have been determined in accordance with the Canadian Asset Liability
Method (CALM). Actuarial liabilities of the Company are discussed in note 7.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method of income tax allocation. Current income taxes are
based on taxable income and future income taxes are based on taxable temporary
differences. The income tax rates used to measure income tax assets and liabilities are
those rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date (see note 18).

Repurchase Agreements

The Company enters into repurchase agreements with third-party broker-dealers in which
the Company sells securities and agrees to repurchase substantially similar securities at a
specified date and price. Such agreements are accounted for as investment financings.

Pension Plans and Other Post Retirement Benefits

The Company’s subsidiaries maintain contributory and non-contributory defined benefit
pension plans for certain of its employees and advisors. The Company’s subsidiaries also
maintain defined contribution pension plans for certain of its employees and advisors. The
cost of defined pension benefits is charged to earnings using the projected benefit method
prorated on services (see note 15}.

The Company's subsidiaries also provide post-retirement health, dental and life insurance
benefits to eligible employees, advisors and their dependents. The cost of post-retirement
health, dental and life insurance benefits is charged to earnings using the projected benefit
method prorated on services {see note 15).

Stock Based Compensation

The Company follows the fair value based method of accounting for the valuation of
compensation expense for options granted to employees under its stock option plan (see
note 14). Compensation expense is recognized as an increase to compensation expense
and an increase to contributed surplus over the vesting period of the granted options.
When options are exercised, the proceeds received, along with the amount in contributed
surplus, is transferred to share capital.

Earnings Per Common Share

Earnings per common share is calculated using net income after preferred share dividends
and the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. The treasury stock
method is used for calculating diluted earnings per common share (see note 16).
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Geographic Segmentation

The Company has significant operations in Canada, the United States and Europe.
Reinsurance operations and operations in all countries other than Canada and the United
States are reported as part of the Europe segment.

New Accounting Requirements
Financial Instruments

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company will be required to comply with the new provisions
of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook on accounting for
Financial instruments. The new sections on Financial Instruments, Hedges and
Comprehensive Income, including revisions to the section on Life Insurance Enterprises
and many other sections, replace all previous guidance on these items issued by the CICA.

On June 22, 2006, The Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions Canada issued
Guideline D-10 — Accounting for Financial Instruments Designated as “Held for Trading”
(Fair Value Option) (OSFI D-10), which provides additional guidance to certain federally
regulated financial institutions, including life insurance companies.

Under the new guidance, all financial assets, including derivatives, must be classified as
available for sale, held for trading, held to maturity, or loans and receivables. All financial
liabilities, including derivatives, must be classified as held for trading or other. Ali financial
instruments classified as available for sale or held for trading are required to be recognized
at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheet while financial instruments classified as
loans and receivables or other will continue to be measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. The standards allow the Company to designate certain
financial instruments, on initial recognition, as held for trading. This option has been limited
by the requirements of OSFI D-10.

Changes in the fair value of financial instruments classified as held for trading will be
reported in netincome. Unrealized gains or losses on financial instruments classified as
available for sale will be reported in Other Comprehensive Income until they are realized by
the Company.

The new guidance introduces the concept of Other Comprehensive Income, which will track
unrealized gains and losses experienced by the Company on certain investments and
derivative instruments, and the currency translation account movement. Other
Comprehensive Income together with Net Income provides the financial statement reader
with Comprehensive Income. Comprehensive Income is the total of all realized and
unrealized income, expenses, gains and losses related to the Consolidated Balance Sheet
including currency translation gains and losses on foreign subsidiary operations.

The Company will measure certain investments, primarily investments actively traded in a
public market, and certain financial liabilities at their fair value. Investments backing
actuarial liabilities will be classified as held for trading using the fair value option. Changes
in the fair value of these investments will flow through net income. This impact is expected
to be largely offset by corresponding changes in the actuarial liabilities which will also flow
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through net income. Investments backing shareholder capital and surplus will be classified
as available for sale. Unrealized gains and losses on these investments will flow through
Other Comprehensive Income until they are realized. Certain investment pertfolios will be
classified as held for trading as reflection of their underlying nature. Changes in the fair
value of these investments will flow through net income. No change to the Company’s
methad of accounting for real estate or loans is anticipated.

Derivative instruments, previously off-balance sheet, will be recognized at their market
value in the Consolidated Balance Sheet (refer to note 19 for details of off-balance sheet
derivatives at December 31, 2006). Derivatives embedded in financial instruments, or other
contracts, which are not closely related to the host financial instrument, or contract, must be
bifurcated and recognized independently. Changes in the fair value of derivatives will be
recognized in net income except for derivatives designated as effective hedges.

Three types of hedging relationships are permitted under the new guidance: fair value
hedges, cash flow hedges, and hedges of net investments in self-sustaining foreign
operations. Changes in fair value hedges are recognized in net income. The effective
portion of cash flow hedges, and hedges of net investments in seif-sustaining foreign
operations, are offset through Other Comprehensive Income until the variability in cash
flows being hedged is recognized in net income.

Life insurance enterprises will no longer defer net realized gains on financial instruments
(bonds, stocks, and mortgages), nor will they be allowed to carry investments in stocks at
cost plus a moving average market value adjustment for unrealized gains and losses.
Deferred net realized gains on bonds, stocks, and mortgages, carried on the balance sheet
at December 31, 20086, will be transferred to surplus on transition to the new rules. At
December 31, 2006, deferred net realized gains totaled $2,821 or $2,628 excluding real
estate. Included in this total is $118 of losses realized on bonds, stocks and mortgages that
supported shareholders capital and surplus.

The new accounting guidance is expected to contribute to volatility within certain income
statement line items, particularly for investment income and actuarial provisions. However,
based on the Company’s review to this point, it does not expect that the new guidance will
result in a material impact on net income, other than as a result of the inability to continue to
amortize the balance of net deferred realized unamortized gains on assets supporting
shareholders capital and surplus that will exist at the time of transition to the new
accounting rules. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the amortization of net realized
and unrealized gains was $619 in total. For investments backing actuarial liabilities, the loss
of amortization in connection with these assets is expected to be largely offset by
corresponding changes in the actuarial liabilities which will also flow through net income.
Included in the $619 is $92 of amortization in connection with bonds, stocks and mortgages
associated with shareholders capital and surplus which will not be offset by changes to
actuarial liabilities.

On October 18, 2006, the CICA issued an exposure draft amending the transitional
provisions relating to the new guidance on hedges. The Company will complete its
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determination of the transition adjustment for hedges once the new transitional guidance is
finalized.

(r) Comparative Figures

Certain of the 2005 amounts presented for comparative purposes have been reclassified to
conform with the presentation adopted in the current year.

Restructuring Costs

The plan to restructure and integrate the operations of Canada Life Financial Corporation (CLFC)
with the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries Great-West Life, London Life Insurance Company
(London Life) and GWL&A was completed at the end of 2005 at a total cost of $446.
Restructuring costs related to the acquisition of CLFC incurred for the year ended December 31,
2005 were $101. Of this amount $22 before tax ($17 after tax) was charged to income and $79
was charged against the amount accrued as part of the purchase equation of CLFC. These
restructuring costs were related to the elimination of duplicate systems, exiting and consolidating
operations and compensation costs.

Portfolio Investments
(a) Carrying values and estimated market values of portfolio investments are as follows:

2006 2005

Carrying Market Carrying Market

value value value value
Bonds - government $ 22,069 $ 22,702 $ 21,738 $ 22,956
- corporate 43,177 43,996 37,560 38,962
65,246 686,698 59,298 61,918
Mortgage loans - residential 7,342 7.513 7,243 7.575
- non-residential 7,992 8,257 7,362 7,702
15,334 15,770 14 605 15,277
Stocks 4,766 5,566 4,028 4,639
Real estate 2,216 2,677 1,842 2,127

$ 87,562 $ 980,711 $ 79773 $ 83,961
[———— ] L —] i— _————}

=
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(b} The significant terms and conditions and interest rate ranges of applicable fixed-term portfolio
investments gross of provisions are as follows:

Carrying value
Term to maturity Effective
1 year or Over Principal interest rate
2008 less 1-5 years 5 years Total amount ranges
Short-term bonds $ 2958 § - $ - $ 2,958 $ 2,693 2.7%-5.3%
Bonds 4,155 16,966 41,210 62,331 64,895 21%-17.1%
Mortgage loans 1,160 5,016 9,190 15,365 15,013 3.6%-13.1%

$ 8273 § 21,981 $ 50400 §$ 80654 $ 82,701

Carrying value

term to maturity Effective
1 year or Over Principal interest rate
2005 less 1-5 years 5 years Total amount ranges
Short-term bonds $ 2133 % - 3 - 3 2,133 $ 213 1.0%-4.3%
Bonds 3,137 16,942 37,174 57,253 60,784 0.3% - 16.8%
Mortgage loans 332 5,323 8,981 14,636 14,235 3.0%-13.5%

$ 5602 § 22265 $ 46,155 § 74022 § 77.150

{c) Included in portfolio investments are the following:

(i)  Non-performing loans:

2006 2005
Bends $ 79 3 137
Mortgage loans 28 17
Foreclosed real estate - 11

$ 107 $ 165

Non-performing loans include non-accrual loans and foreclosed real estate held for
sale. Bond and mortgage investments are reviewed on a loan by loan basis to
determine non-performing status. Loans are classified as non-accrual when:

(1) payments are 80 days or more in arrears, except in those cases where, in the
opinion of management, there is justification to continue to accrue interest; or

(2) the Company no longer has reasonable assurance of timely collection of the full
amount of the principal and interest due; or

{3) modified/restructured loans are not performing in accordance with the contract.

Where appropriate, provisions are established or write-offs made to adjust the carrying
value to the net realizable amount. Wherever possible the fair value of collateral
underlying the loans or observable market price is used to establish net realizable
value.
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(i) Allowance for credit losses:

2006 2005

Bonds & mortgage loans $ 74 $ 119
(i) Changes in the allowance for credit losses are as follows:

2006 2005
Balance, beginning of year $ 119 $ 190
Net provision (recoveries) for credit losses - in year (31} 7
Write-offs, net of recoveries (13) (75)
Other (inciuding foreign exchange rate changes} {1) (3)
Balance, end of year $ 74 3 119

The allowance for credit losses is supplemented by the provision for future credit
losses included in actuarial liabilities.

(d) Alsoincluded in portfolio investments are modified/restructured loans of $12 ($37 in 2005) that
are performing in accordance with their current terms.

{e) Netinvestment income is comprised of the following:

2006
Amortization
Investment  of net realized {Provision) Neot
income and unrealized recovery for Investment investment
earned gains credit losses QXpeNsas income
Bonds $ 3,641 $ 247 $ 30 $ - $ 3,918
Mortgage loans 869 47 1 - 917
Stocks 140 261 - - 401
Real estate 112 64 - - 176
Other 566 - - (68) 498
$ 5,328 $ €19 $ 31 $ (68) § 5,910
2005
Amortization of
net realized (Provision)
Investment and unrealized recovery for Investment Net investment
income eamed gains credit losses expenses income

Bonds $ 32286 § 253 § (18 % - $ 3,460
Mortgage loans 892 53 12 - 957
Stocks 126 232 - - 358
Real estate 125 46 - - 171
Other 499 - - {56) 443
$ 4,868 $ 584 $ {7} & (56) § 5,389




GREAT-WEST

INC.

{fi The balance of deferred net realized gains is comprised of the following:
_ 2006
Participating Non-participating
surplus and Capital and
liabilities Liabilities surplus Total
Bonds $ 548 $ 1638 § {220} 1,966
Mortgage loans 29 141 1 17m
Stocks 339 51 101 491
Real estate 114 37 42 193
$ 1,030 § 1,867  § (76) 2,81
2005
Participating Non-participating
surplus and Capital and
liabilities Liabilities surplus Total
Bonds $ 562 % 1234 $ 38 1,834
Mortgage loans 23 122 6 151
Stocks 278 30 132 440
Real estate 08 32 43 173
3 961 3 1418 % 219= 2,598

4, Pledging of Assets
The amount of assets which have a security interest by way of pledging is $5 ($10 in 2005), all of
which is in respect of derivative transactions.
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5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill and changes in the carrying value of goodwill are as follows:

2006 2005

Balance, beginning of year $ 5323 $ 5324
Acquisitions (note 20) 117 -
Other acquisitions 2

Changes in foreign exchange rates 2 (1)
Balance, end of year $ 5444 $ 5323
Canada $ 3,771 $ 3,769
United States 169 50
Europe 1,504 1,504

$ 5444 5 5,323
mm——— Eee——

The Canada Life Assurance Company (Canada Life) paid additional consideration, based
on certain performance targets achieved in 2006, for an investment subsidiary first acquired
in 2003. This resulted in an increase in goodwill of $2.

The goodwill arising from acquisitions in the Company's United States segment (note 20)
may be adjusted as part of the finalization of the allocation of the purchase prices to the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Intangible Assets

The carrying value of intangible assets and changes in the carrying value of intangible
assets are as follows:

Changes in Carrying

Accumulated foreign value, end
2006 Cost amortization exchange rates __ of year
Indefinite life intangible assets
- Brands and trademarks $ 410 $ - - $ 410
- Customer contract related 354 - - 354
- Shareholder portion of acquired
future Participating account profits 354 - - 354
1,118 - - 1,118
Finite life intangible assets
- Customer contract related 388 {49) 1 340
- Distribution channels 130 (12) {1) 117
518 (61) - 457

Total $ 1,636 $ {61 $ - $ 1,575
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Changes in Canrying
Accumulated foreign value, end
2005 amortization  exchange rates of year
Indefinite life intangible assets
- Brands and trademarks $ - (16) $ 394
- Customer contract related - - 354
- Shareholder portion of acquired
future Participating account profits - - 354
- {16) 1,102
Finite life intangible assets
- Customer contract related {35) {2) 248
- Distribution channels 8) {12) 107
(43) {14) 355
Total 5 (43} $ {30) § 1457

During 20086, in connection with the acquisitions in the Company’s United States segment
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{note 20), the Company acquired approximately $100 of customer contract related finite life
intangible assets and $4 in distribution related finite life intangible assets. The value
assigned to these intangible assets may be adjusted as part of the finalization of the
allocation of the purchase prices to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Other Assets
Other assets consist of the following:

Premiums in course of collection
Interest due and accrued

Future income taxes {note 18)
Fixed assets

Prepaid expenses

Accounts receivable

Accrued pension asset (note 15)
Other

2006 2005
$ 566 $ 623
1,009 893
304 363
263 279
64 76
754 716
189 179
503 316
$ 3,652 $ 3445
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7.

Actuarial Liabilities
(a) Composition of Actuarial Liabilities and Related Supporting Assets

(i)

(i)

The composition of actuarial liabilities is as follows:

Canada
United States
Europe

Total

The composition of the assets supporting liabilities and surplus is as follows:

Carmrying valus

Participating

Non-participating
Canada
United States
Europe

Other

Capital and surplus

Total carrying value

Falr value

Camying value

Participating

Non-participating
Canada

United States
Europe

Other
Capital and surplus
Total carrying value

Fair value

Participating Non-particlpating Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2008 2008
$ 17573 §$16622 $ 17,248 515046 § 34,821 § 32568
8,107 7,822 14,492 12,839 22,699 20,661
1,853 1,677 30,090 16,357 31,943 18,034
$ 27533 $26121 $ 61,830 $45142 $ 89,363 3§ 71,263

2008
Mortgage

Bonds loans Stocks Real estate Other Total
$ 12,928 $ 5,019 $ 2313 $ 112 $ 7,161 $ 27,533
10,982 4,661 881 7 818 17,248
12,825 1,497 - - 170 14,492
14,354 1,449 238 1,164 12,887 30,080
9,699 2,555 747 287 6,798 19,986
4,657 153 789 646 4,969 11,114
$ 65!246 $ 15334 $ 4!766 $ 2!218 $ 32!901 $ 120!463
$ 66,698 $ 15770 $ 5,568 $ 2677 $ 32,501 $ 123,812

2005
Mortgage

Bonds loans Stocks Real estate Other Total
$ 12,164 $ 4707 $ 1845 $ 110 $ 7,295 $ 26121
10,347 4,579 566 8 426 15,946
10,696 1,590 19 - 534 12,839
11,363 660 162 669 3,503 16,357
11,992 2,987 693 452 5,285 21,409
2,736 82 723 503 5,345 9,489
$ 59,298 $ 14,605 $ 4028 $ 1,842 $ 22,388 $ 102161
$ 61918 $ 15277 $ 4,639 § 2127 $ 22,388 $ 106,349
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(b)

Cash flows of assets supporting actuarial liabilities are matched within reasonable
limits. Changes in the fair values of these assets are essentially offset by changes in
the fair value of actuarial liabilities.

Changes in the fair values of assets backing capital and surplus, less related income
taxes, would result in a corresponding change in surplus over time in accordance with
investment accounting policies.

Changes in Actuarial Liabilities

The change in actuarial liabilities during the year was the result of the following business
activities and changes in actuarial estimates:

Participating Non-participating Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Balance, beginning of year $ 26,121 $25085 $ 45142 §$ 40,737 $ 71,263 $ 65.822
tmpact of new business 7 4 2,929 3.186 2,938 3,190
Normal change in force 1,150 1,415 (2/433) {1.571) {1,283) (156)
Impact of assumption changes 79 50 (H17) 19 {38) 69
Business movement from/to affiliates - - - {38} - (38)
Business movement fromfto external parties - - 13,680 4 803 13,580 4,803
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes 176 {433} 2,729 {1,994} 2,808 (2,427)
Balance, end of year $ 27,533 %2621 $ 61,830 $ 45,142 $ 89,363 § 71,262

In 2006 the acquisition of a large block of annuity business in the United Kingdom, and the
acquisition of two blocks of largely 401(k) business in the United States were the major
contributors to the growth in actuarial liabilities.

Non-participating actuarial liabilities decreased by $117 in 2006 due to assumption
changes. This decrease was primarily due to improvements in mortality ($72 decrease),
improvements in morbidity ($63 decrease), and improvement in expenses ($62 decrease)
partially offset by strengthened provisions for asset liability matching (increase of $88) and
an increase required in the adverse development reserve provisions in London Reinsurance
Group Inc. (LRG) {increase of $21).

Participating actuarial liabilities increased by $79 in 2006 due to assumption changes. This
increase was primarily due to an increase in the provision for future policyholder dividends
($184) partially offset by improved investment assumptions ($60 decrease), improved life
mortality ($18 decrease) and improved expenses ($18 decrease).

In 2005 the acquisition of a large block of annuity business in the United Kingdom was the
major contributor to the growth in actuarial liabilities.

Non-participating actuarial liabilities increased by $19 in 2005 due to assumption changes.
This increase was primarily due to strengthened mortality assumptions {$151 increase), and
increased litigation reserves ($33) partially offset by improvements in asset liability matching
($103 decrease) and improvements in modeling ($67 decrease).
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(c)

Participating actuarial liabilities increased by $50 in 2005 due to assumption changes. This
increase was primarily due to lower investment returns ($135 increase) and a
reclassification between provisions for dividends and actuarial liabilities for Canada Life
(362 increase) partially offset by improved mortality ($61 decrease) and reduced expenses
($61 decrease).

Actuarial Assumptions

In the computation of actuarial liabilities, valuation assumptions have been made regarding
rates of mortality/morbidity, investment returns, levels of operating expenses and rates of
policy termination. The valuation assumptions use best estimates of future experience
together with a margin for misestimation and experience deterioration. These margins have
been set in accordance with guidelines established by the Canadian Institute of Actuaries
and are necessary to provide reasonable assurance that actuarial liabilities cover a range of
possible outcomes. Margins are reviewed periodically for continued appropriateness.

The methods for arriving at these valuation assumptions are outlined below:

Mortality

A life insurance mortality study is carried cut annually for each major block of insurance
business. The results of each study are used to update the Company’s experience valuation
mortality tables for that business. When there is insufficient data, use is made of the latest
industry experience to derive an appropriate valuation mortality assumption. Although
mortality improvements have been observed for many years, for life insurance valuation the
mortality provisions {including margin) do not allow for future improvements. A 1% increase in
the best estimate assumption would increase non-participating actuarial liabilities by
approximately $74.

Annuitant mortality is also studied regularly and the results used to modify established
industry experience annuitant mortality tables. Mortality improvement has been projected to
occur throughout future years for annuitants. A 1% decrease in the best estimate
assumption would increase non-participating actuarial liabilities by approximately $89.

Morbidity

The Company uses industry developed experience tables modified to reflect emerging
company experience. Both claim incidence and termination are monitored regularly and
emerging experience is factored into the current valuation. For products for which morbidity
is a significant assumption a 1% adverse change in the best estimate assumptions would
increase non-participating actuarial liabilities by approximately $44.

Property and casualty reinsurance

Actuarial liabilities for property and casualty reinsurance written by LRG, a subsidiary of
London Life, are determined using accepted actuarial practices for life insurers in Canada.
Reflecting the long-term nature of the business, reserves have been established using cash
flow valuation techniques including discounting. The reserves are based on cession
statements provided by ceding companies. In certain instances, LRG management adjusts
cession statement amounts to reflect management’s interpretation of the treaty. Differences
will be resolved via audits and other toss mitigation activities. In addition, reserves also
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include an amount for incurred but not reported losses (IBNR) which may differ significantly
from the ultimate loss development. The estimates and underlying methodology are
continually reviewed and updated and adjustments to estimates are reflected in income.
LRG analyzes the emergence of claims experience against expected assumptions for each
reinsurance contract separately and at the portfolio level. If necessary, a more in depth
analysis is undertaken of the cedant experience.

Investment returns

The assets which correspond to the different liability categories are segmented. For each
segment, projected cash flows from the current assets and liabilities are used in CALM to
determine actuarial liabilities. Cash flows from assets are reduced to provide for asset
default losses. Testing under several interest rate scenarios (including increasing and
decreasing rates) is done to provide for reinvestment risk.

One way of measuring the interest rate risk associated with this assumption is to determine
the effect on the present value of the projected net asset and liability cash flows of the non-
participating business of the Company of an immediate 1% increase or an immediate 1%
decrease in the level of interest rates. These interest rate changes will impact the projected
cash flows. The effect of an immediate 1% increase in interest rates would be to increase
the present value of these projected cash flows by approximately $74 and the effect of an
immediate 1% decrease in interest rates would be to decrease the present value of these
net projected cash flows by approximately $295. The level of actuarial liabilities established
under CALM provides for interest rate movements significantly greater than the 1% shifts
shown above.

A 10% increase in equity markets would be expected to decrease non-participating actuarial
liabilities by approximately $5, primarily as a resuit of equities backing long-tail liabilities. A
10% decrease in equity markets would be expected to increase non-participating actuarial
liabilities by approximately $5, primarily as a result of equities backing long-tail liabilities.

Expenses

Unit expense studies are updated regularly to determine an appropriate estimate of future
expenses for the liability type being valued. Expense improvements are not projected. An
inflation assumption is incorporated in the estimate of future expenses consistent with the
interest rate scenarios projected under CALM. A 10% increase in the best estimate
maintenance unit expense assumption Company wide would increase the non-participating
actuarial liabilities by approximately $135.

Policy termination

Studies to determine rates of policy termination are updated regularly to form the basis of this
estimate. Industry data is also available and is useful where the Company has no experience
with specific types of policies or its exposure is limited. A 10% adverse change in the best
estimate policy termination assumption would increase non-participating actuarial liabilities by
approximately $281.
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(i)

(i)

(i)

Policyholder dividends

Future policyholder dividends are included in the determination of actuarial liabilities for
participating policies, with the assumption that policyholder dividends will change in the
future to reflect the experience of the respective participating accounts, consistent with the
participating policyholder dividend policies. It is our expectation that associated with
changes in the best estimate assumptions for participating business would be
corresponding changes in policyholder dividend scales, resulting in an immaterial net
change in actuarial liabilities for participating business.

{d) Risk Management

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is managed by effectively matching portfolio investments with liability
characteristics. Hedging instruments are employed where necessary when there is a
lack of suitable permanent investments to minimize loss exposure to interest rate
changes.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed through an emphasis on guality in the investment portfolio and
by maintenance of issuer, industry and geographic diversification standards.

Projected investment returns are reduced to provide for future credit losses on assets.
The net effective yield rate reduction averaged .15% (.18% in 2005). The calculation
for future credit losses on assets is based on the credit quality of the underlying asset
portfolio.

The following outlines the future asset credit losses provided for in actuarial liabilities.
These amounts are in addition to the allowance for asset losses included with assets:

2006 2005
Participating $  au $ 570
Non-participating 859 608
$ 1,300 $ 1178

Reinsurance risk

Maximum benefit amount limits per insured life (which vary by line of business) are
established for life and health insurance and reinsurance is purchased for amounts in
excess of those limits.

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to
policyholders. Failure of reinsurers to honour their obligations could result in losses to
the Company. The Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers to
minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies.
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(iv)

V)

As a result of reinsurance, actuarial liabilities have been reduced by the following
amounts:

2006 2005
Participating $ 69 $ 109
Non-participating 4114 6,537
$ 4,183 $ 6,646

Certain of the reinsurance contracts are on a funds withheld basis where the
Company retains the assets supporting the reinsured actuarial liabilities, thus
minimizing the exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvency on those
contracts.

Foreign exchange risk

If the assets backing actuarial liabilities are not matched by currency, changes in
foreign exchange rates can expose the Company to the risk of foreign exchange
losses not offset by liability decreases.

23

Foreign exchange risk is managed whenever possible by matching assets with related

liabilities by currency and through the use of derivative instruments such as forward

contracts and cross-currency swaps. These financial instruments aliow the Company

to modify an asset position to more closely match actual or committed liability
currency.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will have difficulty raising funds to meet

commitments. The liquidity needs of the Company are closely managed through cash

flow matching of assets and liabilities and forecasting earned and required yields, to

ensure consistency between policyholder requirements and the yield of assets.

Approximately 60% of policy liabilities are non-cashable prior to maturity or subject to

market value adjustments.

Financing Charges
Financing charges consist of the following:

2006 2005
Interest on long-term debentures and other debt instruments $ 19 1M
Preferred share dividends 37 38
Interest on capital trust debentures 49 49
Other 9 1
Distributions on capital trust securities held by consolidated
group as temporary investments (12} {12)

Total

$ 202 % 187
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9. Debentures and Other Debt Instruments
(a) Debentures and other debt instruments consist of the following:

2006 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
Short term
Commercial paper and other short term debt instruments with interest
rates from 5.2% to 5.3% (4.0% to 5.0% in 2005) $ 10 $ 110 $ 112 § 112
Revolving credit in respect of reinsurance business with interest rates
of 6.0% maturing within one year {(5.0% to 5.2% in 2005) 1 1 14 14
Total short term 111 111 126 126
Long term
Operating:
Notes payable with interest rate of 8.0% 8 8 9 9
Capital:
Liaco
6.75% Debentures due August 10, 2015, unsecured 200 218 200 221
6.14% Debentures due March 21, 2018, unsecured 200 224 200 227
6.74% Debentures due November 24, 2031, unsecured 200 248 200 250
6.67% Debentures due March 21, 2033, unsecured 400 480 400 497
1,000 1,176 1,000 1,195
Canada Life

Subordinated debentures due September 19, 2011 bearing a fixed rate

of 8% until 2006 and, thereafter, at a rate equal to the Canadian

90-day Bankers' Acceptance rate plus 1%, unsecured - - 250 257
Subordinated debentures due December 11, 2013 bearing a

fixed rate of §.8% until 2008 and, thereafter, at a rate equal to the

Canadian 90-day Bankers' Acceplance rate plus 1%, unsecured 200 205 200 208
6.40% Subordinated debentures due December 11, 2028, 100 117 100 119
Acquisition related fair market value adjustment 5 - 13 -

305 322 563 584

Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Capital, LP
6.625% Deferrable debentures due November 15, 2034,
unsecured (U.5.5175) 205 206 205 212

Great-West Life & Annuity insurance Capital, LP Il
7.153% Subordinated debentures due May 16, 20456,

unsecured (U.S.$300) 351 373 - -
Total long term 1,869 2,085 1,777 2,000
Total debentures and cther debt instruments $1,980 $2196 $1.903 $2,126

On September 19, 2006, Canada Life repaid the $250 principal of the 8% subordinated
debentures.

During the second quarter of 2006, the Company issued $351 (U.S. $300) in
Fixed/Adjustable Rate Enhanced Capital Advantaged Subordinated Debentures through its
wholly owned subsidiary, Great-West Life & Annuity Capital, LP 1l. The subordinated
debentures are due May 16, 2046 and bear an annual interest rate of 7.153% until May 16,
2016. After May 186, 2016, the subordinated debentures will bear an interest rate of 2.538%
plus the 3-month LIBOR rate. The subordinated debentures are redeemable by the
Company at the principal amount plus any accrued and unpaid interest after May 16, 2016.
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{b) Principal repayments of long term debentures and other debt instruments

Operating Capital Total
2007 $ 1 $ - $ 1
2008 1 - 1
2009 1 - 1
2010 1 - 1
2011 1 - 1
2012 and thereafter 3 1,856 1,859
$ 8 $ 1,856 $ 1,864
—_— e
10. Other Liabilities
Other liabilities consist of the following:
2006 2005
Current income taxes $ 308 3 374
Accounts payable 459 511
Post retirement benefits provision (note 15) 520 508
Bank overdraft 446 449
Future income taxes (note 18) 369 37
Other 2127 1,840

$ 4,229 $ 4089

1. Capital Trust Securities and Debentures

2006 2005
Capital trust debentures:
5.995% Senior debentures due December 31, 2052, unsecured (GWLCT) 350 350
6.679% Senior debentures due June 30, 2052, unsecured (CLCT) 300 300
7.529% Senior debentures due June 30, 2052, unsecured (CLCT) 150 150
800 800
Acquisition related fair market value adjustment | 34
Trust securities held by consolidated group
as temporary investments {185) {186)
Total $ 646 § 648

Great-West Life Capital Trust (GWLCT), a trust established by Great-West Life, had issued $350 of
capital trust securities, the proceeds of which were used by GWLCT to purchase Great-West Life senior
debentures in the amount of $350, and Canada Life Capital Trust {CLCT), a trust established by Canada
Life, had issued $450 of capital trust securities, the proceeds of which were used by CLCT to purchase
Canada Life senior debentures in the amount of $450. Distributions and interest on the capital trust
securities are classified as financing charges on the Summary of Consolidated Operations (see note 8).
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12, Non-Controlling Interests

The Company controlled a 100% equity interest in Great-West Life, London Life, Canada Life and
GWL&A at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005.

{a) The non-controlling interests of GWL&A, Great-West Life, London Life, Canada Life and
their subsidiaries reflected in the Summary of Consolidated Operations are as follows:

2006 2005
Participating account
Net income attributable to participating
account before policyholder dividends
Great-West Life $ 102 3$ 110
London Life 698 620
Canada Life 192 128
GWLEA 129 134
Policyholder dividends
Great-West Life (104) (98)
London Life (572) (548)
Canada Life {184) {(118)
GWLEA {118} (134)
Net income - participating account 143 G4
Preferred shareholder dividends of subsidiaries 19 19
Total $ 162 S 113

(b} The carrying value of non-controlling interests consists of the following:

2006 2005
Participating account surplus;
Great-West Life $ 370 % 372
London Life 1,275 1,151
Canada Life 35 25
GWLEA 204 193

$ 1884 § 1,741

Preferred shares issued by subsidiaries:
Great-West Life Series L, 5.20% Non-Cumulative 52 % 52
Great-West Life Series O, 5.55% Non-Cumulative 157 157
$ 209 % 209

L

Perpetual preferred shares issued by subsidiaries:
CLFC Series B, 6.25% Non-Cumulative $ 145 $ 145
Acquisition related fair market value adjustment 9 12
$ 154 % 157

On demutualization, $50 of seed capital was transferred from the shareholder account to
the participating account of Canada Life. In accordance with the Conversion Proposal of
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Canada Life and subject to approval by OSFI, the seed capital amount, together with a
reasonable rate of return, may be transferred to the shareholder account if the seed
capital is no longer required to support the new participating policies.

During 2005, following OSF| approval, $2 of seed capital related to the Bahamas open
block of the Canada Life participating account was transferred from the participating
account to the shareholder account. The repatriation resulted in an increase in
shareholder surplus of $2 and a decrease in non-controlling interests of $2.

Share Capital
Authorized

Unlimited First Preferred Shares, Class A Preferred Shares and Second Preferred Shares,

Unlimited Common Shares

Issued and outstanding

Preferred shares:

Classified as liabilities

Series D, 4.70% Non-Cumulative
First Preferred Shares

Series E, 4.80% Non-Cumulative
First Preferred Shares

Perpetual preferred shares:

Classified as equity

Series F, 5.90% Non-Cumulative
First Preferred Shares

Series G, 5.20% Non-Cumulative
First Preferred Shares

Series H, 4.85% Non-Cumulative
First Preferred Shares

Series |, 4.50% Non-Cumulative
First Preferred Shares

Common shares:

Balance, beginning of year
Purchased and cancelled under
Normal Course Issuer Bid
Issued under Stock Option Plan

Balance, end of period

2006 2005
Number Stated value Number Stated value
7,978,900 $ 199 7,978,900 $ 199
22,282,215 557 23,499 915 588
30,261,115 $ 756 31,478,815 3 787
7,957,001 $ 199 7,957,001 % 199
12,000,000 300 12,000,000 300
12,000,000 300 12,000,000 300
12,000,000 300 - -
43,957,001 $ 1,099 31,957,001 $ 799
890,689,076 $ 4,660 890,592,348 $ 4,651
{1,847,300) (9 (2,012,600) 1
2,310,013 25 2,109,328 20
891,151,789 $ 4,676 890,689.078 $ 4 660
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Preferred shares

The Series D, 4.70% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares are redeemable at the option of the
Company on or after March 31, 2009 for $25 per share plus a premium if the shares are
redeemed before March 31, 2011 or are convertible to variable amount of comman shares of the
Company at the option of the Company on or after March 31, 2009, and are convertible to a
variable amount of common shares of the Company at the option of the holder on or after March
31, 2014.

The Series E, 4.80% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares are redeemable at the option of the
Company on or after September 30, 2009 for $25 per share plus a premium if the shares are
redeemed before September 30, 2012 or are convertible to a variable amount of common shares of
the Company at the option of the Company on or after September 30, 2009, and are convertible to a
variable amount of common shares of the Company at the option of the holder on or after
September 30, 2013.

The Series F, 5.90% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares are redeemable at the option of the
Company on or after September 30, 2008 for $25 per share plus a premium if the shares are
redeemed before September 30, 2012.

The Series H, 4.85% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares are redeemable at the option of the
Company on or after September 30, 2010 for $25 per share plus a premium if the shares are
redeemed before September 30, 2010.

The Series G, 5.20% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares are redeemable at the option of the
Company on or after December 31, 2009 for $25 per share plus a premium if the shares are
redeemed before December 31, 2015.

During 2006, the Company issued 12,000,000 Series |, 4.50% Non-Cumulative First Preferred
Shares for a value of $300 or $25 per share. The shares are redeemable at the option of the
Company an or after June 30, 2011, for $25 per share plus a premium if the shares are redeemed
before June 30, 2015.

Ouring 2006, the Company announced a Normal Course Issuer Bid commencing Decemnber 1,
2006 and terminating November 30, 2007 to purchase for cancellation up to but not more than
790,000 Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series D, and 2,000,000 Non-Cumulative First
Preferred Shares, Series E. During 20086, 1,217,700 Series E 4.80% Non-Cumulative First
Preferred Shares, were purchased pursuant to the Company's Normal Course Issuer Bid for a total
cost of $33 or an average of $27.39 per share. During the 2005, 21,100 Series D 4.70% Non-
Cumulative First Preferred Shares, and 368,200 Series E 4.80% Non-Cumulative First Preferred
Shares, were purchased pursuant to the Company's Normal Course Issuer Bid for a total cost of $1
and $10 or an average of $27.23 and $28.10 per share, respectively. The price in excess of stated
value was charged to income.

Common shares

During 2006, 1,847,300 (2,012,800 in 2005} common shares were purchased for cancellation
pursuant to the Company’s Normal Course Issuer Bids for a total expenditure of $54 ($57 in
2005) or $29.58 ($28.32 in 2005) per share and the price in excess of stated value was charged
to surplus.
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14.

Stock Based Compensation

The Company has a stock option plan (the Plan) pursuant to which options to subscribe for
common shares of Lifeco may be granted to certain officers and employees of Lifeco and its
affiliates. The Company’'s Compensation Committee (the Committee) administers the Plan and,
subject to the specific provisions of the Plan, fixes the terms and conditions upon which options
are granted. The exercise price of each option granted under the Plan is fixed by the Committee,
but cannot under any circumstances be less than the weighted-average trading price per Lifeco
common share on the Toronto Stock Exchange for the five trading days preceding the date of the
grant. Termination of employment may, in certain circumstances, result in forfeiture of the
options, unless otherwise determined by the Committee.

To date, four categories of options have been granted under the Plan. The exercise of the
options in three of these four categories is subject to the attainment of certain financial targets by
certain of the Company's subsidiaries. In two of these categories the financial targets have been
attained. All of the options have a maximum exercise period of ten years. The maximum number
of Lifeco common shares that may be issued under the Plan is currently 37,000,000.

The following table summarizes the status of, and changes in, options outstanding and the
weighted-average exercise price:

2008 2005
Woeighted- Weighted-
average average

Qptions axeorclse price Options exercise price

Quistanding, beginning of year 18,661,648 $ 17.09 17,945,976 $ 12.81
Granted 50,000 28.36 3,072,000 25.69
Exercised (2,310,013) 10.47 (2,109,328) 9"
Forfeited (424,700) 21.65 {227,000} 19.02
QOutstanding, end of year 15,996,935 $ 17.96 18,681,648 $ 17.09
Options exercisable at year-end 12,265,402 $ 15.41 11,976,636 $ 13.39

The weighted average fair value of options granted during 2006 was $5.48 per option ($6.01 per
option granted during 2005). The fair value of each option was estimated using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for those
options granted in 2006 and 2005 respectively: dividend yield 3.16% (2.95%), expected volatility
19.94% (21.13%), risk-free interest rate 4.36% (4.00%), and expected life of 7 years (7 years).

In accordance with the fair value based method of accounting, compensation expense of $10
after tax in 2006 ($5 in 2005) has been recognized in the Summary of Consolidated Cperations.
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The following table summarizes information on the ranges of exercise prices including weighted-
average remaining contractual life at December 31, 2006:

Outstanding Exercisable
Waeighted-
average Waeighted- Weighted-
Exerclse price remaining average average
ranges Options contractual life exercise price Options exercise price Expiry

$8.12 - 58.38 466,232 0.50 8.12 466,232 8.12 2007
$10.12 - 51114 1,359,500 1.28 11.05 1,359,500 11.05 2008
$11.06 - $13.63 410,600 1.84 12.60 410,600 12.60 2009
$10.11 - $16.48 4,987,304 3.49 12.66 4,987,304 12.66 2010
$17.14 - %17.70 1,728,302 4.84 17.20 1,728,302 17.20 2011
$17.20 297,000 5.58 17.20 237,600 17.20 2012
$18.84 - $20.83 3,062,997 6.47 19.38 2,049,864 19.38 2013
$24.17 - §25.12 733,000 7.36 24,96 445 600 250 2014
$28.26 - $29.84 2,902,000 8.95 29.74 580,400 29.74 2015
$28.36 50,000 9.41 28.36 - - 2016

Pension Plans and Other Post Refirement Benefits

The Company's subsidiaries maintain contributory and non-contributory defined benefit pension
plans for certain of its employees and advisors. The Company’s subsidiaries also maintain
defined contribution pension plans for certain of its employees and advisors.

The defined benefit pension plans provide pensions based on length of service and final average
pay. Certain pension payments are indexed either on an ad hoc basis or a guaranteed basis.
Effective 2006, the determination of the accrued benefit obligation reflects only pension benefits
guaranteed under the terms of the plans, resulting in a negative past service cost. As future
salary levels affect the amount of future employee benefits, the projected benefit method prorated
on service has been used to determine the accrued benefit obligation. The assets supporting the
funded pension plans are held in separate trusteed pension funds and are valued at fair value.
The obligations for the unfunded plans are included in other liabilities and are supported by
general assets. The recognized current cost of pension benefits is charged to earnings.

The defined contribution pension plans provide pension benefits based on accumulated
employee and Company contributions. Company contributions to these plans are a set
percentage of employees’ annual income and may be subject to certain vesting requirements.

The Company's subsidiaries also provide post-retirement health, dental and life insurance
benefits to eligible employees, advisors and their dependents. Retirees share in the cost of
benefits through deductibles, co-insurance and caps on benefits. As the amount of some of the
post-retirement benefits other than pensions depend on future salary levels and future cost
escalation, the projected benefit method prorated on services has been used to determine the
accrued benefit obligation. These post-retirement benefits are not pre-funded and the amount of
the obligation for these benefits is included in other liabilities and is supported by general assets.
The recognized current cost of post-retirement non-pension benefits is charged to earnings. In
2005, the terms of the post-retirement health, dental and life insurance plans were amended. The
amendment reduced the level of post-retirement benefits to be provided to certain active
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employees and revised the eligibility requirements for receiving benefits for certain other active
employees. This resulted in a negative past service cost which is being amortized over the
average remaining service lives of these certain active employees. In 2005, a curtailment was
recognized to reflect the impact of the changes in the Canadian plans’ eligibility requirements.

Past service costs for pension plans and other post-retirement benefits are amortized over the
period in which the economic benefit is realized, usually over the expected average remaining
service life of the affected employee/advisor group. Transiticnal assets and transitional
obligations are amortized over the expected average remaining service life of the
employee/advisor group. Prior years' cumulative experience gains or losses in excess of the
greater of 10% of the beginning of year plan assets and accrued benefit obligation are amortized
over the expected average remaining service life of the employee/advisor group.

Subsidiaries of the Company have declared partial windups in respect of certain Ontario defined
benefit pension plans which will not likely be completed for some time. The partial windups could
involve the distribution of the amount of actuarial surplus, if any, attributable to the wound up
portion of the plans. However, many issues remain unclear, including the basis of surplus
measurement and entitlement, and the method by which any surplus distribution would be
implemented. In addition to the regulatory proceedings involving these partial windups, a related
proposed class action proceeding has been commenced in Ontario related to one of the partial
windups. Based on information presently known, due to the significant uncertainty with regard to
the issues, no reasonable estimate of the outcome can be made. Accordingly, the Company’s
subsidiaries have not established a provision for these matters. It is not expected that these
matters will have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the Company.

The following tables reflect the financial position of the Company’s contributory and non-
contributory defined benefit pension plans at December 31, 2006 and 2005:




GREAT-WEST

LIFECOx

32

(a)

(b)

Costs Recognized
All Other post-retirement
pension plansg benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
Amounts arising from events in the period
Defined benefit service cost $ 87 3 81 6 $ 15
Defined contribution service cost 11 11 - -
Employee contributions {11) {(10) - -
Employer service cost 87 82 6 15
Past service cost (160} 6 - (103)
Interest cost on accrued benefit obligation 158 161 21 29
Actual return on plan assets (337} {346) - -
Actuarial {gain) loss on accrued benefit obligation 48 230 (14) 78
Curtailment gain (1) - - (6}
Seltlement loss 3 5 - -
Cost incurred {204) 138 13 13
Adjustments to reflect costs recognized
Difference between actual and expected return
on plan assets 159 165 - -
Difference between actuarial gains {losses) arising
during the pericd and actuarial gains (losses)
amortized (38) {225} 18 (74}
Amortization of transitional obligations 1 1 - -
Difference between past service costs arising in
period and past service costs amortized 165 (N (12) 100
Decrease in valuation allowance (2} (11) - -
Net benefit cost recognized for the period $ 81 $ 67 19 3 39
Status

Defined benefit

Other post-retirement

pension ptans benefits

2006 2005 2006 2005
Fair value of plan assets $ 3,218 $ 2,898 - $ -
Accrued benefit obligation (3,031) (2,995) {398) (402)
Funded status 187 (97) {398) (402)
Employer contributions after measurement date 4 7 1 1
Unamortized past service costs (140) 25 {108} (120}
Unamortized net losses 105 221 69 88
Unamortized transitional obligation 4 5 - -
Valuation allowance (55) (57) - -
Accrued benefit asset (liability) $ 105 $ 104 {436) 8 {433)
Recorded in:
Other assets $ 189 $ 179 - $ -
Other liabilities {84) (75) {436) {433}
Accrued benefit asset (liability) $ 105 $ 104 {436) 3 {433)
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(c)

(d)

Plans with Accrued Benefit Obligations in Excess of Plan Assets

Defined benefit Other post-retirement
pension plans benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005

Plans With Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets $ 684 $ 1818
Accrued benefit obligation (858) (2.075)
Pian deficit ‘ $ (174) $ (257)
Plans Without Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets $ - $ - $ - $ -
Accrued benefit obligation (191) {195) (398) (402)
Plan deficit $ (191} § (195 $ (398) % (402)

The above plans’ assets and accrued benefit obligations are disclosed separately as the
accrued benefit obligations exceed the fair value of the plans’ assets. These amounts have
been included in previously aggregated resuits.

Measurement and Valuation

Measurement date is November 30. The dates of actuarial valuations for funding purposes
for the funded defined benefit pension plans (weighted by accrued benefit obligation) are:

Most racent valuation % of plans

December 31, 2003 25%
April 1, 2004 5%
December 31, 2004 33%
December 31, 2005 37%
Next required valuation % of plans

December 31, 2006 32%
April 1, 2007 5%
December 31, 2007 45%
December 31, 2008 18%

The fair value of assets is used to determine the expected return on assets.
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(e)

N

Cash Payments
All Other post-retirement
pension plans benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
Contributions - Funded defined benefit plans $ 74 $ 32 $ - $ -
- Funded defined contribution plans 11 11 - -
Benefits paid for unfunded plans 6 6 17 16
Total cash payment $ 9% $ 43 § 17 $ 16
Reconciliations
Defined benefit Other post-retiroment
pension plans benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
{i) Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 2,995 3 2712 $ 402 $ 479
Adjustment to opening balance - 1 - -
Employer current service cost 76 71 & 15
Employee contributions 1 10 - -
Interest on accrued benefit obligation 158 161 21 29
Actuarial {gains) losses 46 230 {14) 78
Benefits paid (133) {122) {n (16)
Past service cost (160) 6 - (103)
Curtailment (1) - - (81)
Settlement {15) (14) - -
Foreign exchange rate changes 54 (60) - 1
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year $ 3,031 $ 2995 $ 398 3 402
(i) Fair value of assets, beginning of year $ 2,898 $ 2689 § - $ -
Adjustment fo opening balance - 2 - -
Employee contributicns 1 10 - -
Employer contributions 83 32 17 16
Retum on plan assets 337 346 - -
Benefits paid (133) {122) (17} (16)
Settlement {18) (18) - -
Foreign exchange rate changes 40 41} - -
Fair value of assets, end of year $ 3,218 § 2808 $ - 5 -
(g) Asset Allocation by Major Category Weighted by Plan Assets
Defined benefit
pension plans
2006 2005
Equity securities 52% 51%
Debt securities 36% 38%
Real estate 5% 4%
All other assets 7% 7%
100% 100%




35
GREAT-WEST

LIFECOx

(h)

No pian assets are directly invested in the Company’s or related parties’ securities. Nominal
amounts may be invested in the Company’s or related parties’ securities through investment in
pooled funds.

Significant Assumptions

Defined banofit Other post-retiroment
pension plans benefits
2006 2005 - 2006 2005
Woelghted averago assumptions used to determine benefit cost
Discount rate 5.26% 5.94% 5.27T% 6.22%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 6.19% 6.83% - -
Rate of compensation increase 4.21% 4 .89% 4.31% 5.01%

Waeighted average assumptions used to detarmine accrued benefit obligation
Discount rate 5.12% 5.26% 5.05% 527%
Rate of compensation increase 4.13% 4.21% 4.22% 4.31%

Woeighted average healthcare trend rates
In determining the expected cost of health care benefils, health care costs were assumed to increase
at the initial trend rate which would gradually decrease to an ultimate trend rate.

Initial health care trend rate 6.74% 7.17%
Ultimate health care trend rate 4.75% 4.73%
Initial year 2007 2005
Year ultimate trend rate is reached 2011 2010

Impact of Changes to Assumed Health Care Rates — Other Post-Retirement Benefits

Impact on end of Impacton
year accrued post-retirement
post-retirement benefit service
benefit obligation and interest cost
2006 2005 2006 2005
1% increase in assumed health care cost trend rate $ 44 $ 44 $ 3 $ 8

1% decrease in assumed health care cost trend rate $ (35} $ (37) § (3) $ (6}
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17.

Earnings per Common Share
The following tabie provides the reconciliation between basic and diluted earnings per common
share:

2006 2005

a) Eamings

Net income - common shareholders $ 1,875 $ 1,742
b) Number of common shares

Average number of commen shares outstanding 891,050,178 890,947,683

Add:

-Potential exercise of outstanding stock options 6,675,663 7,383,324

Average number of common shares outstanding - diluted basis 897,725,841 898,331,007
Earnings per common share

Basic $ 2.104 $ 1.955

Diluted $ 2.089 $ 1.939

Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, Great-West Life provided insurance benefits to other
companies within the Power Financial Corporation, Lifeco's parent, group of companies. In all
cases, transactions were at market terms and conditions.

During the year, Great-West Life provided to and received from IGM Financial Inc. and its
subsidiaries (IGM), a member of the Power Financial Corporation group of companies, certain
adminisirative services. Great-West Life also provided life insurance, annuity and disability
insurance products under a distribution agreement with IGM. Londan Life provided distribution
services to IGM. All transactions were provided on terms and conditions at least as favourable as
market terms and conditions.

At December 31, 20086, 9,205,933 shares of IGM were held by the Company as an investment
(9,206,243 in 2005). The fair value of the investment in IGM at December 31, 2006 is $452 ($425 in
20065). At December 31, 2006 the Company held $13 ($13 in 2005) principal amount of debentures
issued by IGM.

During 2006, Great-West Life, London Life, Canada Life and segregated funds maintained by
London Life purchased residential mortgages of $292 from IGM ($123 in 2005). Great-West Life
and London Life sold residential mortgages of $4 ($6 in 2005) to segregated funds maintained by
Great-West Life and $96 (346 in 2005) to segregated funds maintained by London Life. London
Life and Canada Life purchased commercial mortgages of $32 from segregated funds maintained
by London Life. All transactions were at market terms and conditions.
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19.

During 2006, GWL&A received $76 of funds ($440 in 2005) that were invested by affiliated mutual
funds and other investment options of the Company’s segregated funds. The Company
recorded this transaction as premium income in the general account. All transactions were
market terms and conditions.

Income Taxes
(a) Future income taxes consist of the following taxable temporary differences on:

2008 2005

Policy liabilities $ 502 $ 662
Porifolio investments (362) (432)
QOther (205) (184)
Future income taxes receivable (payable) $ (65) b 46
Recorded in:

Other assets $ 304 $ 363
Other liabilities {369) (317)

$ (65) $ 46

(b) The Company's effective income tax rate is derived as follows:

2006 2005

Combined basic Canadian federal and provincial tax rate 350 % 355 %
Increase {decrease) in the income tax rate resulting from:

Non-taxable investment income (4.5) (5.4)

Lower effective tax rates on income not subject to

tax in Canada (4.8) (5.0

Large corporations tax - 0.2

Miscellaneous (2.4) {1.1}

Impact of rate changes on future income taxes {0.6) -
Effective income tax rate applicable to current year 22.7 % 242 %

The 2006 effective income tax rate reflects the impact of the reduction in Canadian Federal
and Provincial income tax rates on future income taxes.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had tax loss carryforwards, primarily in Canada, totalling
$1,225 ($1,087 in 2005). The future tax benefit of these tax loss carryforwards has been
recognized, to the extent that they are more likely than not to be realized, in the amount of
$356 ($386 in 2005) in future tax assets. The Company will realize this benefit in future years
through a reduction in current income taxes payable.

Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of managing exposure to fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates,
and to market risks, the Company is an end user of various derivative financial instruments that
are not reported on the balance sheet. Contracts are either exchange traded or over-the-counter
traded with counterparties that are highly rated financial institutions.
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(a) The following table summarizes the Company’s derivative portfolio and related credit

exposure!
Maximum Future Credit Risk
Notional credit cradit risk weighted
2008 amount risk exposure  equivalent equivalent
Interest rate contracts
Futures - long $ 146 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Futures - short 62 . - - .
interest rate swaps 1,851 109 12 121 35
Options purchased 624 82 9 71 14
2,683 171 21 192 49
Foreign exchange contracts
Forward contracts 1,024 3 10 13 3
Cross-currency swaps 4,346 437 285 722 143
5,370 440 295 735 146
Other derivative contracts
Equity contracts 177 12 9 21 4
Credit default swaps 88 - - - 2
265 12 9 21 6
$ 8318 $ 623 $ 325 $ 948 $ 201
Maximurm Future Credit Risk
Notional credit credit risk weighted
2005 amount risk exposure equivalent equivalent
Interest rate contracts
Futures - long $ 30 5 - $ - $ - $ -
Futures - short 308 - - - -
Interest rate swaps 1,696 113 1" 124 356
Options written 26 - - - -
Options purchased 547 72 8 80 15
2,607 185 19 204 51
Foreign exchange contracts
Forward contracts 775 1" 8 19 4
Cross-currency swaps 3,827 534 251 785 159
4,602 545 269 804 163
Other derivative contracts
Equity contracts 321 7 17 24 5
Credit default swaps 88 1 7 i) 1
409 8 24 3z 6

$ 7618 $ 738 $ 302 $ 1.040 $ 220




39
GREAT-WEST

LIFECOx-

(b) The following table provides the use, notional amount and estimated fair value of the
Company’s derivative portfolio:

Contracts held for asset/labliity management Contracts held for other purposes
Notional amaunt Total National amount Total
1yearor Over5 Estimatod 1yearor Overb estimated
2008 less 1-6years _ ysars  falrvalue lass 15 ysars  years falr value
Intorest rate contracts
Futures - fong $ 148 § - $ - $ - $ - § - $ -
Futures - short 62 - - - . - - -
Interest rate swaps 802 182 767 96 - -
Options purchased - - 524 §2 - -
1,110 182 1,391 158 - - .
Forelgn exchange contracts
Forward contracts 40 - - - 984 . - (47
Cross-currency swaps 267 850 3,154 339 23 52 - 8
307 850 3,154 339 1,007 52 - {39)
Other derivative contracts
Equity contracts 181 - 16 (5) . - - -
Credit default swaps - [ - - - - - -
181 []:] 18 (5) . - - .
$§ 1578 § 1120 $ 4581 § 452 $ 1,007 § 52 § - $ {38)
Contracts held for assettiability management Contracts held for other purposes
Notional amount Total Notional amount Total
1 year or Qver 5 Estimated 1 yaar or Qver s estimated
2005 less 1-5 years years {air value less 1-5 years years fair value
Interesi raie contracts
Futures - long 5 3 § - $ - $ - $ - 3 - 5 - $ -
Futures - short 308 - - - - - - -
Interest rate swaps 801 263 632 97 - - - -
Options written 26 - - - - - - -
Options purchased - - 547 72 - - - -
1,165 263 1,179 169 - - - -
Foreign exchange contracts
Forward contracts il - - - 736 - - &
Cross-cumency swaps 123 987 2,622 475 20 75 - 21
162 987 2,622 475 756 75 - 27
Other derivative contracts
Equity contracts 17 . - 7 150 - - {4)
Credit default swaps - a8 - 1 - - - -
171 88 - [ 150 - - (4)
$ 1498 § 1,338 $ 3801 $§ 662 $ 908 § 7% $ - $ 23

(c) Interest Rate Contracts
Interest rate swaps and options are used as part of a portfolio of assets to manage interest
rate risk associated with actuarial liabilities. Interest rate swap agreements require the
periodic exchange of payments without the exchange of the notional principal amount on
which payments are based. Interest income is adjusted to reflect the interest receivable
and interest payable under the interest rate swaps. Realized gains and losses associated
with these derivatives are deferred and amortized to net investment income.

Wiritten call options are used with interest rate swaps to effectively convert convertible, fixed
rate bonds to non-convertible variable rate securities as part of the Company’s overall
asset/liability matching program. The written call option hedges the Company's exposure to
the convertibility feature on the bonds. Any premiums received are recognized in net
investment income over the life of the options. Gains and losses realized upon exercise of
the options are amontized into income over the remaining term of the underlying security.
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Put options are purchased to protect against significant drops in equity markets. Premiums
paid are amortized to net investment income over the life of the options. Gains and losses
realized upon exercise of the options are recognized in net investment income.

Foreign Exchange Contracts
Cross-currency swaps are used in combination with other investments to manage foreign

currency risk associated with actuarial liabilities. Under these swaps principal amounts and
fixed and floating interest payments may be exchanged in different currencies. The carrying
value on the balance sheet is adjusted to reflect the amount of the currency swapped and
interest income is adjusted to reflect the interest receivable and interest payable under the
swaps. The Company also enters into certain foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge
certain product liabilities and to hedge a portion of the translation of its foreign revenues as
well as a portion of both operating results and net investment in its foreign operations. The
realized and unrealized gains and losses on contracts for product liabilities are included in
net investment income offsetting the respective realized and unrealized gains and losses on
the underlying product liabilities and a corresponding market value adjustment in the
amounts paid or credited to policyholders. The realized gains and losses on contracts
related to revenues are recognized in net investment income and in 2006, gains net of tax
were $0 ($67 net of tax in 2005). The gains and losses on contracts related to net
investment in foreign operations are included in the currency translation account which is
part of capital stock and surplus. Hedge effectiveness is reviewed quarterly through critical
terms matching and correlation testing.

Other Derivative Contracts

Equity index swaps and futures are used to hedge certain product liabilities and are marked
to market with realized and unrealized gains and losses included in net investment income
offsetting the respective realized and unrealized gains and losses on the underlying product
liabilities and a corresponding market value adjustment in the amounts paid or credited to
policyholders. Equity index swaps are also used as substitutes for cash instruments and
are marked to market with realized and unrealized gains and losses included in net
investment income.

In addition, equity index swaps are used to hedge the market risk associated with certain
fee income. Realized gains and losses are recognized in fee income. Hedge effectiveness
is reviewed quarterly through correlation testing.

The Company uses credit derivatives to manage its credit exposures and for risk
diversification in its investment portfolio. Unrealized gains and losses are deferred on the
balance sheet and are recognized in net investment income in the period in which the gain
or loss on the underlying investment is recognized.
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20.

Acquisitions

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

{e)

N

During the second quarter of 2006, Canada Life, through its wholly owned United Kingdom
subsidiary, Canada Life Limited, reached an agreement to acquire the non-participating
payout annuity business of The Equitable Life Assurance Society in the United Kingdom.
Under the terms of the agreement, Canada Life Limited assumed this business on an
indemnity reinsurance basis with an effective date of January 1, 2006. The transfer closed on
February 9, 2007. The transaction resulted in an increase in funds held by ceding insurers and
a corresponding increase in policyholder liabilities of $10.2 biilion (£4.5 billion) on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2006.

On October 2, 2006, GWL&A acquired several parts of the full service-bundled, small and
midsized 401(k) as well as some defined benefit plan business from Metropolitan Life
Insurance Company and its affiliates (MetLife). The acquisition includes the associated
dedicated distribution group, including wholesalers, relationship managers and sales
associates, Under the terms of the agreement, GWL&A assumed the general account
business on a coinsurance basis and the segregated account business totaling $1.7 billion
(U.S. $1.5 billion) of policyholder liabilities on a modified-coinsurance basis with an effective
date of October 2, 2006. Arrangements are being made to transfer the policies to GWL&A
and the transfer is expected to take place over a three year period.

Under the modified-coinsurance agreement, MetLife retains the approximately $2.6 billion
(U.S. $2.3 billion) of segregated account assets and liabilities but cedes to GWL&A all of the
net profits and losses and related net cash flows. In addition, GWL&A acquired
approximately $3.9 billion (U.S. $3.4 billion) of participant account values for which it will
provide administrative services and recordkeeping functions and receive fee income.

On December 29, 2006, GWL&A acquired the full service-bundled, defined contribution
business from U.S. Bank. The acquired business primarily relates to the administration of
401(k) plans which represent more than $10.5 billion {U.S. $9.0 billion) in retirement plan
assets. The acquisition includes the retention of relationship managers and sales and client
service specialists.

On November 30, 2006, GWL&A acquired all outstanding common shares of Indiana
Healthcare Network, Inc. {(IHN).

On April 24, 2008, Crown Life Insurance Company (Crown Life) served notice, pursuant to the
terms of the 1699 acquisition of the majority of the insurance operations of Crown Life by
Canada Life, commencing a process under which Canada Life may be required to acquire the
common shares of Crown Life. This transaction is expected to close in the second quarter of
2007 and is not expected to have a material impact on the financial position of the Company.

During 2005, Canada Life, through its wholly owned United Kingdom subsidiary, Canada Life
Limited, acquired the assets and liabilities associated with the in-force annuity in payment
business of Phoenix and London Assurance Limited, part of the Resolution Life Group which
is based in the United Kingdom. The transaction resulted in an increase in invested assets
and a corresponding increase in policyholder liabilities of $4.4 billion on the consolidated
balance sheet.
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Reinsurance Transactions

(a) During the third quarter of 2006, GWL&A recaptured a reinsurance agreement on certain
blocks of group annuity business. The recaptured premiums of $562 associated with the
transaction have been recorded in the Summary of Consolidated Operations as an increase
in premium income with a corresponding increase to the change in actuarial liabilities. For
the Consolidated Balance Sheet, this transaction resulted in a reduction of $582 to funds
held under reinsurance contracts with a corresponding increase in policyholder liabilities.

{b) During 2006, Great-West Life and London Life recaptured 50% of a reinsurance agreement
on certain blocks of group life and long term disability business. The recaptured premiums
of $1,560 associated with the transaction have been recorded in the Summary of
Consolidated Operations as an increase to premium income with a corresponding increase
to the change in actuarial liabilities and provision for claims. For the Consolidated Balance
Sheet, this transaction resulted in a reduction of $1,671 to funds held under reinsurance
contracts with a corresponding increase in policyholder liabilities.

Contingent Liabilities

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to legal actions, including arbitrations and
proposed class actions, arising in the normal course of business. It is not expected that any of
these legal actions will have a material adverse effect on the consoclidated financial position of the
Company.

In addition, there are proposed class proceedings in Ontario regarding the participation of the
London Life and Great-West Life participating policyholder accounts in the financing of the
acquisition of LIG in 1997 by Great-West Life. It is difficult to predict the outcome of these
proceedings with certainty. However, based on information presently known, these proceedings
are not expected to have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the
Company.

Subsidiaries of the Company have declared partial windups in respect of certain Ontario defined
benefit pension plans which will not likely be completed for some time. The partial windups could
involve the distribution of the amount of actuarial surplus, if any, attributable to the wound up
portion of the plans. However, many issues remain unclear, including the basis of surplus
measurement and entittement, and the method by which any surplus distribution would be
implemented. In addition to the regulatory proceedings involving these partial windups, a related
proposed class action proceeding has been commenced in Ontario related to one of the partial
windups. Based on information presently known, due to the significant uncertainty with regard to
the issues, no reasonable estimate of the outcome can be made. Accordingly, the Company’s
subsidiaries have not established a provision for these matters. It is not expected that these
matters will have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the Company.
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A subsidiary of the Company is involved in an ongoing arbitration relating to the interpretation of
certain provisions of reinsurance treaties. In addition, certain reinsurance client loss statements
relating to other reinsurance treaties are in dispute and may become subject to arbitration or
other legal action in the future. While there is retrocession coverage in place for these other
treaties, payment of amounts due under these retrocession treaties is contingent upon collection
by the retrocessionaire under a separate financial arrangement with another party. We
understand that the provisions of this separate financial arrangement are also in dispute. The
Company's subsidiary has established an actuarial provision for these two matters. Based on
information presently known, it is difficult to predict the outcome of these matters with certainty.
These matters are not expected to have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
pasition of the Company.

Commitments
(a) Syndicated Letters of Credit

Clients residing in the United States are required pursuant to their insurance laws to obtain
letters of credit issued on LRG's behalf from approved banks in order to further secure
LRG’s obligations under certain reinsurance contracts.

LRG has a syndicated letter of credit facility providing U.S. $650 in letters of credit capacity.
The facility was arranged in 2005 for a five year term expiring November 15, 2010. Under
the terms and conditions of the facility, collateralisation may be required if a default under
the letter of credit agreement occurs. LRG has issued U.S. $620 in letters of credit under
the facility as at December 31, 2006 ($611 at December 31, 2005).

In addition, LRG has other bilateral letter of credit facilities totalling U.S. $18 (2005 - U.S.
$18).

{b) Other Letters of Credit

Canada Life issues letters of credit in the normal course of business. Letters of credit in the
amount of $2 were outstanding at December 31, 2006 ($2 at December 31, 2005), none of
which have been drawn upon at that date.

{c} Lease Obligations

The Company enters into operating leases for office space and certain equipment used in the
normal course of operations. Lease payments are charged to operations over the period of use.
The future minimum lease payments in aggregate and by year are as follows:

2012 and
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 thereafter  Total
Future lease payments 3§ 93 84 69 39 22 62 $ 369
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Segmented Information

In Canada, Great-West Life and its operating subsidiaries, London Life and Canada Life offer a
broad range of financial and benefit plan sclutions for individuals, families, businesses and
organizations through a network of Freedom 55 Financial and Great-West Life financial security
advisors, through a multi-channel netwark of brokers, advisors and financial institutions.

In Europe, Canada Life is broadly organized along geographically defined market segments and
offers a full range of protection and wealth management products and reinsurance. The Europe
segment is comprised of two distinct businesses: Insurance & Annuities, which consists of
operating divisions in the United Kingdom, Isle of Man, Repubtic of Ireland and Germany; and
Reinsurance, which operates primarily in the United States, Barbados and Ireland. Great-West
Life provides reinsurance in North America and Europe, through Canada Life and its subsidiaries,
as well as through LRG.

In the United States, GWL&A is a leader in providing self-funded employee health plans for
businesses and in meeting retirement income needs of employees in the public/non-profit and
corporate sectors. It serves its customers nationwide through a range of health care and financial
products and services marketed through brokers, consultants and group representatives, and
through partnerships with other financial institutions.

The Lifeco Corporate segment represents the Lifeco holding company activities and transactions
that are not directly attributable to measurement of the business segments of the Company.
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(a) Consolidated Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2006

United Lifeco
Canada States Europe Corporate Total

Income: .

Premium income $ 8148 $ 3,352 $ 71223 $ - $ 18,724

Net investment income 2,789 1,393 1,710 18 5910

Fee and other income 895 1,182 611 - 2,688
Total income 11,833 5,927 9,544 18 27,322
Benefits and expenses:

Paid or credited to policyholders 8,231 3,995 8,282 - 20,508

Other 2,204 1,198 686 4 4,092

Amortization of finite life intangible assets 14 - 4 - 18
Net operating income

before income taxes 1,384 734 572 14 2,704
Income taxes 7 210 59 29 615
Nat income before non-controlling

interests 1,067 524 513 (15) 2,088

Non-controlling interests 132 13 17 - 162
Net income - shareholders 935 511 496 (15) 1,927
Perpetual preferred share dividends 42 - 10 - 52
Net income - common shareholders $ 893 $ 511 $ 486 $ (15) $ 1,875
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For the year ended December 31, 2005
United Lifeco
Canada States Eurape Corporate Total

Income:

Premium income $ 6,135 3 2,769 $ 7,154 $ - $ 16,058

Net investment income 2,779 1,467 1,149 (6) 5,389

Fee and other income 774 1,169 481 - 2,424
Total income 9,688 5,405 8,784 _ (6) 23,871
Benefits and expenses:

Paid or credited to policyholders 6,430 3,362 7,643 - 17,435

Other 2,053 1,191 659 4 3,907

Amortization of finite life intangible assets 14 - 4 - 18

Restructuring costs - - - 22 22
Net operating income

before income taxes 1,191 852 478 (32) 2,489
Income taxes 284 245 68 4 501
Net income before non-controlling

interests 907 607 410 (386) 1,888

Non-controlling interests 101 1 11 - 113
Net income - shareholders 806 606 399 (36) 1,775
Perpetual preferred share dividends 33 - - - a3
Nat income - common shareholders 3 773 3 606 $ 399 $ (36) $ 1,742
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(b) Consolidated Total Assets
2006
United
Canada States Europe Total
Assets
Invested assets $ 43,718 $ 275686 $ 26,017 $ 97,421
Goodwill and intangible
assets 4,980 277 1,762 7,019
Other assets 1,225 1,367 13,431 16,023
Total assets $ 49,923 $ 29,330 $ 41,210 $ 120,463
——————— —_—e———
2005
United
Canada States Europe Total
Assets
Invested assets $ 42587 $ 26,153 $ 20,640 $ 89,380
Goodwill and intangible
assets 4,989 54 1,737 6,780
Other assets 1,613 1,127 3,261 6,001
Total assets $ 49189 $ 27,334 $ 25,638 $ 102,161
25. Subsequent Event

On February 1, 2007, Lifeco announced that it had entered into agreements with Marsh &
McLennan Companies, Inc. whereby Lifeco will acquire the asset management business of
Putnam Investment Trust (Putnam), and Great-West Life will acquire Putnam’s 25% interest in
T.H. Lee Partners for approximately $410 (U.S. $350). The parties will make an election under
section 338(h)(10) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code that will resuit in a tax benefit that Lifeco
intends to securitize for approximately $644 (U.S. $550). In aggregate these transactions
represent a value of approximately $4.6 billion (U.S. $3.9 billion).

Funding for the transaction will come from internal resources as well as from proceeds of an
issue of Lifeco common shares of no more than $1.2 billion, the issuance of debentures and
hybrids, a bank credit facility, and an acquisition tax benefit securitization. The transaction is
expected to close in the second quarter of 2007, subject to regulatory approval and certain other
conditions.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of,
Great-West Lifeco Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Great-West Lifeco Inc. as at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the summaries of consclidated operations, the consolidated
statements of surplus and the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In our opinion, these consclidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

o & el £

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
February 15, 2007

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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LIFECOINC. Management's Discussion and Analysis

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) presents management’s view of the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of Great-West Lifeco Inc. (Lifeco or the Company) in 2006 compared with 2005. The
MD&A provides an overall discussion, followed by analyses of the performance of its three major reportable
segments: Canada, United States and Europe.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This report contains some forward-looking statements about the Company, including its business operations,
strategy and expected financial performance and condition. Forward-looking statements include statements that are
predictive in nature, depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, or include words such as “expects,”
“anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” "estimates” or negative versions thereof and similar expressions. In
addition, any statement that may be made concerning future financial performance (including revenues, earnings or
growth rates), ongoing business strategies or prospects, possible future Company action with respect to anticipated
benefits of the transaction with Putnam Investments Trust, as well as the expected closing of the transaction and
the expectation that the transaction will be accretive to earnings are also forward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements are based on current expectations and projections about future events and are inherently
subject to, among other things, risks, uncertainties and assumptions about the Company, economic factors and the
financial services industry generally, including the insurance and mutua! fund industries. They are not guarantees of
future performance, and actual events and results could differ materially from those expressed or implied by
forward-looking statements made by the Company due to, but not limited to, important factors such as sales levels,
premium income, fee income, expense levels, mortality experience, morbidity experience, policy lapse rates and
taxes, as well as general economic, political and market factors in North America and internationally, interest and
foreign exchange rates, global equity and capital markets, business competition, technological change, changes in
government regulations, unexpected judicial or regulatory proceedings, catastrophic events, and the Company's
ability to complete strategic transactions and integrate acquisitions. The reader is cautioned that the foregoing list
of important factors is not exhaustive, and there may be other factors listed in other filings with securities regulators,
including factors set out under “Risk Management and Control Practices” in the Company's Management
Discussion and Analysis, which, along with other filings, is available for review at www.sedar.com. The reader is
also cautioned to consider these and other factors carefully and to not ptace undue reliance on forward-looking
statements. Other than as specifically required by applicable law, the Company has no intention to update any
forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Based on their evaluations as of December 31, 2008, the President and Chief Executive Officer, and the Vice-
President, Finance, Canada, the Vice-President, Finance, United States and the Vice-President, Finance, Europe
have concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures are effective at the reasonable assurance
level in ensuring that information relating to the Company which is required to be disclosed in reports filed under
provincial and territoriat securities legislation is: {(a) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the provincial and territorial securities legislation, and (b) accumulated and communicated to
the Company's senior management, including the President and Chief Executive Officer, and the Vice-President,
Finance, Canada, the Vice-President, Finance, United States and the Vice-President, Finance, Europe, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company's internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
Canadian GAAP. During the fourth quarter of 2008, there have been no changes in the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's
internal controf over financial reporting.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

This report contains some non-GAAP financial measures. Terms by which non-GAAP financial measures are
identified include but are not limited to “earnings before restructuring charges”, "earnings or sales on a constant
currency basis", "currency translation impact”, "earnings adjusted for the negative impact of currency”, “adjusted net
income”, “earnings before adjustments™ and other similar expressions. Non-GAAP financial measures are used to
provide management and investors with additional measures of performance. However, non-GAAP financial
measures do not have standard meanings prescribed by GAAP and are not directly comparable to similar
measures used by other companies. Refer to the appropriate reconciliations of these non-GAAP financial

measures to measures prescribed by GAAP.

SEGREGATED FUNDS DEPOSITS AND SELF-FUNDED PREMIUM EQUIVALENTS (ASO CONTRACTS)

The financial statements of a life insurance company do not include the assets, liabilities, deposits and withdrawals
of segregated funds or the claims payments related to administrative services only (ASO) group health contracts.
However, the Company does earn fee and other income related to these contracts. Both segregated funds and
ASO contracts are an important aspect of the overall business of the Company and should be considered when
comparing volumes, size and trends.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of Lifeco, which are the basis for data presented in this report, have been
prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and are presented in
Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY

Through its operating subsidiaries, Lifeco conducts business in multiple currencies. The four primary currencies are
the Canadian dollar, the United States dollar, the British pound, and the euro. Throughout this document, foreign
currency assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian dollars at the market rate at the end of the financial
period. All income and expense items are translated at an average year-to-date rate. The rates employed are:

Period ended Balance sheet Operations
Assets & liabilities Income & expenses Net effective rate
United States dollar
December 31, 2006 $1.17 $1.13 $1.1300
September 30, 2006 $1.12 $1.13 $1.1300
December 31, 2005 $1.17 $1.21 $1.3152
September 30, 2005 $1.16 $1.22 $1.3176
British pound
December 31, 2006 $2.28 $2.09 $2.0900
September 30, 2006 $2.09 $2.06 $2.0600
December 31, 2005 $2.00 $2.21 $2.3272
September 30, 2005 $2.05 $2.26 $2.3214
Euro
December 31, 2006 $1.54 $1.42 $1.4200
September 30, 2006 $1.41 $1.41 $1.4100
December 31, 2005 $1.38 $1.51 $1.6159
September 30, 2005 $1.40 $1.55 $1.6180

The net effective rate for the translation of foreign currency operations reflects the translation of foreign currency
income and expenses at the average daily rate for the year-to-date period together with realized gains and iosses
associated with forward foreign exchange contracts used to manage the transtation volatility. During 2005, gains net
of tax of $67 million were recognized on these contracts. There were no contracts in place for 20086.
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BUSINESSES OF LIFECO

Lifeco has operations in Canada, the United States and Europe through The Great-West Life Assurance Company
(Great-West Life), London Life Insurance Company (London Life), The Canada Life Assurance Company (Canada
Life), and Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company (GWL&A).

In Canada, Great-West Life and its operating subsidiaries, London Life and Canada Life (owned through holding
companies London Insurance Group (LIG) and Canada Life Financial Corporation (CLFC), respectively), offer a
broad portfolio of financial and benefit plan solutions for individuals, families, businesses and organizations, through
a network of Freedom 55 Financial™ and Great-West Life financial security advisors, and through a multi-channel
hetwork of brokers, advisors and financial institutions.

In the U.S., GWLEA is a leader in providing self-funded employee health plans for businesses and in meeting the
retirement income needs of employees in the public/non-profit and corporate sectors. It serves its customers
nationwide through a range of health care and financial products and services marketed through brokers,
consuitants and group representatives, and through partnerships with other financial institutions.

In Europe, Canada Life is broadly organized along geographically defined market segments and offers protection
and wealth management products and reinsurance. The Eurcpe segment is comprised of two distinct business
units: Insurance & Annuities, which consists of operations in the United Kingdom, Isle of Man, Republic of Ireland
and Germany; and Reinsurance, which operates primarily in the United States, Barbados and Ireland. Reinsurance
products are provided through Canada Life, London Reinsurance Group Inc. (LRG) and their subsidiaries.

Lifeco currently has no other holdings and carries on no business or activities unrelated to its holdings in Great-
West Life, GWL&A and their subsidiaries. Lifeco is not restricted to investing in the shares of Great-West Life,
GWL&A and their subsidiaries and may make other investments in the future.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
In the normal course of business, Great-West Life provided insurance benefits to other companies within the Power
Financial Corporation group of companies. In all cases, transactions were at market terms and conditions.

During the year, Great-West Life provided to and received from IGM Financial Inc. and its subsidiaries (IGM), a
member of the Power Financial Corporation group of companies, certain administrative services. Great-West Life
also provided life insurance, annuity and disability insurance products under a distribution agreement with IGM.
London Life provided distribution services to IGM. All transactions were provided on terms and conditions at least
as favourable as market terms and conditions.

At December 31, 2006, 9,205,933 shares of IGM were held by the Company as an investment (9,206,243 in 2005).
The fair value of the investment in IGM at December 31, 2006 is $452 million ($425 million in 2005). At December 31,
2006 the Company held $13 million {$13 mitlion in 2005) principal amount of debentures issued by IGM.

During 2008, Great-West Life, London Life, Canada Life and segregated funds maintained by London Life
purchased residential mortgages of $292 million from IGM ($123 million in 2005). Great-West Life and London Life
sold residential mortgages of $4 million ($6 million in 2005} to segregated funds maintained by Great-West Life
and $96 million ($46 million in 2005) to segregated funds maintained by London Life. London Life and Canada Life
purchased commercial mortgages of $32 million from segregated funds maintained by London Life. All
transactions were at market terms and conditions.

During 2006, GWL&A received $76 million of funds {$440 million in 2005) that were invested by affiliated mutual
funds and other investment options of the Company's segregated funds. The Company recorded this transaction
as premium income in the general account. All transactions were at market terms and conditions.
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CONSOLIDATED QPERATING RESULTS

Selected Consolidated Financial Information
{in $ millions, except per share amounts)

For the three months For the twelve months
endad December 31 ended December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Premiums.
Life insurance, guaranteed annuities
and insured health products $ 6,253 % 4,528 38% $ 18,724 $ 16,058 17%
Self-funded premium equivalents
{ASQ contracts) 1,849 1,850 - 7,386 7,535 -2%
Segregated funds deposits:
Individual preducts 2,415 1,861 30% 8,420 6,254 35%
Group products 1,399 1,268 10% 5,240 5,040 4%
Total premiums and deposits 11,916 9,507 25% 39,770 34,887 14%
Fee and other income 708 616 15% 2,688 2,424 1%
Paid or credited to policyholders 6,677 4,888 37% 20,508 17,435 18%
Net income - common shareholders
before adjustments (1) 491 469 5% 1,875 1.802 4%
Adjustments after tax (1) - 13 - - 60 -
Net income - commaon shareholders 491 456 8% 1,875 1,742 8%
Por common share
Basic eamings before adjustments (1) $ 0.550 $ 0.526 5% $ 2104 § 2.022 4%
Adjustments after tax (1) - 0.014 - - 0.067 -
Basic earnings after adjustments 0.550 0.512 7% 2.104 1.955 8%
Dividends paid 0.240 0.210 14% 0.9275 0.810 15%
Book value 11.24 9.76 15%
Return on commeon shareholders' equity
Net income before adjustments (1) 20.1% 20.9%
Net income 20.1% 20.7%
At December 31
Total assets $ 120463 $ 102,161 18%
Segregated funds net assets 90,146 75,158 20%
Total assets under administration $ 210,609 $ 177319 19%
Share capital and surplus $ 114 8 9,489 17%

{13 Net income, basic earnings per common share and return on common shareholders' equity are presented before the following adjustments as a non-GAAP
financial measure of earmings performance:
(a} Following the acquisition of CLFC by the Company, a plan was developed to restructure and exit selected operations of CLFC. Shareholder net income for
the year ended December 31, 2005 includes restructuring costs relaled to the acquisition of $17 million after tax, or $0.019 per common share.
{b} Fourth quarter 2005 results include a charge of $13 million after tax, or $0.014 per common share, related to a provision for expected losses arising from
hurricane damage in 2005. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, results include a charge of $43 million after tax, or $0.048 per common share,
related o a provision for expected losses arising from hurricane damage in 2005.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Quarterty financial information

Total Not income - Adjusted net income -
revenue ¢ommon shareholders common sharehelders (1)
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Total por share per share Total per share per share

2006 Fourth quarter $ 8453 $ 4 $ 0.550 $ 0547 $ 4 $ 0.550 $ 0.547
Third quarter 6,567 477 0.537 0.532 477 0.537 0.532
Second quarter 6,627 461 0.516 0.513 461 0.516 0.513

First guarter 5675 446 0.501 0.497 448 0.501 0.497

2005  Fourth quarter $ 6518 § 456 $ 0512 $ 0509 $ 469 $ 0526 $ 0523
Third quarter 5,188 421 0.472 0.468 455 0.510 0.506
Second quarter 571 446 0.500 0.496 455 0.511 0.506

First quarter 6,434 419 0.471 0.466 423 0.475 0.471

(1) Adjusted netincome is presented as a non-GAAP financial measure of eamings performance before restructuring
costs related to the acquisition of CLFC and incurred during the period, and provisions for expected losses arising
from hurricane damage in 2005. Refer to "Non-GAAP Financial Measures” section of this report,

Adjustments: After-tax restructuring costs related to the acquisition of CLFC and reinsurance claim provisions
arising from hurricane activity along the Gulf Coast of the United States in 2005.

Net income
common shareholders
Basic Diluted

Total per share per share

2005 Fourth quarter $ 13 $ 0.014 $ 0014
Third quarter 34 0.038 0.038
Second quarter 9 0.011 0.010

First quarter 4 0.004 0.005

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

Lifeco's net income attributable to common shareholders was $491 million for the fourth quarter of 2006, compared
to $456 million reported a year ago, an increase of 8%. On a per share basis, this represents $0.550 per common
share ($0.547 diluted) for the fourth quarter of 2006 compared to $0.512 per common share ($0.509 diluted) a year
ago.

The 2005 results include restructuring charges and provisions for expected losses arising from hurricane damage
which impacted earnings per common share in the quarter by $0.014 and for the full year by $0.067. Excluding
these amounts, earnings per share for 2006 grew 5% in the quarter (11% on a constant currency basis), and 4% for
the full year (11% on a constant currency basis).

Canada - For the fourth quarter, net income attributable to common shareholders increased to $223 million
compared to $171 million in 2005. Group Insurance and Corporate each increased $8 million, while Individual
Insurance & Investment Products (IIIP) increased $36 million.

United States — For the fourth quarter, net income attributable to common shareholders was $128 million
compared to $161 million in 2005. Financial Services increased US$4 million, Healthcare decreased US$6 million,
and Corporate decreased US$9 million. The remainder of the decrease was due to the strengthening of the
Canadian dollar.

Europe — For the fourth quarter, net income attributable to common shareholders increased 23% to $150 million
compared to $122 million in 2005. Insurance & Annuities decreased $14 million, Reinsurance increased $39

*I
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million, and Corporate increased $3 million. Excluding the unfavourable currency translation impact, results were
up 31%.

Lifeco Corporate — For the fourth quarter, Lifeco Corporate net income attributable to common shareholders was a
charge of $10 million compared to net income of $2 million in 2005.

Total revenue for the fourth quarter of 2006 was $8,453 million and was comprised of premium income of $6,253
million, net investment income of $1,494 million and fee and other income of $706 million. Total revenue for the
fourth quarter of 2005 was $6,518 million. It was comprised of premium income of $4,528 million, net investment
income of $1,374 million and fee and other income of $616 million.

Refer to each segment section for further detail.

Selected annual information
{in % millions, except per share amounts)
Years ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
Total ravenue $ 27,322 3 23,871 $ 21,871
Net income per common shareholder
Basic adjusted $ 2104 $ 2.022 $ 1.827
Basic 2,104 1.955 1.794
Diluted 2.089 1.939 1.778
Total assets
General fund assets $ 120,463 $ 102161 $ 85,851
Segregated funds net assets 90,146 75,158 69,033
Total assets under administration 210,609 177,319 164,884
Total liabilities $ 105,700 $ 89,130 $ 83,753
Dividends paid per share
Series D First Preferred $ 1.1750 3 1.1750 $ 1.1750
Series E First Preferred 1.2000 1.2000 1.2000
Series F First Preferred 1.4750 1.4750 1.4750
Series G First Preferred 1.3000 1.3000 0.38466
Series H First Preferred 1.21252 0.4559 -
Series | First Preferred 0.52474 - -
Class A Series 1 - - 1.0417
Common 0.9275 0.810 0.685

CONSOLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS

NET INCOME
Consolidated net income of Lifeco includes the net income of Great-West Life and its operating subsidiaries London
Life and Canada Life, and GWL&A, together with Lifeco's corporate results.

Lifeco’s net income attributable to common shareholders for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, was
$1.875 million compared to $1,742 million reported a year ago. On a per share basis, this result represents $2.104
per common share ($2.089 diluted) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, an increase of 8% (15% on a
constant currency basis) compared to $1.955 ($1.939 diluted) per common share for 2005.
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Net income - common shareholders

For the three months For the twalve months
anded December 31 ended December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2008 2005 % Change
Canada $ 223 § 171 30% $ 893 § 773 16%
United States 128 161 -20% 511 606 -16%
Europe 150 122 23% 486 399 22%
Lifeco Corporate
Total holding company {10} 2 {15) {19)
Restructuring costs - - - (7
Total Lifeco Corporate {10) 2 {15) (36)
Total Lifeco $ 491 % 456 8% $ 1875 % 1,742 8%

Canada — Consolidated net income increased $120 million or 16% to $893 million from $773 million in 2005. The
increase was due to a $41 million increase in Group Insurance, a $69 million increase in IlIP, and a $10 million
reduction of Corporate charges.

United States — Consclidated net income was $511 million compared to $606 million in 2005. Healthcare
decreased US$18 million, but was partially offset by Financial Services which increased US$15 million. The
remainder of the change was due to the strengthening of the Canadian dollar.

Europe - Consolidated net income increased $87 million or 22% to $486 million from $399 million in 2005.
Insurance & Annuities increased $26 million, while Reinsurance increased $63 million, and Corporate decreased $2
million. Excluding the unfavourable currency translation impact, net income increased 34%.

Lifeco Corporate — Lifeco Corporate net income was a charge of $15 million compared to a charge of $36 million
in 2005,

Refer to each segment section for further detail.

PREMIUMS AND DEPOSITS

Premiums and deposits includes premiums on risk-based insurance and annuity products as well as premium
equivalents on self-funded group insurance administrative services only contracts, and deposits on individual and
group segregated fund products.

For the fourth quarter, consolidated premiums and deposits were $11,916 million, up $2,409 million over the fourth
quarter of 2005. The $2,409 million increase was attributable to the United States and Canada, which were up $386
million and $1,987 million, respectively.

For the year, consolidated premiums and deposits were $39,770 million, up $4,883 million over 2005. The $4,883
million increase was attributable to all segments; Europe was up $1,627 million, the United States was up $371
million and Canada was up $2,885 million compared to 2005.

For Canada the increase includes the recapture of a reinsurance agreement on certain blocks of group life and long
term disability business which increased premiums by $1,560 million. In Europe, Insurance & Annuities premiums
were up $1,760 million, offset by a decrease in Reinsurance premiums of $133 miflion. The increase in the United
States primarily reflects increases in Financial Services.
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Refer to each segment section for further detail.

NET INVESTMENT INCOME

Net investment income

For the three months For the twelve months
ended Decamber 31 ended December 31
2008 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change

Investment income earned $ 1,320 § 1,277 3% $ 5328 § 4.868 9%
Amortization of gains and losses 168 150 12% 619 584 6%
Provisicn for credit losses 22 (38) - 31 {7) -
Gross investment income 1,510 1,389 9% 5,978 5,445 10%
Less: investment expenses 16 15 7% 68 56 21%
Net investment income $ 1,494 § 1,374 9% $ 5910 § 5,389 10%

Net investment income for the three months ended December 31, 2006 increased by $120 million or 9% compared
to the same period last year primarily as a result of an increase in assets in the European operations due to the
acquisition of a payout annuity block in 2006 (The Equitable Life Assurance Society ("Equitable Life") in the United
Kingdom).

Net investment income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 increased by $521 million or 10%
compared to the same period last year, primarily as a result of an increase in assets in the European operations
due to the acquisition of two blocks of payout annuities {Phoenix and London Assurance Company (“Phoenix and
London™ in 2005 and Equitable Life in the United Kingdom in 2006).

FEE AND OTHER INCOME

In addition to providing traditional risk-based insurance products, the Company also provides certain products on a
fee-for-service basis. The most significant of these products are segregated funds, for which the Company eams
investment management fees, and ASO contracts, under which the Company provides group insurance benefit
plan administration on a cost-plus basis.

Fee income
For the thrae months For the twelve months
ended Dacember 31 ended December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Segregated funds and other $ 471 § 384 23% $ 1,772 § 1,501 18%
ASQ contracts 235 232 1% 916 923 -1%
$ 706 $ 616 15% $ 2688 $ 2,424 11%

For the fourth quarter, consclidated fee income was $706 million, up $90 million over the fourth quarter of 2005.
Canada increased $38 million due to strong segregated funds and mutual fund growth. Europe increased $34
million, also on strong segregated fund growth. The United States increased $18 million, mainly due to higher
FASCore and Third Party Administration (TPA) business.

For the year, consolidated fee income was $2,688 milliors, up $264 million over 2005, for the same reasons as the
fourth quarter. The $264 million increase was mainly attributable to Canada and Europe, which were up $121
million and $130 million, respectively. Fee income in the United States was up $13 million compared to 2005.
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PAID OR CREDITED TO POLICYHOLDERS

This amount includes increases in policy liabiiities, claims, surrenders, annuity and maturity payments, dividend and
experience refund payments for risk-based products, but does not include benefit payment amounts for fee-based
products (ASO contracts and segregated funds).

For the fourth quarter, consolidated amounts paid or credited to policyholders were $6,677 million, up $1,789
million over the fourth quarter of 2005. The $1,789 million increase was attributable to the United States and
Canada, which were up $339 million and $1,767 million, respectively. This was partly offset by Europe, which was
down $317 million from the fourth quarter of 2005.

For the year, consolidated amounts paid or credited to policyholders were $20,508 million, up $3,073 miliion from
2005, The $3,073 million increase was attributable to all segments. Europe was up $63¢ million, the United States
was up $633 million and Canada was up $1,801 million compared to 2005.

OTHER BENEFITS AND EXPENSES

included in other benefits and expenses are operating expenses, commissions, interest expense on long-term debt
and other borrowings, and dividends on preferred shares, as well as premium taxes.

Other benefits and expenses

For the three months For the twelve months
ended December 31 ended December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change

Total expenses $ 611 § 561 9% $ 2208 § 2254 2%
Less: investment expenses 16 15 7% 68 56 21%
Operating expenses 595 546 9% 2,230 2,198 1%
Commissions 402 330 22% 1,401 1,284 9%
Premium taxes 66 85 20% 259 238 9%
Financing charges 50 41 22% 202 187 8%
Total $ 1,113 § 972 14% 3 4,092 $ 3,907 5%

Operating expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2006 increased $49 million compared to the same
period in 2005. Expenses in local currencies were up slightly but were offset by the strengthened Canadian dollar.
The increase in expenses was modest in relation o sales which increased $588 million or 33% in Canada and
$171 million or 38% in the United States in the same period.

Operating expenses for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 increased $32 million or 1% compared to the
same period in 2005. Expenses in focal currencies were up slightly but were offset by the strengthened Canadian
dollar. The increase in expenses was modest in relation to sales which increased $1,750 million or 27% in Canada
and $1,448 million or 17% in Europe in the same period.

Financing charges consist of interest on debentures and other borrowings, as well as distributions on preferred
shares classified as liabilities

INCOME TAXES

Income taxes for the three month and twelve month periods ended December 31, 2008 were $124 million and $615
million, respectively, compared to $160 million and $601 million for the same periods in 2005. Net income before
income taxes increased $5 million for the three months ended December 31, 2006 and $215 million for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2006, cver the same period in 2005, In 2006, the Company recognized the benefit of
reduced Canadian income tax rates, as previously announced by the Federal and Provincial governments. The
benefit recognized was approximately $24 million, $16 million of which is related to the non-recurring impact of
lower rates on future income taxes.

10
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION

Consolidated total assets under administration
December 31, 2006

United
Canada States Europe Total
Assots
Invested assets $ 43,718 $ 27,686 $ 26,017 $ 97,421
Goodwill and intangible assets 4,980 277 1,762 7,019
Other assets 1,225 1,367 13,431 16,023
Total assets 49,923 29,330 41,210 120,463
Segregated funds net assets 44,656 18,858 (1) 26,632 90,146
Total assets under adminlistration $ 94,579 $ 48,188 $ 67,842 $ 210,609
December 31, 2005
United
Canada States Europe Total
Assets
Invested assets $ 42,587 $ 26,153 $ 20,640 $ 89,380
Goodwill and intangible assets 4,989 54 1,737 6,780
Cther assets 1,613 1,127 3,261 6,001
Total assets 49,189 27,334 25,638 102,161
Segregated funds net assets 38,854 17,008 (1) 19,296 75,158
Total assets under administration 3 88,043 3 44,342 $ 44 934 $ 177,319

(1) The Company's United States segregated funds include investment options that purchase guaranteed annuity contracts issued by the
Company. As of December 31, 2006, such investments had been made in guaranteed interest annuity confracts in the amount of $76
million compared to $440 million for the same period in 2005. As the general account investments are also included in the segregated fund
account balances, the Company has reduced the segregated fund account balances by $418 million as of December 31, 2006 compared to
$373 million for the same perniod in 2005 to avoid overstatement of customer account values under management.

ASSETS

Total assets under administration

Total assets under administration at December 31, 2006 were $210.6 billion, an increase of approximately $33.3
billion from December 31, 2005. General fund assets increased by $18.3 bilion and other assets under
administration increased by $15.0 billion compared with December 31, 2005. General fund assets increased
primarily as a result of the acquisition of approximately $10.2 billion of payout annuities business from Equitable
Life in the United Kingdom as described in the Europe segment.

Invested assets

The Company manages its general fund assets to support the cash flow, liquidity and profitability requirements of
the Company's insurance and investment products. The Company follows prudent and conservative investment
policies, so that assets are not unduly exposed to concentration, credit or market risks. The Company implements
strategies within the overall framework of the Company’s policies, reviewing and adjusting them on an ongoing
basis in light of liability cash flows and capital market conditions. The majority of investments of the general fund
are in medium-term and long-term fixed-income investments, primarily bonds and mortgages, reflecting the
characteristics of the Campany's liabilities.

Invested assets at December 31, 2006 were $97 .4 billion, an increase of $8.0 billion from December 31, 2005. The
distribution of assets has not changed materially and remains heavily weighted to bonds and mortgages. Invested
assets in Europe increased by $5.4 billion. Excluding the positive currency impact of $2.7 billion, invested assets
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increased $2.7 billion due to higher payout sales in the U.K. and an annuity contract written in the second quarter of
2006 in Reinsurance.

Goodwill and intangible assets increased in the U.S. as a result of the acquisition of 401(k) and defined benefit
business from Met Life and defined contribution business from U.S. Bank. Both acquisitions closed in the fourth
quarter of 2006. (See United States segment.}

Assot distribution
December 31, 2006

United
Canada States Europe Total

Bonds

Government bonds $ 7,450 $ 6,757 $ 7,862 $ 22,069

Corporate bonds 17,962 13,724 11,491 43,177

Sub-total bonds 25412 20,481 19,353 65,246
Mortgages 11,751 1,941 1,642 15,334
Stocks 3,385 437 944 4,766
Real estate 763 149 1,304 2,216

Sub-total portfolio investments 41,311 23,008 23,242 87,562
Cash and cash equivalents 274 130 2,679 3,083
Policy loans 2,133 4,648 95 6,776
Total invested assets $ 43,718 $ 27,6886 $ 26,017 $ 97,421

December 31, 2005
United
Canada States Europe Total

Bonds

Government bonds $ 9,098 3 6,067 $ 6,573 $ 21,738

Corporate bonds 16,073 12,493 8,994 37,560

Sub-total bonds 25,171 18,560 15,567 59,298
Mortgages 11,473 2,157 975 14,605
Stocks 2,607 621 800 4,028
Real estate 735 156 951 1,842

Sub-total portfolio investments 39,986 21,494 18,293 79,773
Cash and cash equivalents 536 175 2,250 2,961
Policy loans 2,065 4,484 97 6,645
Total invested assets $ 42,587 $ 26,153 3 20,640 3 89,380
Fair value

The fair value of invested assets exceeded their carrying value by $3.1 billion as at December 31, 2006, compared
to $4.2 billion at December 31, 2005. Changes in the fair value of assets supporting the actuarial and other
liabilities of the Company's operating funds generally will not result in a corresponding change in net income due to
corresponding changes in the fair value of actuarial and other liabilities that are matched with those assets.

Bond portfolio

The total bond portfolio increased to $65.2 billion or 67% of invested assets at December 31, 2006, from $59.3
billion or 66% at December 31, 2005. Federa!, provincial and other government securities represented 34% of the
bond portfolio compared to 37% in 2005. The overall quality of the bond portfolic remained high, with 99% of the
portfolio rated investment grade and 87% rated A or higher. The excess of fair value over carrying value at
December 31, 2006 was $1,452 million ($2,620 million at December 31, 2005).
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Bond portfolio quality (excludes $2 958 million short-term investments, $2,148 million in 2005)

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

Estimated rating

AAA $ 28,320 45 % $ 28,087 46 %

AA 9,972 16 8,757 15

A 15,898 26 14,499 25

BBB 7,516 12 7,006 12

BB or lower 582 1 801 2
Total $ 62,288 100 % $ 57,150 100 %

Mortgage portfolio

The total mortgage portfolio at $15.3 billion or 16% of invested assets at December 31, 2006 is comparable to
December 31, 2005. The mortgage portfolio consisted of 52% commercial loans, 37% multi-family residential loans
and 11% single family residential loans. Total insured loans were $5.1 billion or 33% of the mortgage portfolio. The
excess of fair value over carrying value at December 31, 2008 was $436 million (3672 million at December 31,
2005).

Mortgage portfolio

Decermber 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Non-
Mortgage loans by type Insured insured Total Total
Single family residential $ 851 $ 811 $ 1,662 11 % $ 1,542 11 %
Multi-family residential 3,894 1,786 5,680 37 5,701 39
Commercial 342 7,650 7,992 52 7,362 50
Total morigages $ 5,087 $ 10,247 $ 15334 100 % $ 14605 100 %
e ]} ] ——1 ——— —

It is the Company’s practice to acquire only high quality commercial loans meeting strict underwriting standards and
diversification criteria. The Company has a well-defined risk rating system, which it uses in its underwriting and
credit monitoring processes for commercial mortgages. Residential loans are originated by the Company's
mortgage specialists in accordance with well-established underwriting standards and are well-diversified across
each geographic region.

Equity portfolio

The total equity portfolio was $7.0 billion or 7% of invested assets at December 31, 2006 compared to $5.9 billion
or 7% of invested assets at December 31, 2005. The equity portfolio consists primarily of high quality pubiicly
traded stocks and institutional-grade income producing real estate located in major economic centers. The excess
of fair value over carrying value at December 31, 2006 was $1,261 million {($896 million at December 31, 2005).

Asset quality — general fund assets

Non-investment grade bonds were $582 million or 0.9% of the bond portfolio at December 31, 2006, compared with
$801 million or 1.4% of the bond portfclic at December 31, 2005. The decrease is due to proceeds received on
repayments and maturities on non-investment grade bonds as well as trading of bonds that are held in the portfolic.

Non-performing investments, including bonds in default, mortgages in the process of foreclosure or in arrears 90
days or more, and real estate acquired by foreclosure, totalled $107 million or 0.12% of portfolio investments at
December 31, 2006 compared with $165 million and 0.21% at December 31, 2005. Total allowances for credit
losses at December 31, 2006 were $74 million compared with $119 million at December 31, 2005. Additional
provisions for future credit losses related to assets backing liabilities are included in actuarial liabilittes and amount
to $1,300 million at December 31, 2006 ($1,178 million at December 31, 2005).

13
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The Company's allowance for credit losses decreased by $45 million to $74 million at December 31, 2006. The
combination of the allowance for credit losses of $§74 million together with the $1,300 million provision for future
credit losses in actuarial liabilities represents 1.7% of bond, mortgage and real estate assets at December 31, 2006
{1.7% at December 31, 2005).

Non-performing loans

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Foreclosed Foreclosed
Asset class Bonds Mortgages  real estate Total Bonds  Mortgages real eslale Total
Non-performing
loans $ 79 § 28 $ - 8 107 $ 137 % 17§ 11§ 165
Allowances for credit losses
December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Specific Non-specific Specific  Non-specific
provisions  provisions Total provisions  provisions Total
Bonds and mortgage loans $ 26 % 43 $ 74 $ 51 § 68 $ 119

Other general fund assets

Other general fund assets
December 31

2006 2005
Funds held by ceding insurers $ 12,374 3 2,556
Other assets 3,652 3,445
Total other genera! fund assets $ 16,023 $ 6,001

Funds held by ceding insurers increased $9.8 billion. Of this increase, approximately $10.2 billion was as a result
of the agreement to acquire the non-participating payout annuity business of Equitable Life. Other assets, at $3.7
billion, is made up of several items including premiums in course of collection, future income taxes, interest due and
accrued, fixed assets, prepaid amounts, and accounts receivable.

Segregated funds

Segregated funds assets under management, which are measured at market values, increased by $15.0 billion to
$90.1 billion at December 31, 2006. The growth resulted from net deposits of $4.4 billion and net market gains of
$10.6 billion. Net market value gains of $10.6 billion were comprised of gains of $7.6 billion, and currency
translation gains of $3.0 billion due to the weakening of the Canadian dollar.

Segregated funds net assets

Dacember 31
2006 2005 2004
Stocks $ 63,229 $ 52,415 $ 45,398
Bonds 15,891 13,928 15,710
Mortgages 1,915 1,842 1,613
Real estate 5,941 4,180 3,423
Cash and other 3,170 2,793 2,889
Tota! $ 90,146 $ 75,158 $ 69,033
Year over year growth 20% 9% 12%
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LIABILITIES

Total liabilities

Total liabilities
December 31
2006 2005
Policy liabilities $ 93,851 5 75,286
Deferred net realized gains 2,821 2,598
Other general fund liabilities 9,028 11,248

Total liabilities $ 105700 $ 89,130

Total liabilities at December 31, 2008 were $105.7 hillion, an increase of $16.6 billion from December 31, 2005.

Policy liabilities

Policy liabilities, at $93.9 billion, were up 25% from December 31, 2005, due primarily to the acquisition of
approximatety $10.2 billion of payout annuities business from Equitable Life in the Company's Europe segment and
the acquisition of approximately $1.6 billion of 401(k} plan business from Metropolitan Life Insurance Company and
its affiliates in the Company's United States segment. Also, the Company recaptured a portion of the business
ceded under bulk reinsurance treaties in its United States and Canada segments which resulted in an increase in
pelicy liabilities of approximately $2.2 billion. This was offset by a reduction to other general fund liabilities, in funds
held under reinsurance contracts.

Actuarial liabilities represent the amounts which, together with estimated future premiums and investment income,
will be sufficient to pay estimated future benefits, dividends, and expenses on policies in force. Actuarial liabilities
are determined using generally accepted actuarial practices, according to standards established by the Canadian
Institute of Actuaries.

Asset and liability cash flows are carefully matched to minimize the financial effects of a shift in interest rates. This
practice has been in effect for several years and has helped shield the Company's financial position from past
significant interest rate volatility.
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Assets supporting actuarial liabilities

United
Participating Canada States Europe Total
December 31, 2006

Bonds $ 12,928 $ 10,982 $ 12,825 $ 14,354 $ 51,090
Morigage loans 5,019 4,661 1,497 1,449 12,626
Stocks 2,313 681 - 236 3,230
Real estate 112 7 - 1,164 1,283
Other 7,161 916 170 12,887 21,134
Total assets $ 27,533 $ 17,248 $ 14,492 $ 30,090 $ 89,363

———————— —] e —— ———————— b——§
Total actuarial liabilities $ 27,633 $ 17,248 $ 14,492 $ 30,090 $ 89,363

7 —————————— —_——— e — " —}3

December 31, 2005

Bonds $ 12,164 $ 10,347 $ 10,696 $ 11,363 $ 44570
Monrgage loans 4,707 4,579 1,590 660 11,536
Stocks 1,845 586 19 162 2612
Real estate 110 8 - 669 787
Other 7,295 426 534 3,503 11,758
Total assets $ 26121 $ 15946 $ 12,839 $ 16,357 $ 71263

——— ] e |—— B ——1
Total actuarial liabilities $ 26121 $ 15946 $ 12839 $ 16,357 $ 71,263

e —— ——————— ——— P ———}

Other assets include: loans to policyhalders, cash and certificates of deposit, funds held by ceding insurers, premiums in the course of
collection, interest due and accrued, future income taxes, fixed assets, prepaid expensas, accounts receivable and accrued pension assets.

Cash flows of assets supporting actuarial liabilities are matched within reasonable limits. For the participating
account additional bonds and stocks were purchased to support the $1.4 billion of growth in actuarial liabilities.
These liabilities are generally long term. Other of $7.2 billion consists primarily of policy loans in the participating
account.

The growth in Canada of $1.3 billion in actuarial liabilities relates to the 50% recapture of a bulk reinsurance
transaction which added $1.5 billion to actuarial liabilities (offset by a reduction to general fund liabilities in funds
held under reinsurance contracts). The increase in actuarial liabilities was supported by increases to all asset
classes.

Actuarial liabilities in the United States segment increased $1.6 billion mainly due to the Met Life acquisition and the
recapture of bulk reinsurance businesses ceded in 2003 of $562 million {(offset by a reduction to general fund
liabiltties in funds held under reinsurance contracts). This increase was supported by an increase in bonds, offset
by decreases in mortgages and other assets.

Actuarial liabilities in the Europe segment increased $13.7 billion, due mainly to the purchase of a block of payout
annuity business which increased liabilities by $10.2 billion. The corresponding increase to assets is in Other which
is mainly funds held by ceding insurers. The remaining increase in liabilities is due to strong payout annuity sales
which are supported by increased bonds and mortgages.
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Other general fund liabilities

Other genaral fund liabilities

December 31
2006 2005
Debentures and other debt instruments $ 1,980 $ 1,903
Funds held under reinsurance contracts 1,822 4,221
Repurchase agreements 997 1,023
Cther liabilities 4,229 4,099
Total other general fund liabilities $ 9,028 $ 11,246

Total other general fund liabilities at December 31, 2006 were $9.0 billion, a decrease of $2.2 billion from
December 31, 2005. Other liabilities include trade payables, accruals and provisions for post-retirement benefits.
The decrease in the funds held under reinsurance contracts reflects the recapture of bulk reinsurance contracts in
the United States and Canada. This was offset by a corresponding increase in policy liabilities.

Debentures and other debt instruments includes $1,313 million of long-term debt on both a direct basis and through
its subsidiary CLFC, and $556 million {US$475 million) of capital securities issued in the U.S. through its subsidiary
Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Capital LP.

In the second quarter, the Company in the United States issued $351 million {US$300 million) of Fixed/Adjustable
Rate Enhanced Capital Advantaged Subordinated Debentures through its wholly owned subsidiary, Great-West
Life & Annuity Capital, LP il. The subordinated debentures are due May 16, 2046 and bear an annual interest rate
of 7.153% until May 16, 2016. After May 16, 2016, the subordinated debentures will bear an interest rate of
2.538% plus the 3-month LIBOR rate. The subordinated debentures are redeemable by the Company at the
principal amount plus any accrued and unpaid interest after May 16, 2016.

On September 19, 2006, Canada Life repaid the $250 million principal balance of its 8% subordinated debentures
due September 19, 2011.

On November 28, 2005, the Company amended the terms of its 6.67% Debentures due March 21, 2033. A
supplemental trust indenture provides the holders of these debentures with an additional event of default restricting
the manner in which the Company may refinance its outstanding preferred shares that are considered by the
Company to be permanent capital.

PREFERRED SHARES AND CAPITAL TRUST SECURITIES
Preferred shares other than perpetual preferred shares (which include soft-retractable and fixed/floating shares)
and Capital Trust Securities and debentures are classified as liabilities.

Preferred shares

At December 31, 2006 the Company had 7,978,900 4.70% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series D and
22,282,215 4.80% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series E outstanding with stated values of $199 million
and $557 million, respectively.

The terms and conditions of the 4.70% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series D and 4.80% Non-
Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series E allow the holder to convert to common shares of the Company after a
specified period of time. The Company, at its option, may redeem these shares before the holders are entitled to
convert them to common shares of the Company. Preferred shares of this type are commonly referred to as soft-
retractable and represent a form of financing with a term that is effectively fixed.
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On April 12, 2008, the Company issued 12,000,000 4.50% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series | (the
"Series | Preferred Shares") with an aggregate stated value of $300 million. The Series ! Preferred Shares are
redeemable at the option of the Company on or after June 30, 2011.

During the year, 1,847,300 common shares were purchased for cancellation pursuant to the Company’s Normal
Course Issuer Bid at a total cost of $54 million or $29.58 per share and 2,310,013 common shares were issued
under the Company’s Stock Option Plan for a total value of $25 million or $10.95 per share.

In November, the Company announced a normal course issuer bid for its common shares commencing December
1, 2008 and ending November 30, 2007. During the course of this bid, the Company may purchase up to but not
more than 6,000,000 common shares for cancellation.

In total, share capital and surplus increased by $1,625 million to $11.1 billion at December 31, 2006 from
December 31, 2005. The weakening of the Canadian dollar against the British pound of $0.28 and euro of $0.16
resulted in increases to the currency translation account of $302 million from December 31, 2005.

LiQuiDiTYy AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND ADEQUACY

LiQuiDITY

Liquidity for the Company has remained strong, as evidenced by significant amounts of short-term investments,
cash and highly marketable securities (including investment grade bonds) that totalled $62.3 billion on a market
value basis as of December 31, 2006. Of that amount, 99% of the bond portfolio carried an investment grade
rating, thereby providing significant liquidity to the Company's overall investment portfolio.

Funds provided by premiums and fess, investment income and maturities of investment assets are reasonably
predictable and normally exceed liquidity requirements for payment of claims, benefits, and expenses. However,
since the timing of available funds cannot always be matched precisely to commitments, imbalances may arise
when demands for funds exceed those on hand. Also, a demand for funds may arise as a result of the Company
taking advantage of current investment opportunities. The sources of the funds that may be required in such
situations include the issuance of commercial paper and debentures and equity securities.

Additional liquidity is available through established lines of credit and the Company's demonstrated ability to access
the capital markets for funds. The Company maintains a $200 million committed line of credit with a Canadian
chartered bank.

Liquid assets
December 31 2006 2005
Balance sheet Market Balance sheet Market
value value value value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,027 $ 3,027 $ 2,930 3 2,930
Highly marketable securities
Government bands 19,955 20,607 19,553 20,817
Corporate bonds 32,365 32,881 26,498 27,993
Common/Preferred shares 4,116 4,924 3,345 3,963
Residential mortgages {insured) 851 851 776 769
Total $ 60,304 $ 682,290 $ 53,102 $ 56,472
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GCashable liability charactoristics

December 31
2006 2005
Surrenderable insurance and annuity fiabilities
At market value $ 12,309 $ 11,683
At book value 27,618 27.922
Total $ 39,927 $ 39,605

The majority of the liquid assets are comprised of fixed income securities whose value is inversely related to
interest rates. Consequently, a significant rise in prevailing interest rates would result in a decrease in the value of
this pool of liquid assets. As well, a high interest rate environment may prompt holders of certain types of policies
to terminate their policies, thereby placing demands on the Company's liquidity position.

The market value of the Company's liquid assets is approximately $62.3 billion or 156% of the Company's total
surrenderable insurance and annuity liabilities. The Company believes that it holds a sufficient amount of liquid

assets to meet unanticipated cash flow requirements prior to their maturity.

CASH FLows
Cash flows
For the three months For the twelve months
ended Decomber 31 ended Deacember 31
2006 2005 2006 2005
Cash flows relating to the following activities:
Operations $ 717 $ 511 $ 3812 $ 3,951
Financing (220) (219) {565) {665)
Investment (890) {559) {3,405) (2,511)
(393) (267) (158) 775
Effects of changes in exchange rates on
cash and cash equivalents 209 (20} 280 (286)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (184) (287) 122 489
Cash and cash equivalents of deposit, beginning of period 3,267 3,248 2,961 2,472
Cash cash equivalents, end of period $ 3,083 $ 2,961 $ 3,083 $ 2,961
—_— ——— ] ————————1

The principal source of funds for the Company is cash provided by operating activities, including premium income,
net investment income and fee income. These funds are used primarily to pay policy benefits, policyholder
dividends and claims, as well as operating expenses and commissions. Cash flows generated by operations are
mainly invested to support future fiability cash requirements.

Financing activities include the issuance and repayment of capital instruments, and associated dividends and
interest payments.

The fourth quarter increase in cash flows from operations compared to 2005 is mainly due to higher premium
income and investment income partially offset by higher payments to policyholders. Cash flows from operations as
well as net cash received of $1,467 million in connection with liabilities assumed as part of acquisitions in the
United States segment in the fourth quarter were used to acquire an additicnal $2,357 million of invested assets
including bonds, stocks mortgages and real estate to support policy liabilities and to fund financing activities.
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Financing activities used $220 million of cash primarily reflecting dividend payments of $227 million. The effects of
changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents was due to the weakening of the Canadian dollar against
the British pound and the euro which increased reported cash and cash equivalents by $209 million.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, net cash flows from operations decreased compared to 2005
mainly due to higher premium income and investment income which was more than offset by higher payments to
policyholders.

Financing activities in 2006 included the issuance of $300 million of capital instruments by the Company (net $150
million in 2005) and $351 million at a subsidiary, as well as the repayment of $250 million of capital instruments at
another subsidiary. Also, the Company paid out an additional $123 million of dividends in 2006.

Investment activities include the receipt of net cash from the acquisitions in the United States which along with a
portion of net cash from operations was used to purchase additional investment assets.

The effect of changes in exchange rates of cash and cash equivalents was an increase of $280 million.

COMMITMENTS/CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Commitments/contractual obligations

At December 31, 2006 Payments due by period
over
Total 1 yoar 2 years 3 years 4 yoars 5 years 5 yaars
1) Long-term debt $ 1,864 3 1 8 18 1 8 1% 1 3% 1,858
2) Operating leases
- office 349 86 77 64 38 22 62
- equipment 20 7 7 5 - -
3} Purchase obligations 29 20 6 1 1 -
4} Credit-related arrangements
(a) Contractual commitments 239 239 - - - - -
(b) Letters of credit SEE NOTE4(b) BELOW
Total contractual obligations $ 2,501 § 353 § 91 § 71 % 41 3 24 3 1,921

e e——————————— e e————eeeeeeeeeeeee e
e ———

1) Long-term debt includes long-term financing used in the ongoing operations and capitalization of the Company.

2) Operating leases include office space and certain equipment used in the normal course of business. Lease
payments are charged to operations over the period of use.

3) Purchase obligations are commitments to acquire goods and services, essentially related to information
services.

4) (a)Contractual commitments are essentially commitments of investment transactions made in the narmal course
of operations in accordance with policies and guidelines that are to be disbursed upon fulfillment of certain
contract conditions,

(b) Letters of credit (LOCs) are written commitments provided by a bank. The total amount of LOCs issued are
$2,170 million. Total LOC facilities are $2,554 million.

The Reinsurance operation is from time to time an applicant for letters of credit provided mainly as collateral
under certain reinsurance contracts for on-balance sheet policy liabilities. The Company through certain of its
subsidiaries has provided LOCs as follows:
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To external parties

In order for the non-U.S. licensed operating subsidiaries within LRG to conduct reinsurance business in the
U.S., they must provide collateral to the U.S. insurance and reinsurance companies to whom reinsurance is
provided in order for these companies to receive statutory credit for reserves ceded to LRG. To satisfy this
collateral requirement, LRG, as applicant, has provided LOCs issued by a syndicate of financial insfitutions
under an agreement arranged in 2005 for a five year term expiring November 15, 2010. The aggregate
amount of this LOC facility is US$650 miilion, and the amount issued at December 31, 2006 was US$620
million, including US$171 million issued by LRG subsidiaries to London Life or other LRG subsidiaries, as
described below.

To internal parties

GWLE&A Financial Inc. as applicant has provided LOCs in respect of the following:

+ US$540 million issued to the U.S. branch of Canada Life as beneficiary, to allow it to receive statutory
capital credit for reserves ceded to Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company of South Carclina.
These are provided under a US$777 million agreement with a twenty year term with a third party financial
institution (increased to US$621 million in early February, 2007).

» US$50 million issued to Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company of South Carolina as beneficiary, to
allow it to receive statutory capita! credit in respect thereof.

Canada Life as applicant has provided LOCs relating to business activities conducted within the Canada Life

group of companies in respect of the following:

« US3306 million issued to its U.S. branch as beneficiary, to allow Canada Life to receive statutory capital
credit for life reinsurance liabilities ceded to Canada Life International Re Limited (reduced to US$265
million in early February, 2007).

» £117 million issued to Canada Life Ireland Holdings Limited (CLIHL) as beneficiary, to allow CLIHL to
receive statutory capital credit in the United Kingdom for a ioan made to The Canada Life Group (UK)
Limited.

» US$82 million issued to a U.S. regulator as beneficiary on behalf of its U.S. branch, to receive statutory
capital credit for certain reinsurance liabilities ceded to third party non-U.S. licensed reinsurers {reduced to
US$14 million in early January, 2007).

As well, certain LRG subsidiaries as applicants have provided LOCs totaling US$171 million to Londoen Life
or other LRG subsidiaries, as beneficiaries to allow them to receive statutory capital credit for reserves
ceded to the other subsidiaries.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND ADEQUACY

At the holding company level, the Company monitors the amount of consolidated capital available, and the amounts
deployed in its various operating subsidiaries. The amount of capital deployed in any particular company or country
is dependent upon local regulatory requirements as well as the Company’s internal assessment of capital
requirements in the context of its operational risks and requirements, and strategic plans.

The Company's practice is o maintain the capitalization of its regulated operating subsidiaries at a level that will
exceed the relevant minimum regulatory capital requirements in the jurisdictions in which they operate.

in Canada, the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions (OSFI} has established a capital adequacy
measurement for life insurance companies incorporated under the Insurance Companies Act (Canada) and their
subsidiaries, known as the Minimum Continuing Capital and Surplus Requirements (MCCSR). Great-West Life's
MCCSR ratio at the end of 2006 was 213% (208% at the end of 2005). London Life’'s MCCSR ratio at the end of
2006 was 253% (237% at the end of 2005). Canada Life's MCCSR ratio at the end of 2006 was 242% (231% at
the end of 2005).
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The MCCSR position of Great-West Life is negatively affected by the existence of a significant amount of goodwill
and intangible assets, which, subject to a prescribed inclusion for a portion of intangible assets, are deducted in the
calculation of available regulatory capital.

In the United States, GWL&A is subject to comprehensive state and federal regulation and supervision throughout
the United States. The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) has adopted risk-based capital
rules and other financial ratios for U.S. life insurance companies. GWL&A has estimated the risk-based capital ratio
to be 482% at December 31, 2006 (477% at the end of 2005), well in excess of that required by NAIC.

The capitalization of the Company and its operating subsidiaries will also take into account the views expressed by
the various credit rating agencies that provide financial strength and other ratings to the Company.

The Company has alsc established policies and procedures designed to identify, measure and repart all material
risks. Management is responsible for establishing capital management procedures for implementing and monitoring
the capital plan. The Board of Directors reviews and approves all capital transactions undertaken by management
pursuant to the annual capital plan. The capital plan is designed to ensure that the Company maintains adequate
capital, taking into account the Company's strategy and business plans.

RATINGS
The Company and its major operating subsidiaries continue to hold very strong ratings.

On February 17, 2006, Dominion Bond Rating Service upgraded Lifeco's senior debt rating by one notch to AA
(low).

On February 1, 2007, concurrent with Lifeco's announcement regarding the acquisition of Putnam Investments
Trust, Dominion Bond Rating Service placed the ratings of the Company “under review with developing
implications”. As well, A.M. Best Company Inc. placed the ratings of the Company “under review with negative
implications”. Ratings provided by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, Moody's Investor Services and Fitch
Ratings were reaffirmed with a stable outlook.

Great- London Canada

Rating agency Measurement Lifeco Waost Life Life GWLEA
A M. Best Company Financial Strength A+ A+ A+ A+
Dominion Bond Rating Service Claims Paying Ability IC-1 IC-1 1C-1 NR

Senior Debt AA (low) @

Subordinated Debt AA (low)
Fitch Ratings Insurer Financial Strength AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+
Moody's Investors Service Insurance Financial Strength Aal Aa3 Aa3 Aa3
Standard & Poor's Ratings Services Insurer Financial Strength AA AA AA AA

Senior Debt A+

Subordinated Debt AA-

(1) All ratings have been placed under review with negative implications.
(2) Under review with developing implications.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS
Financial instruments held by the Company include portfolio investments, debentures and other debt instruments,
and various derivative financial instruments that are not reported on the Balance Sheet.

Portfolio investments consist of bonds, stocks, mortgage loans and real estate. Debentures and other debt

instruments consist of short and long term financings due between one and twenty-eight years. Off balance sheet
financial instruments include Interest Rate Contracts (futures - long, futures - short, swaps, written options,
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purchased options), Foreign Exchange Contracts (forward contracts, cross currency swaps) and other derivative
contracts {equity contracts, credit default swaps).

Market values for publicly traded bonds are determined using quoted market prices. Market values for bonds that
are not actively traded and for mortgages are determined by discounting expected future cash flows related to the
securities at market interest rates. Market values for public stocks are generally determined by the closing sale
price of the security on the exchange where it is principally traded. Market values for stocks for which there is no
active market are determined by discounting expected future cash flows based on expected dividends, and where
future cash flows can not be readily determined, market value is estimated to be equal to cost. Market values for all
properties are determined annually by management based on a combination of the most recent independent
appraisal and current market data available. Appraisals of all properties are conducted at least once every three
years by independent qualified appraisers.

Cash flows of assets supporting actuarial liabilities are matched within reasonable limits. Changes in the fair value
of these assets are essentially offset by changes in the fair value of actuarial liabilities. Changes in the fair value of
assets backing capital and surplus, less related income taxes, would result in a corresponding change in surplus
over time, in accordance with investment policies. Refer to the "Risk Management and Control Practices” section
of this report for a description of the risks and the management of risks associated with financial instruments
associated with actuarial liabilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL PRACTICES

Insurance companies are in the business of assessing, assuming and managing risk. The types of risks are many
and varied, and will be influenced by factors both internal and external to the businesses operated by the insurer.
These risks, and the control practices used to manage the risks, may be broadly grouped into four categories:

1. Insurance Risks

2. Investment or Market Risks
3. Operational Risks

4. QOther Risks

The risk categories above have been ranked in accordance with the extent to which they would be expected to
impact the business on an ongoing basis and, accordingly, would require more active management. It must be
noted, however, that items included in the third or fourth categories, such as legal, regulatory or reputational risks,
may still represent serious risks notwithstanding the expectation that they may be less likely to be realized.

INSURANCE RISKS - GENERAL

By their nature, insurance products involve commitments by the insurer to provide financial obligations and
insurance coverage for extended periods of time. In order to provide insurance protection profitably, the insurer
must design and price products to ensure that the premiums received, and the investment income earned on those
premiums, will be sufficient to pay future claims and expenses associated with the product. This requires the
insurer, in pricing products and establishing poficy liabilities, to make assumptions regarding expected levels of
income and expense. Although pricing on some products is guaranteed throughout the life of the contract, policy
liability valuation requires regular updating of assumptions to reflect emerging experience. Ultimate profitability will
depend upon how closely actual experience tracks to expected experience.

The following table identifies the key overarching insurance risks, and risk management techniques used by the
Company.
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Risk Management of Risk

Claims (mertality and morbidity)
¢ Many products provide benefits in the event of death or
disabling conditions or provide for medical or dental costs.

+ Research and analysis is continuously ongoing to provide
the basis for pricing and valuation assumptions which
properly reflect the insurance and reinsurance markets
where the Company is active.

Effective underwriting policies control the selection of risks
insured for consistency with claims expectations.

Underwriting limits control the amount of risk exposure
insured in the property and casualty reinsurance
operations.

Lapsation

» Products are priced and valued to reflect the expected
duration of contracts. Lapsation is an important assumption
for expense recovery to the extent that higher costs are
incurred in early contract years, and for certain long-term
level premium products where costs increase by age and
pricing assumes that some policyholders will discontinue
their coverage,

Annual research studies support pricing and valuation
assumptions for this risk.

Investment yield
e Products are priced and valued based on the investment

Effective and ongoing communication between pricing,

returns available on the assets that support the policy
liabilities.

Investments are made in accordance with investment
policies that have been approved by the Directors of the
respective principal subsidiary. These policies provide
guidance on the mix of assets allowable for each product
segment. Yield rates are derived from the actual mix of

valuation and investment management is required to
control this risk.

+ Both pricing and valuation manage this risk by requiring
higher margins where there is less yield certainty.

* The pricing and valuation of death benefit, maturity value
and income guarantees associated with variable contracts
employs stochastic modeling of future investment retums.

assets put in place. Products with long term cash flows and
pricing guarantees carry more risk.

Reinsurance
« Products with mortality and morbidity risks have specific | « Companies providing reinsurance to the Company are
limits on Company retention approved by the Boards of reviewed for financial soundness as part of the ongoing
Directors on the recommendation of the Actuary. These monitoring process.
limits are reviewed and updated from time to time. Risk
underwritten in excess of these approved levels is ceded, or
reinsured, by the Company to third party reinsurers.

INSURANCE RISKS — SPECIFIC BUSINESSES
Insurance risks are specific to the particular businesses carried on by the Company and the types of products
offered through those businesses.
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Canada

Risk

Management of Risk

Group Insurance
« The Company's ability to predict claims experience for the
following year.

¢ For health care products, inflation and utilization will
influence the level of claim costs. While inflationary trends
are relatively easy to predict, claims utilization is less
predictable. The impact of aging, which plays a role in
utilization, is well documented. However, the introduction
of new services, such as breakthrough drug therapies, has
the potential to substantially escalate benefit plan costs.

« For disability products, a number of factors, including aging
and industry characteristics, play a role in future claim
patterns.

e For life products, exposure to a multiple death scenario,
due to concentration of risk in employment locations.

» Most risks are mitigated by the fact that most contract rate
levels can be adjusted on a yearly basis.

» The Company manages the impact of these and similar
factors through plan designs that limit new costs and
through pricing that takes demographic and other trend
factors into account.

The risks emerging from these factors are managed
through pricing and plan designs that emphasize
prevention, early intervention and return to work programs.

Monitoring of risk concentrations for new business and
renewals, as well as plan design features and medical
underwriting that limit the amount of insurance on any one
life.

Individual Life

+ Mortality, which has an impact both on claims paid during
the year and on the reserves that must be established to
fund future claims. Life insurance contracts are long term in
nature and mortality risk needs to be provided for over
several decades since most claims emerge many years
after issue.

A current industry risk involves the pricing of the level cost
of insurance option within universal life products. Pricing of
this option, guaranteed for the life of the policy, requires a
guaranteed interest rate and lapse assumption extending
over a long period. A small adverse change in actual long-
term lapses or investment returns can lead to significant
insufficiency in premiums.

Effective underwriting practices have been developed to
support the long-term sustainability of the business.
Additionally, the reserves established to fund future claims
include a provision for adverse deviation, set in accordance
with professional guidelines. This margin is necessary to
provide reasonable assurance that actuarial liabilities cover
a range of possible outcomes.

« Management continues to prudently manage this pricing
risk.

Living Benefits

« Morbidity is the incidence and duration of disability
insurance claims and the incidence of critical conditions for
critical iliness insurance. Disability experience is highly
cyclical.

« The Company manages these risks through its
underwriting practices, experience and trend analysis, in
addition to its reserve and pricing reviews.

Retirement & Investment Services

+ The Company's investment fund business is fee-based,
with revenue and profitability based on the market value of
investment fund assets under management. Fluctuations
in fund asset levels occur as a result of both changes in
cash flow and general investment market conditions.
Accordingly, fee income derived in connection with the
management of investment funds is sensitive to prevailing
market conditions. Movements in market levels will
produce variability in the level of fee income derived from
this type of business.

Through its wide range of funds, the Company limits its risk
exposure to any particular market.

The Company encourages its clients to follow a long-term
asset allocation approach, which will reduce the variability
of retums and the frequency of fund switching. As a result
of this approach, a significant proportion of individual
segregated fund assets are in holdings of either a
diversified group of funds or “fund of funds” investment
profiles, which are designed to improve the likelihood of
achieving optimal returns within a given level of risk.
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Risk

Management of Risk

Retirement & Investment Services {continued)

+ A significant decline in market values could increase the
cost to the Company associated with segregated fund
death benefit and maturity value guarantees.

+ With the significant increase in the group retirement
business resulting from the acquisition of Canada Life, the
Company has expanded its presence in this relatively
stable business.

e Prudent product design, effective marketing, asset
allocation within client portfolics and our broad distribution
within Canada, all contribute to a significantly diverse
profile of inforce segregated funds, issued steadily over
many vyears, which helps to mitigate exposure to
guarantees related to segregated funds.

s A significant proportion of premiums are received through
employer-sponsored, payroll deduction plans, therefore
contributions and withdrawals from this business are less
affected by volatile market conditions.

United States

Risk

Management of Risk

Healthcare
» Medical cost inflation, which may exceed annual pricing
adjustments to policyholders.

» Changes in utilization may impact health care costs.
Utilization trends can be attributable to adjustments in
health care delivery systerns, such as the development of
new practice standards or breakthrough treatments.

e Changes to product design may also impact utilization
trends. Changes include amendments that modify covered
benefits or funding changes that result in a sharing of the
financial burden between the employer and the employee.

+ The Company manages medical costs through dedicated
provider contracting. |n addition, the Company continues
to invest in enhanced care management programs.

¢ Product designs that promote a sharing of health care
costs by members typically help control utilization.

* Medical underwriting by case risk has also been expanded.

Retirement Services

+« The Company's investment fund business is fee-based,
with revenue and profitability based on the market value of
investment fund assets under management. Fluctuations
in fund asset levels occur as a result of both changes in
cash flow and general investment market conditions.
Accordingly, fee income derived in connection with the
management of investment funds is sensitive to prevailing
market conditions. Movements in market levels will
produce variability in the level of fee income derived from
this type of business.

« Mismatches between asset and liability cash flows could
reduce profit margins in unfavorable interest rate
environments.

+ Increases in operating expenses could reduce profit
margins.

+ A significant decline in market values could increase the
cost to the Company associated with variable fund death
benefit guarantees.

+ Through its wide range of funds, the Company limits its risk
exposure to any particular market. The Company
encourages its clients to follow a long-term asset allocation
approach, which will reduce the variability of returns and
the frequency of fund switching. As a result of this
approach, a significant proportion of individual segregated
fund assets are in holdings of either a diversified group of
funds or “fund of funds” investment profiles, which are
designed to improve the likelihood of achieving optimal
returns within a given level of risk.

+ Margins on non-repriceable products are protected through
the proper matching of assets and liabilities. Margins on
repriceable products are protected through frequent
monitoring of asset and liability positions. The valuation of
these products employs stochastic modeling of future
interest rates.

s Expense management programs are constantly monitored
to control unit costs.

+« The Company limits variable fund guarantees to death
benefits, and even then only on products sold in certain
markets. The valuation of these products employs
stochastic modeling of future investment returns.
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Risk

Management of Risk

Individual Life

* The lines of life insurance sold through ftraditional
distribution systems are no longer actively marketed.
Increases in termination rates con this business could
reduce profits.

In the large case business-owned life insurance (BOLI)
business, increased surrenders in the general account
product iine could reduce profits.

 Mismatches between the asset and liability cash flows
could reduce profit margins in unfavorable interest rate
environments.

e The Individual Life line includes whole life policies with
guaranteed cash values and universal life policies with
guaranteed minimum interest credited rates. Prolonged
periods of low interest rates could reduce profit margins.

Increases in operating expenses could reduce profit
margins.

& Various programs have been introduced emphasizing
retention of the business.

+ The Company is protected by the policyholder income tax
consequences of surrendering the policy and through
contract provisions which restrict the availability of funds for
withdrawal.

» Margins are protected through frequent monitoring of asset
and liability positions. The valuation of this product employs
stochastic modeling of future interest rates.

e The Company actively monitors the impact of these
"interest rate floors” through cash flow testing and has
established additional reserve liabilities as appropriate.
Ongoing General Account BOL| sales use a product design
with lower interest rate guarantees.

* Expense management programs are constantly monitored
to control unit costs.

Europe

Risk

Management of Risk

Group Insurance
« Ability to predict mortality and morbidity claims experience
for the following year.

s Exposure to a multiple death scenario, due to
concentration of risk in employment locations.

« Through biannual repricing, claims experience monitoring,
underwriting and controls over open disability claims.

+ Imposing single event limits on schemes, and declining to
quote in localised areas where the aggregate risk is
deemed excessive.

Individuai Insurance

« Mortality, which has an impact both on claims paid during
the year and on the reserves that must be established to
fund future claims.

e Primarily through effective underwriling practices
developed to support the long-term sustainability of the
business.

« Additionally, the reserves established to fund future claims
include a provision for adverse deviation, set in accordance
with professional guidelines. This margin is necessary to
provide reasonable assurance that actuanat liabilities cover
a range of possible outcomes.

Payout Annuities
e The longevity of the annuitants improves faster or further
than the Company's assumptions.

e The assets held to match this are typically corporate
bonds, mortgages and property, and although liquidity is
not needed for these liabilties, there is some asset default
risk.

« Business is priced using prudent mortality assumptions
which take into account recent Company and industry
experience and the latest research on expected future
trends in annuitant mortality.
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Risk Management of Risk

Wealth Management

+ The Company's investment fund business is fee-based, | » Through its wide range of funds, the Company limits its risk
with revenue and profitability based on the market value of exposure to any particular market.
investment fund assets under management. The Company
earns fees based upon premium levels and asset levels.
Fluctuations in fund asset levels occur as a result of both
changes in cash flow and general investment market
conditions.

Reinsurance
* The reinsurance business encompasses a wide variety of | « Diversification of products by underlying insurance type

risks. The most significant insurance risks include: and geography continues to be a major risk mitigation tool.

* Natural catastophic events that result in property [, As retrocessionaire for property catastrophe risk, the
damage; ) o ) Company generally participates at significantly higher event

¢ Mortality risk relating to the Company's individual life loss exposures than primary carriers and reinsurers.
reinsurance business; Generally, an event of significant size must occur prior to

* The level of interest rates and investment fund the Company incurring a claim. The Company has
performance in connection with the Company's annuity |  underwriting guidelines which limits the maximum exposure

business. for catastrophe events.
Also refer to the Reputational risk discussion in the "Other | 4 The Company monitors cedant companies’ claims
Risks" section. experience on an ongoing hasis.

INVESTMENT OR MARKET RISKS

The Company acquires and manages asset portfolios to produce risk-adjusted returns in support of policyholder
obligations and corporate profitability. The Boards of Directors or the Executive Committees and the Investment
Committees of the Boards of Directors of Lifeco’s principal subsidiaries annually approve Investment and Lending
Policies, as well as Investment Procedures and Guidelines. A comprehensive report on compliance with these
policies and guidelines is presented to the Boards of Directors or Investment Committees annually, and the Internal
Audit department conducts an independent review of compliance with investment policies, procedures and
guidelines on a periodic basis.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, of C$27.3 billion of total revenue consisting of premium income,
net investment income, and fee and other income, approximately C$15.5 billion or 57% was denominated in
currencies other than Canadian dollars. Similarly, C$997 million or 53% of the C$1,875 million total net income
attributable to shareholders was denominated in foreign currencies. At December 31, 2006 approximately C$70.5
billion or 58% of C$120 billion of total general fund assets were denominated in foreign currencies.

In 2005, the rate at which the U.S. dollar operating results of the United States segment were translated into
Canadian dollars was $1.3152. Also, the operating results of the Europe segment were transtated into Canadian
dollars at $2.3272 for the British pound, $1.6159 for the euro, and $1.2553 for US dollars. These rates reflect the
beneficial impact of forward foreign exchange contracts that had been put in place to hedge against volatility in
foreign currency translation. These contracts, in aggregate, resuited in a $87 million after-tax gain in 2005 (350
million in connection with U.S. dollar operating results, $11 million in connection with British pound operating
results, and $6 million in connection with euro operating results), and expired at the end of 2005. In 2006, the
Company's foreign currency denominated operating results were translated to Canadian dollars at prevailing
market translation rates,

The significant investment or market risks assaociated with the business are outlined below.
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Interest rate risk

« Interest rate risk exists if asset and liability cash
flows are not closely matched and interest rates
change causing a difference in value between the
asset and liability.

+ The Company utilizes a format process for managing the matching of
assets and liabilities. This involves grouping general fund assets and
liabilities into segments. Assets in each segment are managed in
relation to the liabilities in the segment.

» Interest rate risk is managed by investing in assets that are suitable
for the products sold.

+ For products with fixed and highly predictable benefit payments,
investments are made in fixed income assets that closely match
the liability product cash flows. Protection against interest rate
change is achieved as any change in the fair market value of the
assets will be offset by a similar change in the fair market value of
the liabilities.

For products with uncertain timing of benefit payments,
investments are made in fixed income assets with cash flows of
shorter duration than the anticipated timing of the benefit
payments.

= The risks associated with the mismatch in portfolio duration and cash

flow, asset prepayment exposure and the pace of asset acquisition
are quantified and reviewed regularly.

Equity market risk

+ Given the volatility in equity market values, income
in any year may be adversely affected hy
decreases in market values, notwithstanding the
Company's long term expectation of investment
returns appropriate for this asset class.

« The Company's investment policy guidelines provide for prudent
investment in equity markets within clearly defined limits.

Credit risk

+ The risk of loss if debtors, counterparties or
intermediaries are unable or unwilling to fulfill their
financial obligations.

« It is Company policy to acquire only investment-grade assets and
minimize undue concentration of assets in any single geographic
area, industry and cormpany.

+ Guidelines specify minimum and maximum limits for each asset
class. Credit ratings for bonds are determined by recognized external
credit rating agencies and/or intemal credit review.

s These portfolios are monitored continuously and reviewed regularly
with the Boards of Directors or the Investment Committees of the
Boards of Directors.

= Off-balance sheet credit risk is evaluated quarterly on a current
exposure method, using practices that are at least as conservative as
those recommencded by regulators.

Liquidity risk (operating)

+ The risk of loss if insufficient funds are available to
meet anticipated operating commitments and
unexpected cash demands.

+» The Company closely manages operating liquidity through cash flow
matching of assets and liabilities, and at December 31, 2006 had
approximately $62.3 billion in_highly marketable securities.
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Liquidity risk (letters of credit)

 In the normal course of its Reinsurance business, the Company
provides Letters of Credit (LOC) to other parties, or
beneficiaries. A beneficiary will typically hold an LOC as
collateral in order to secure statutory credit for reserves ceded
to or amounts due from the Company. An LOC may be drawn
upon demand. If an amount is drawn on an LOC by a
beneficiary, the bank issuing the LOC will make a payment to
the beneficiary for the amount drawn, and the Company will
become obligated to repay this amount to the bank.

+ Management monitors its use of LOCs on a regular
basis, and assesses the ongoing availability of these
and alternative forms of operating credit.

Liquidity risk (holding company structure)

¢ As a holding company, the Company’s ability to pay interest,
dividends and operating expenses and to meet its obligations
generally depends upon receipt of sufficient funds from its
principal subsidiaries.

¢ The payment of interest and dividends by the principal
subsidiaries is subject to restrictions set forth in relevant
insurance and corporate laws and regulations which require
that sclvency and capital standards be maintained by Great-
West Life, London Life, CLFC, Canada Life and GWLS&A.

= Management closely monitors the solvency and
capital positions of its principal subsidiaries opposite
liquidity requirements at the holding company.
Additional liquidity is available through established
lines of credit and the Company's demonstrated
ability to access capital markets for funds. The
Company maintains a $200 million committed line of
credit with a Canadian chartered bank.

Translation risk

* The Company operates in different currencies. Non-Canadian
currency earnings are translated for reporting purposes into
Canadian dollars. Translation risk occurs as a result of
converting these earnings at different points in time at different
foreign exchange levels.

e Management, from time to time, utilizes forward
foreign currency contracts to mitigate the volatility
arising from the movement of rates as they impact
the translation of operating results denominated in
foreign currency.

« The Company uses non-GAAP financial measures
such as constant currency calculations to assist in
communicating the effect of currency translation
fluctuation.

Foreign exchange risk (asset/liability)

+ The risk of loss from adverse changes in foreign currency
exchange rates.

¢ |Investments are normally made in the same currency
as the liabilities supported by those investments.

= Foreign currency assets acquired to back liabilities
are generally converted back to the currency of the
liability using foreign exchange contracts.
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Risk

Management of Risk

Derivative instruments

» The risk of loss if counterparties are unable or unwilling to fulfill | « Used only to hedge imbalances in asset and liabitity
their financial obligations or if derivatives are used for positions or as substitutes for cash instruments; they

inappropriate purposes.

= May include interest rate, foreign exchange and equity swaps,

options, futures and forward contracts.

are not used for speculative purposes. Derivative
products are traded with counterparties approved by
the Boards of Directors or the Investment
Committees of the Boards of Directors.

s The Company's risk management process goveming
the use of derivative instruments requires that the
Company acts only as an end-user of derivative
products, not as a market maker.

* As well, the Company has strict operating policies
which prohibit the use of derivative products for
speculative purposes, permit transactions only with
approved counterparties, specify limits on
concentration of risk, and documents approval and
issuer limits, as well as required reporting and
monitoring systems.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Risk

Management of Risk

Operational risk

¢ Operational risk is the risk of direct or
indirect loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events.

» The Company manages and mitigates internal operational risks through

integrated and complementary policies, procedures, processes and practices.
Human Resources hiring, performance evaluation, promotion and
compensation practices are designed to attract, retain and develop the skilled
personnel required. A comprehensive job evaluation process is in place and
training and development programs are supported. Each business area
provides training designed for their specific needs and has developed
appropriate internal controls. Processes and controls are monitored and
refined by the business areas and periodically reviewed by the Company's
internal audit staff. Financial reporting processes and controls are further
examined by extemal auditors. The Company applies a robust project
management discipline to all significant initiatives.

* Appropriate security measures protect premises and information. The

Company has emergency procedures in place for short term incidents or
cutages and is committed to maintaining business continuity and disaster
recovery plans in every business location for the recovery of critical functions
in the event of a disaster, which include offsite backup data storage and work
area facilities.
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OTHER RISKS
Other risks not specifically identified elsewhere, include:

Risk

Management of Risk

Legal and regulatory risk

The businesses of certain of Lifeco's principal subsidiaries are
subject to various regulatory requirements imposed by
legislation and regulation in Canada, the United States, the
United Kingdom and other jurisdictions applicable to insurance
companies and companies providing financial services. These
regulations are primarily intended to protect policyholders and
beneficiaries, not shareholders. Material changes in the
regulatory framework or the failure to comply with legal and
regulatory requirements could have a material adverse effect
on Lifeco.

¢ The Company monitors compliance with the legal and
regulatory requirements in all jurisdictions where it
conducts business and assesses trends in legal and
regulatory change to keep business areas current and
responsive.

Reputational risk
* In the course of its business activities, the Company may be

exposed to the risk that some actions may lead to damage to
the Company's reputation and hence damage to its future
business prospects.

These actions may include unauthorized activities of
employees or other people associated with the Company,
inadvertent actions of the Company that become publicized
and damage the Company's reputation, regular or past
business activities of the Company that become the subject of
regulator or media scrutiny and, due to a change of public
perception, cause damage to the Company, or any other
action or activity that gives rise to damage to the Company's
general reputation.

Through its subsidiaries, the Company is both a user and a
provider of reinsurance, including both traditional reinsurance,
which is undertaken primarily to mitigate against assumed
insurance risks, and financial or finite reinsurance, under
which the amount of insurance risk passed to the reinsurer or
its reinsureds may be more limited.

The Company through its reinsurance operating entities has
been approached by certain regulatery and enforcement
agencies to provide information relating to their investigation of
certain third party reinsurance cedants. Neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries are the subject of these investigations.

To manage or mitigate this risk the Company has
angoing controls to limit the unauthorized activities of
people associated with the Company. The Company
has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
which sets out the standards of business conduct to be
foliowed by all directors, officers and employees of the
Company. The Company also reacts to address
situations that may escalate to a level that might give
rise to damage to its reputation.

The Company accounts for all reinsurance transactions
according to Canadian GAAP. In some cases Canadian
GAAP may differ from the accounting treatment utilized
by the Company's reinsurers or its reinsureds based
upon the rules applicable to them in their reporting
jurisdictions. The Company believes that reinsurance
transactions that it has entered into are appropriate and
properly accounted for by the Company.
Notwithstanding, the Company may, in connection with
this type of reinsurance, be exposed to reputational or
other risks depending on future events.

SUMMARY OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Canadian
GAAP requires management to adopt accounting policies and to make estimates and assumptions that affect
amounts reported in the Consoclidated Financial Statements. The major accounting policies and related critical
accounting estimates underlying Lifeco's financial statements are summarized below. In applying these policies,
management makes subjective and complex judgments that frequently require estimates about matters that are
inherently uncertain. Many of these policies are common in the insurance and other financial services industries;
others are specific to the Company's businesses and operations. The significant accounting estimates are as
follows:
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Actuarial liabilities - Actuarial liabilities represent the amounts required, in addition to future premiums and
investment income, to provide for future benefit payments, policyholder dividends, commission and policy
administrative expenses for all insurance and annuity policies in force with the Company. The Appointed Actuaries
of the Company’s subsidiary companies are responsible for determining the amount of the actuarial liabilities to
make appropriate provision for the Company's obligations to policyholders. The Appeinted Actuaries determine the
actuarial liabilities using generally accepted actuanal practices, according to the standards established by the
Canadian Institute of Actuaries. The valuation uses the Canadian Asset Liability Method (CALM). This method
involves the projection of future events in order to determine the amount of assets that must be set aside currently
to provide for all future ohligations and involves a significant amount of judgment.

In the computation of actuarial liabilities, wvaluation assumptions have been made regarding rates of
mortality/morbidity, investment returns, levels of operating expenses and rates of policy termination. The valuation
assumptions use best estimates of future experience together with a margin for misestimation and experience
deterioration. These margins have been set in accordance with guidelines established by the Canadian Institute of
Actuaries and are necessary to provide reasonable assurance that actuarial liabilities cover a range of possible
outcomes. Margins are reviewed periodically for continued appropriateness.

The methods for arriving at these valuation assumptions are outlined below:

Mortality

A life insurance mortality study is carried out annually for each major block of insurance business. The results of
each study are used to update the Company’s experience valuation mortality tables for that business. When there
is insufficient data, use is made of the latest industry experience to derive an appropriate valuation mortality
assumption. Although mortality improvements have been observed for many years, for life insurance valuation the
mortality provisions (including margin) do not allow for future improvements. A 1% increase in the best estimate
assumption would increase non-participating actuarial liabilities by approximately $74 million.

Annuitant mortality is also studied regularly and the results used to modify established industry experience
annuitant mortality tables. Mortality improvement has been projected to occur throughout future years for
annuitants. A 1% decrease in the best estimate assumption would increase non-participating actuarial liabilities by
approximately $89 miflion.

Morbidity

The Company uses industry developed experience tables modified to reflect emerging company experience. Both
claim incidence and termination are monitored regularly and emerging experience is factored into the current
valuation. For products for which morbidity is a significant assumption a 1% adverse change in the best
assumption would increase non-participating actuarial fiabilities by approximately 344 milfion.

Property and casualty reinsurance

Actuarial liabilities for property and casualty reinsurance written by LRG, a subsidiary of London Life, are
determined using accepted actuarial practices for life insurers in Canada. Reflecting the long-term nature of the
business, reserves have been established using cash flow valuation techniques including discounting. The
reserves are based on cession statements provided by ceding companies. In certain instances, LRG management
adjusts cession statement amounts to reflect management's interpretation of the treaty. Differences will be
resolved via audits and other loss mitigation activities. In addition, reserves also include an amount for incurred but
not reported losses (IBNR) which may differ significantly from the ultimate loss development. The estimates and
underlying methodology are continually reviewed and updated and adjustments to estimates are reflected in
income. LRG analyzes the emergence of claims experience against expected assumptions for each reinsurance
contract separately and at the portfolio level. If necessary, a more in depth analysis is undertaken of the cedant
experience.
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Investment returns

The assets which correspond to the different liability categories are segmented. For each segment, projected cash
flows from the current assets and liabilities are used in CALM to determine actuarial liabilities. Cash flows from
assets are reduced to provide for asset default losses. Testing under several interest rate scenarios (including
increasing and decreasing rates) is done to provide for reinvestment risk.

One way of measuring the interest rate risk associated with this assumption is to determine the effect on the
present value of the projected net asset and liability cash flows of the non-participating business of the Company of
an immediate 1% increase or an immediate 1% decrease in the level of interest rates. These interest rate changes
will impact the projected cash flows.
= The effect of an immediafe 1% increase in interest rates would be to increase the present value of these
projected cash flows by approximately $74 miflion
s The effect of an immediate 1% decrease in interest rates would be to decrease the present value of these net
projected cash flows by approximately $295 million.
The level of actuarial liabilities established under CALM valuation provides for interest rate movements significantly
greater than the 1% shifts shown above.

A 10% increase in equily markets would be expected to decrease non-participating actuarial labilities by
approximately $5 million, primarily as a result of equities backing long-tail liabilities. A 10% decrease in equity
markets would be expected to increase non-participating actuarial liabilities by approximately $5 million, primarily
as a result of equities backing long-tail liabilities.

Expenses

Unit expense studies are updated regularly to determine an appropriate estimate of future expenses for the liability
type being valued. Expense improvements are not projected. An inflation assumption is incorporated in the
estimate of future expenses consistent with the interest rate scenarios projected under CALM. A 10% increase in
the best estimate maintenance unit expense assumption Company wide would increase the non-participating
actuarial liabilities by approximately $135 million.

Palicy termination

Studies to determine rates of policy termination are updated regularly te form the basis of this estimate. Industry
data is also available and is useful where the Company has no experience with specific types of policies or its
exposure is limited. A 10% adverse change in the best estimate policy termination assumption would increase non-
participating actuarial liabilities by approximately $281 miflion.

Policyholder dividends

Future policyholder dividends are included in the determination of actuarial liabilities for participating policies, with
the assumption that policyholder dividends will change in the future to reflect the experience of the respective
participating accounts, consistent with the participating policyholder dividend policies. It is our expectation that
associated with changes in the best estimate assumptions for participating business would be corresponding
changes in policyholder dividend scales, that would not result in a material net change in actuarial liabiities for
participating business.

income taxes — As multinational life insurance companies, the Company's primary Canadian operating subsidiartes
are subject to a regime of specialized rules prescribed under the Income Tax Act (Canada) for purposes of
determining the amount of the companies' income that will be subject to tax in Canada. Accordingly, the
determination of the companies' provision for income taxes involves the application of these complex rules in
respect of which alternative interpretations may arise.

Management recognizes that interpretations it may make in connection with its tax filings may ultimately differ from
those made by the tax authorities and accounts for these potential differences in its financial statements. Upon
resolution of any such differences, amounts provided by management may be recognized in earnings to reflect
actual experience.
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The Company has substantial future income tax assets. The recognition of future tax assets depends on
management's assumption that future eamings will be sufficient to realize the deferred benefit. The amount of the
asset recorded is based on management's best estimate of the timing of the reversal of the asset.

Employee future benefits — Accounting for pension and other post-retirement benefits requires estimates of future
returns on plan assets, expected increases in compensation levels, trends in health care costs, as well as the
appropriate discount rate for accrued benefit obligations.

Significant assumptions - employee future benefits

Defined benefit Other post-retirement
pension plans benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
Welighted average assumptions used to
determine henefit cost
Discount rate 5.26% 5.94% 5.21% 6.22%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 6.19% 6.83% - -
Rate of compensation increase 4.21% 4.89% 4.31% 5.01%
Walghtod average assumptions used to
determine accrued benefit obligation
Discount rate 5.12% 5.26% 5.05% 5.27%
Rate of compensation increase 4.13% 4.21% 4.22% 4.31%

Weighted average health care trend rates — In determining the expected cost of health care benefits, heaith care
costs were assumed to increase by 6.74% in 2006 and gradually decrease to a level of 4.75% by 2011. For 2005,
the impact of a 1% change to assumed health care rates on the accrued post-retirement benefit obligation is an
approximate $44 million ($44 million in 2005} increase for a 1% increase to rates and an approximate $35 million
{$37 million in 2005) decrease for a 1% decrease to rates. Similarly, the impact on the post-retirement benefit
expense of a 1% increase to rates is an approximate $3 million ($8 million in 2005} increase and a 1% decrease to
rates is an approximate $3 million ($6 million in 2005} decrease.

FUTURE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial instruments — Effective January 1, 2007, the Company will be required to comply with the new provisions
of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook on accounting for Financial Instruments. The
new sections on Financial instruments, Hedges and Comprehensive Income, including revisions to the section on
Life Insurance Enterprises and many other sections, replace all previous guidance on these items issued by the
CICA.

On June 22, 2006, The Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions Canada issued Guideline D-10 ~
Accounting for Financial Instruments Designated as “Held for Trading” (Fair Value Option) (OSFI D-10), which
provides additional guidance to certain federally regulated financial institutions, including life insurance companies.

On December 28, 2006, the Department of Finance, Canada released proposals to better align the current income
tax rules with the new accounting standards. Draft legislation is expected to be released for public comment in
2007.

Under the new guidance, all financial assets, including derivatives, must be classified as available for sale, held for
trading, held to maturity, or loans and receivables. All financial liabilities, including derivatives, must be classified
as held for trading or other. All financial instruments classified as available for sale or held for trading are required
to be recognized at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheet while financial instruments classified as loans and
receivables or other will continue to be measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The
standards allow the Company to designate certain financial instruments, on initial recognition, as held for trading.
This option has been limited by the requirements of OSFi D-10.
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Changes in the fair value of financial instruments classified as held for trading will be reported in net income.
Unrealized gains or losses on financial instruments classified as available for sale will be reported in Other
Comprehensive Income until they are realized by the Company.

The new guidance introduces the concept of Other Comprehensive Income, which will track unrealized gains and
losses experienced by the Company on certain investments and derivative instruments, and the currency
translation account movement. Other Comprehensive Income together with Net Income provides the financial
statement reader with Comprehensive Income. Comprehensive Income is the total of all realized and unrealized
income, expenses, gains and losses related to the Consolidated Balance Sheet including currency translation gains
and losses on foreign subsidiary operaticns.

The Company will measure certain investments, primarily investments actively traded in a public market, and
certain financial liabilities at their fair value. Investments backing actuarial liabilities will be classified as held for
trading using the fair value option. Changes in the fair value of these investments will flow through net income.
This impact is expected to be largely offset by corresponding changes in the actuarial liabilities which will also flow
through net income. Investments backing shareholder capital and surplus will be classified as available for sale.
Unrealized gains and losses on these investments will flow through Other Comprehensive Income until they are
realized. Certain investment portfolios will be classified as held for trading as reflection of their underlying nature.
Changes in the fair value of these investments will flow through net income. No change to the Company’s method
of accounting for real estate or loans is anticipated.

Derivative instruments, previously off-balance sheet, will be recognized at their market value in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. Derivatives embedded in financial instruments, or other contracts, which are not closely related to
the host financial instrument, or contract, must be bifurcated and recognized independently. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives will be recognized in net income except for derivatives designated as effective hedges.

Three types of hedging relationships are permitted under the new guidance: fair value hedges, cash flow hedges,
and hedges of net investments in self-sustaining foreign operations. Changes in fair value hedges are recognized
in net income. The effective portion of cash flow hedges, and hedges of net investments in self-sustaining foreign
operations, are offset through Other Comprehensive Income until the variability in cash flows being hedged is
recognized in net income.

Life Insurance enterprises will no longer defer net realized gains on financial instruments (bonds, stocks, and
mortgages), nor will they be allowed to carry investments in stocks at cost plus a moving average market value
adjustment for unrealized gains and losses. Deferred net realized gains on bonds, stocks, and mortgages, carried
on the balance sheet at December 31, 2006, will be transferred to surplus on transition to the new rules. At
December 31, 20086, deferred net realized gains totaled $2,821 million or $2,628 million excluding real estate.
Included in this total is $118 million of losses realized on bonds, stocks and mortgages that supported shareholders
capital and surplus.

The new accounting guidance is expected to contribute to volatility within certain income statement line items,
particularly for investment income and actuarial provisions. However, based on the Company’s review to this point,
it does not expect that the new guidance will result in a material impact on net income, other than as a result of the
inability to continue to amortize the balance of net deferred realized unamortized gains on assets supporting
shareholders capital and surplus that will exist at the time of transition to the new accounting rules. For the year
ended December 31, 2008, the amortization of net realized and unrealized gains was $619 million in total. For
investments backing actuarial liabilities, the loss of amortization in connection with these assets is expected to be
largely offset by corresponding changes in the actuarial liabilities which will atso flow through net income. Included
in the $619 million is $92 million of amortization in connection with bonds, stocks and mortgages associated with
shareholders capital and surplus which will not be offset by changes to actuaria! liabilities.

On October 18, 2008, the CICA issued an exposure draft amending the transitional provisions relating to the new
guidance on hedges. The Company will complete its determination of the transition adjustment for hedges once
the new transitional guidance is finalized.
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SEGMENTED OPERATING RESULTS

The consolidated operating results of Lifeco include the operating results of Great-West Life, London Life, Canada
Life and GWL&EA.

For reporting purposes, the consolidated operating results are grouped into four reportable segments, Canada,
United States, Europe, and Lifeco Corporate reflecting geographic lines as well as the management and corporate
structure of the companies.

CANADA

The Canadian segment of Lifeco includes the operating results of the Canadian businesses operated by Great-
West Life, London Life, and Canada Life. There are two primary business units included in this segment. Through
its Group Insurance business unit, the Company provides life, health, critical illness, disability and creditor
insurance products to group clients in Canada. Through its Individual Insurance & Investments Products business
unit, the Company provides life, disability and critical illness insurance products to individual clients, as well as
accumulation products and annuity products for both group and individual clients in Canada.

Selected consolidated financial information - Canada

For the three months For the twelve months
ended December 31 ended December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change

Total premiums and deposits $ 5400 § 3413 58% $ 16,243 % 13,358 22%
Fee and other income 236 198 19% 895 774 16%
Paid or credited to policyholders 3,472 1,705 104% 8,231 6,430 28%
Net income - commaon shareholders 223 171 30% 893 773 16%
Total assets $ 49923 § 49,189 1%
Segregated funds net assets 44,656 38,854 15%
Total assets under administration $ 94,579 § 88,043 7%
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Consolidated operations
For the twelve months
ended December 31

For the three months
ended December 31

2006 20056 2006 2005
Income:
Premium income $ 3,375 $ 1,582 $ 8,149 $ 6,135
Net investment income 724 707 2,789 2,779
Fee and other income 236 198 895 774
Total income 4,335 2,487 11,833 §,688
Benafits and expensas:
Paid or credited to policyholders 3,472 1,705 8,231 6,430
Other 548 489 2,204 2,053
Amortization of finite life intangible assets 3 4 14 14
Net operating income before income taxes 312 289 1,384 1,191
Income taxes 55 79 317 284
Net income before non-controlling interests 257 210 1,067 907
Non-controlling interests 24 26 132 101
Neot income - sharehoiders 233 182 935 806
Perpetual preferred share dividends 10 11 42 33
Nat income - common shareholders $ 223 $ 171 $ 893 $ 773
NET INCOME
Net Income - common shareholders
For the three months For the twelve months
ended December 31 ended December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Group Insurance $ 80 3 72 11% $ 335 § 294 14%
Individual Insurance & Investment Products 149 113 32% 583 514 13%
Corporate {6) {14) - (25) (35) -
$ 223 § 171 30% $ 893 § 773 16%
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PREMIUMS AND DEPOSITS AND SALES

For the three months For the twelve months
Premlums and deposits snded Decoember 31 onded December 31
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Group Insurance $ 2,796 § 1161 141% $ 6398 $ 4608 39%
Individual Insurance & Investment Products 2,604 2,252 16% 9,845 8,750 13%
Total premiums and deposits $ 5400 § 3413 58% $ 16,243 3 13,358 22%
Sumimnary by Type
Risk-based products $ 3375 § 1,582 113% $ 8149 % 6135 33%
ASOQ contracts 546 502 9% 2,145 1,955 10%
Segregated funds deposits
Individual products 739 651 14% 2,941 2,586 14%
Group products 740 678 9% 3,008 2,682 12%
Total premiums and deposits $ 5400 $ 3,413 58% $ 16,243 $ 13,358 22%
For the three months For the twelve months
Sales ended December 31 anded Decamber 31
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Group Insurance $ 113 § 121 -7% $ 416 $ 398 5%
Individual Insurance & Investment Products 2,282 1,686 35% 7,904 6,172 28%
Total sales $ 2395 § 1,807 33% $ 8320 3 8,570 27%

BUSINESS UNITS - CANADA
GROUP INSURANCE

BUSINESS PROFILE

In Canada, the Company offers effective benefit solutions for large and small employee groups. Through its
Canada Life subsidiary, the Company is a recognized leader in the creditor insurance business with over $1.5
billion in annual direct premium.

MARKET OVERVIEW

PRODUGTS AND SERVICES
The Company provides a full array of life, health and creditor insurance products that are distributed primarily
through Group sales offices across the country.
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MARKET POSITION PRODUCTS AND SERVICES DISTRIBUTION
+ Employee benefits for more than 31,000 Life and Health + 112 account managers and sales staff
plan sponscrs » Life located in 15 Group Offices
» 22.9% market share for + Disability + 104 Regional Employee Benefils
employeefemployer plans « Critical iliness Managers and Selectpac Specialists
+ Leading market share for creditor plans * Accidenial death & dismemberment located in Resource Centres
« Dental plans
e Expatriate coverage
+ Extended health care plans
Creditor
» Creditor life

+ Creditor disability
« Creditor job loss
« Creditor critical illness

COMPETITIVE CONDITIONS

There are three large group insurance carriers in Canada with significant market positions, led by the Company
with a 22.9% market share. There are a number of other smaller companies operating nationally and several
regional and niche companies including the Blue Cross organizations. The group insurance market is highly
competitive. A strong market share position is essential to compete successfully in the Canadian group insurance
market.

Within the small and mid-sized case markets, there are significant pricing pressures as employers seek to find
ways to counter the inflationary costs of health care. A company with low cost operations, extensive distribution
networks, strong service capability and cost-containment product offerings will have a competitive advantage in
these markets.

In the larger case market, while low cost is a factor, service excellence and cost-containment product innovations
are most important. In this market, a company that can effectively develop and implement innovative products and
efficient administrative processes through the use of new technologies to meet emerging client requirements will
differentiate itself and achieve competitive advantage.

2006 DEVELOPMENTS

* Net income to shareholders grew 14% to $335 million.

» Overall sales results grew by 5%, reflecting growth in all market segments except for large case insured.

» The Company recaptured 50% of amounts previously ceded in 2003 under a bulk reinsurance agreement on

certain blocks of group life and long term disability insurance. The recaptured premium associated with this
transaction is $1,560 million.
OPERATING RESULTS
Net income
in quarter
Net income attributable to common shareholders was $80 million, which represents an increase of 11% compared
to the fourth quarter of 2005.

The results reflect improved group health morbidity experience on small and mid-size long term disability cases and
improved mortality experience on lower than expected claims.
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Twelve months
Net income attributable to common shareholders was $335 million, which represents an increase of 14% compared
to $294 million in 2005.

The increase reflects improved group health morbidity experience on smail and mid-size long term disability cases,
improved mortality on lower than expected claims and higher interest gains mainly due to favourable investment
experience and asset/liability matching.

Premiums and deposits and sales

Group Insurance - divisional summary

Premiums and deposits

For the three months
ended December 31

For the twelve months
anded December 31

Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Small/mid-sized case $ 471 454 4% $ 1,865 $ 1,817 3%
Large case - insured 414 376 10% 1,603 1,583 3%

- ASO 548 502 9% 2,145 1,955 10%
- creditor/direct marketing 33 36 -8% 129 139 -T%
Sub-total 1,464 1,368 7% 5,742 5,464 5%
Premiums reinsured
Small/mid-sized case {122) {112) (479) (463)
Large case - insured {106} {95} (425) (393)
Sub-total $ 1236 % 1.161 6% $ 4838 § 4,608 5%
Premiums recaptured
Small/mid-sized case 924 - 924 -
Large case  -insured 636 - 636 -
Net premiums $ 2796 % 1,161 141% $ 6,398 § 4,608 38%
For the three months For the twelve months

Sales ended Decamber 31 ended December 31

Business/Product ‘ 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Small/mid-sized case $ 62 3% 57 9% $ 196 % 183 7%
Large case - insured 17 38 -55% 66 78 -15%

- ASO 19 20 -5% 108 97 1%
- creditoridirect marketing 15 5] 150% 46 40 15%
Total sales $ 113 § 121 -7% $ 45 5 398 5%
In quarter

Total net premiums and deposits were $2,796 million, which is 141% higher than the fourth quarter of 2005.
Excluding the impact of $1,560 million of premiums recaptured in 2006 under a bulk reinsurance agreement and
$228 million of premiums ceded under a bulk reinsurance agreement ($207 million in 2005) premium and deposits
increased 7% over the comparative period in 2005. Large case ASO premiums and deposits increased 9%
resulting from strong sales in the first quarter of 2006. Creditor/direct marketing net premium decreased 8% mainly
due to an increase in percentage of premium reinsured in 2006.

Overall sales results in the quarter were down 7% compared to 2005. Large case insured sales were lower mainly
due to a large sale in the fourth quarter of 2005 as well as a higher average case size in 2005. Creditor
direct/marketing sales were higher mainly due to a large sale in 2008,
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Twelve months
Total net premiums and deposits were $6,398 million, which was 39% greater than 2005.

Excluding the impact of $1,560 million of premiums recaptured in 2006 under a bulk reinsurance agreement and
$904 million of premiums ceded under a bulk reinsurance agreement ($856 million in 2005), premiums and
deposits increased by 5% over the comparative period in 2005. ASO premiums and deposits increased 10%
resulting from strong sales in 2006. Creditor/direct marketing net premiums decreased 7% mainly due to an
increase in the percentage of premium reinsured in 2006.

Sales results improved 5% in 2006. The increase was due to improvements in the small/mid-sized and ASO
markets and in particular in the ASO market mainly due to three large sales for $48 million in 2006 compared to
three large sales for $41 million in 2005.

OUTLOOK — GROUP INSURANCE
Refer to Cautionary Note regarding Forward-looking Information and Cautionary Note regarding Non-GAAP
Financial Measures at the beginning of this document.

The Company is well positioned within the Canadian group insurance business with leading market shares in many
case size, regional and benefit market segments. The Company believes that this market share position, together
with its low cost position and extensive distribution capability will facilitate continued growth in revenue premium.
Through the effective investment in technologies, the Company expects to achieve continued reductions in
administration and claims adjudication costs, thereby enhancing its competitive position.

As the costs of employee benefits continues to gain the attention of plan sponsors, the Company is developing an
array of enhanced products and services for plan members, plan sponsors and their advisors. These range from
additional services being provided through the Internet, early intervention disability management programs,
increased fraud detection and claims abuse capabilities, as well as wellness and illness prevention services such
as Health Factors, work-life solutions which the Company introduced late 2006. The Company will continue to
provide an extensive menu of products and services to meet the evolving needs of our various customer segments.

INDIVIDUAL INSURANCE & INVESTMENT PRODUCTS

BUSINESS PROFILE

Individual Insurance & Investment Products (IIIP) consists of four business lines: Individual Life Insurance, Living
Benefits, Individual Retirement & Investment Services (IRIS) and Group Retirement Services. Products are
distributed through Freedom 55 Financial™ and Great-West Life financial security advisors, Canada Life distribution
partners, including managing general agents (MGAs) and their associated brokers and independent brokers and
intercorporate agreements with other financial institutions.

The Company utilizes diverse, complementary distribution channels and enjoys leading market shares in Canada in
all individual product lines.

The individual lines of business access the various distribution channels through distinct product labels offered by
Great-West Life, London Life and Canada Life. Unique products and services meet the needs of each distribution
channel, allowing the Company to maximize opportunities while minimizing channel conflict.
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MARKET OVERVIEW

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
The Company provides a full array of protection and savings products that are distributed through multipte sales
channels. Products are marketed under the Great-West Life, London Life and Canada Life labels.

The Company offers 65 Freedom Funds'™ to individual Freedom 55 Financial™ clients, 56 Generations™/
Generations [ Funds to individual Canada Life clients and 58 segregated funds to individual Great-West Life clients.

Quadrus Investment Services (Quadrus} offers 39 mutual funds under the Quadrus Group of Funds™ brand and
over 3,200 third party mutual funds. Mackenzie Financial Corporation, a member of the Power Financial

Corporation group of companies, manages the Quadrus Group of Funds.

individual life insurance in-
force premium

31% market share of
individual living benefits in-
force premium

31% market share of
individual segregated funds
22% market share of group
capital accumulation plans

« Term life
+ Universal life
+ Participating life

Living Benefits
» Disability
« Critical illness

+ Segregated and mutual funds

+ Retirement savings plans

» Non-registered savings
programs

s Deferred profit sharing plans

+ Defined confribution pension
plans

+ Payout annuities

« Deferred annuities

= Investment management
services only plans

+ Retirement income funds

¢ Life income funds

Administrative Services

MARKET POSITION PRODUCTS AND SERVICES DISTRIBUTION
. Retirement & Investment
Individual insurance Services
o 25% market share of Individual Life Insurance Products 1,810 Great-West Life

financial security advisors
3,051 Freedom 55 Financial™
financial security advisors
2,335 Investors Group
consultants

6,932 independent advisors
associated with 57 managing
general agents

1,395 independent advisors
associated with 15 national
accounts

2,492 independent brokers
and benefit consultants

603 independent, contracted
advisors

» Employee stock purchase
and aptions plans
+ [ncentive plans

COMPETITIVE CONDITIONS

The individual insurance, savings, and investments marketplace is highly competitive. The Company's competitors
include mutual fund companies, insurance companies, banks, investment advisors, as well as other service and
professional organizations. Competition focuses on service, technology, cost and variety of investment options,
investment performance, product features, price, and financial strength, as indicated by ratings issued by nationally
recognized agencies.

2006 DEVELOPMENTS
e Building on strong momentum in 2005, universal life sales in 20086 grew 72% over the previous year.

e Group Retirement Services sales, including capital accumulation, investment only and payout plans, increased
63% over 2005.

e Sales of proprietary retail investment funds, including segregated funds and Quadrus Group of Funds,
increased by 18% which contributed to asset growth of 18%.

¢ In the second quarter of 2008, the Company recaptured 20% of the Individual life insurance business ceded
under a bulk reinsurance treaty in 2003.
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OPERATING RESULTS
Net income

Net income - common shareholders

For the three months For the twelve months
ended December 31 ended Docember 31
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Individual Life $ 50 $ 79 -37% $ 234 % 220 6%
Living Benefits 24 20 20% 76 66 15%
Individual Retirement & Investment Services 51 8 - 179 141 27%
Group Retirement Services 24 6 - 94 87 8%
$ 149 % 113 32% $ 583 § 514 13%

In quarter
Net income attributable to common shareholders for the three months ended December 31, 2006 was $149 million
compared to $113 million in the fourth quarter of 2005, an increase of $36 million or 32%.

Individual Life net income was $50 million compared to $79 million in 2005. Previous year’s results included a
significant reserve contribution to earnings as a result of favourable asset/liability matching.

Living Benefits net income was $24 million compared to $20 million in 2005. The favourable 2006 results reflect
significant improvement in morbidity experience, greater investment gains and favourable actuarial basis change.

IRIS net income was $51 million compared to $8 million in 2005. This large increase is primarily attributable to
significant strengthening of actuarial reserves in 2005. Also, 2006 earnings benefited from increased expense
gains from strong asset growth and favourable investment gains.

Group Retirement Services net income was $24 million compared to $6 million in 2005. This was as a result of
significant strengthening of actuarial reserves in 2005. In addition, 2006 mortality experience is much improved
over 2005,

Net income attributable to participating account was $20 million, $4 miilion less than in the fourth quarter of 2005.

Twelve months
Net income attributable to common shareholders was $583 million compared to $514 million in 2005, an increase of
$69 million or 13%.

Individual Life net income was $234 million compared to $220 million in 2005. The increase is due to a greater
contribution from reserves partially offset by additional new business strain due to an increase in universal life sales
of 72%.

Living Benefits net income was $76 million compared to $66 million in 2005. The increase reflects much improved
investment and morbidity experience partially offset by lower expense gains.

IRIS net income was $179 million compared to $141 million in 2005. Earnings in 2005 were decreased by
significant actuarial reserve strengthening. Results in 2006 reflect favourable investment gains and improved
expense gains from continued strong growth of our segregated fund and mutual fund products.

Group Retirement Services net income was $94 million compared to $87 million in 2005. Earnings in 2005 were
decreased by actuarial reserve strengthening. As well, 2006 results reflect improved expense gains from higher
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segregated fund assets partially offset by higher strain from an increase in annuity sales of 168% and lower
investment gains.

Net income attributable to participating account of $114 million increased $31 million year over year.

Premiums and deposits and sales

Individual Insurance & Investment Products - divisional summary

For the three months For the twelva months
Premiums and deposits endad December 31 ended Decembeor 31
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Life Insurance - Participating $ 490 % 474 3% $ 1,848 § 1,791 3%
- Non-participating 151 128 18% 550 484 14%
Living Benafits 63 59 7% 243 231 5%
Individual Retirament & Investment Services
Risk-based products 98 a5 3% 365 366 -
Segregated funds 738 651 14% 2,941 2,586 14%
Group Retirement Services
Risk-based products a3 167 93% 890 610 46%
Segregated funds 740 678 9% 3,008 2,682 12%
Total premiums and deposits $ 2604 § 2252 16% $ 9845 § 8,750 13%
For the three months For the twelve months
Sales ended December 31 ended Dacember 31
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Life Insurance - Participating $ k3 - 23 35% $ 87 % 80 9%
- Non-participating 38 29 % 128 92 39%
Living Benefits 12 " 9% 43 45 4%
Individual Retirement & Investment Services
Risk-based products 211 208 1% 762 788 -3%
Segregated funds 935 795 18% 3,506 3,067 14%
Securities ™ 337 202 67% 1,146 731 57%
Group Retirement Services
Risk-based products 233 78 199% 561 228 146%
Segregated funds 290 214 36% 1,122 735 53%
Securities " 195 126 55% 649 406 35%
Total sales $ 2282 § 1,686 35% $ 7904 § 6172 28%

(1) Includes mutual funds distributed by Quadrus Investment Services, stock incentive and mutual funds administered by GRS Securities Inc,
and portfolio assets managed by Laketon Investment Management.

INDIVIDUAL LIFE

In quarter

Premiums and deposits on individual life products increased $39 million from the fourth quarter of 2005 to $641
million, highlighted by 18% growth in non-participating revenue premium. These results reflect both continued
strong persistency and sales momentum, particularly in our universal life product line.

Individual life insurance sales were $69 million during the fourth quarter of 2006 and $17 miliion or 33% higher than
the fourth quarter of 2005. Universal life product sales increased 52% and Term sales were 8% higher than the
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fourth quarter of 2005. Participating products were 35% higher than last year at $31 million, due to strong large
case sales.

Twelve months

Premiums and deposits on individual life products increased $123 million for the year to $2,398 million, highlighted
by 14% growth in non-participating revenue premium. These results reflect the Company’s continued benefit from
strong persistency results.

Individual ife insurance sales were $215 million in 2006, $43 million or 25% higher than in 2005. This was largely
due to a 72% increase in universal life product sales. Term sales were 7% higher than 2005 in a very price
competitive market while participating products sales increased by 9% from 2005.

LivING BENEFITS

in quarter
Total living benefits premiums were $63 million, 7% higher than the fourth quarter of 2005, evidencing strong
persistency of disability and critical illness premiums.

Total living benefits sales were $12 million, 9% higher than in the fourth quarter of 2005. Sales of critical illiness
insurance products were $5 million, 20% higher than the fourth quarter of 2005. Sales of disability insurance
products were $7 million, equivalent to the fourth quarter of 2005.

Twelve months
Total living benefits premiums were $243 million, 5% higher than during the comparable period in 2005, with growth
in both disability and critical illness premiums.

Total living benefits sales were $43 million, 4% lower than during the comparable period in 2005. Sales of critical
illness products were $18 million, 10% lower than 2005. Premium rates were increased in response to reinsurer
rate increases in the Canadian critical illness insurance market in the fourth quarter of 2004 for both the Great-West
Life and Canada Life brands. Significant volumes of the previous series of less expensive critical illness products
continued to be placed in the first half of 2005. Sales of disability insurance products were $25 million, equivalent
to 2005.
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Assets under administration

Assets under administration

Decembaer 31
2006 2005
Business/Product
individual Retirement & Investmeant Services
Risk-based products $ 5903 § 6.041
Segregated funds 21,110 18,175
Group Retirement Services
Risk-based products 5,964 5,846
Segregated funds 23,646 20,679
Total assets undar administration $ 56,523 § 50,741
Other plan assots ¥
Business/Product
Individual Retirement & Investment Services $ 5178 §$ 3,310
Group Retirement Services $ 6,864 $ 7,001
Total assets under administration and other plan assets
Individual Retirement & Investment Services ¥ $ 32191 3 27526
Group Retirement Services $ 36374 $ 33,526

(1) Includes mutual funds distributed by Quadrus Investment Services, stock incentive and mutyal funds administered by GRS Securities Inc.
and portfolio assets managed by Laketon Investment Management.

INDIVIDUAL RETIREMENT & INVESTMENT SERVICES {IRIS)

In quarter

IRIS experienced a strong quarter highlighted by an 18% increase in segregated fund sales over 2005 due to a
surge in Canadian equity markets and Canada Life product enhancements. Each of Great-West Life, London Life
and Canada Life experienced double-digit sales growth, with Canada Life leading the way at 20%. Segregated
fund assets increased by 8% in quarter to $21.1 billion at December 31, 2006, due mainly to a strong increase in
Canadian equity markets, evidenced by a 9.75% increase in the S&P TSX Composite Index in the quarter.

Premiums and sales from risk-based products were up slightly from the fourth quarter of 2005, with good results for
Great-West Life and London Life, tempered somewhat by declines in Canada Life due mainly to lower payout
annuity sales.

Sales of mutual funds through Quadrus increased 67% over the fourth quarter of 2005. Mutual fund assets grew to
approximately $5.2 billion at December 31, 2008, with $1.9 billion of that in the Quadrus Group of Funds.

Twelve months

Strong IR!S results were evidenced by 14% increase in segregated fund sales over 2005. This increase reflects a
continuing strong Canadian investment market, product enhancements at Canada Life and expanded distribution
access through brokers and MGAs. Segregated funds assets increased by 16% or $2.9 billion over December 31,
2005; 11% due to market growth and 5% due to net cash flows.

The asset allocation approach and long-term investment strategy employed by the Company’s investment product
line promotes asset retention. This, coupled with increases in sales over 2005 from all distribution channels,
resulted in strong net cash flow and segregated fund asset growth in 2008 consistent with the growth rate for the
mutual fund industry.

49




GREAT-WEST

Management's Discusslon and Analysis
I INC. — Canada

Premiums and sales of risk-based products decreased slightly over 2005 reflecting the focus on equity investing
due to the strong equity markets.

Mutual fund assets serviced by Quadrus-licensed investment representatives increased by 56% since December
31, 2005, while sales of mutual funds through Quadrus increased 57%. Since late 2005, Quadrus has acquired
books of mutual funds business comprising $920 million of assets and over 125 representatives which has
contributed to the growth in third party mutual fund assets under administration.

GROUP RETIREMENT SERVICES

In quarter

Sales in the fourth quarter were up 72% from 2005 including growth in capital accumulation plan sales of 137% and
group payout annuities sales of 230%. Positive momentum from completion of the conversion of Canada Life
based assets to the London Life platform and product enhancements has contributed to these strong results. Total
assets, including segregated funds, risk-based assets and securities offered through GRS Securities inc. and
Laketon Investment Management, increased by $2.1 billion in the fourth quarter to $36.4 billion at December 31,
2006.

Twelve months

Group Retirement Services had a strong year in 2006. With the completion of conversion activity in 2004 and
2005, Group Retirement Services achieved a 63% increase in total sales over 2005, including core capital
accumulation plan business sales growth of 129%. Total group refirement assets grew by over 8% since
December 31, 2005 despite a decline in other plan assets due to the loss of a $770 million contract. The loss of
this low margin, record keeping services only contract has allowed resources to be directed to increasing our more
profitable businesses. The Company has a strategy in place to improve the profitability on the remaining block of
other plan assets over the next few years.

OUTLOOK - INDIVIDUAL INSURANCE & INVESTMENT PRODUCTS
Refer to Cautionary Note regarding Forward-fooking Information and Cautionary Note regarding Non-GAAP
Financial Measures at the beginning of this document.

In 2008, the IP division outpaced the industry on several fronts. The organization’s multiple brands and
distribution channels provide important diversification that is unique within the industry. We will continue to
leverage these strengths.

Product and marketing innavations boosted sales activity and position the organization for a solid 2007.

P businesses continue to be market leaders, offering competitive products and innovative sales tools along with
expert advice delivered through the multiple distribution channels and organizations. We expect recent product
enhancements - such as updates to universal life insurance, the introduction of lifecycle segregated funds and
enhancements to disability insurance and critical illness insurance - fo deliver strong sales results again in 2007.

The organization’s mutual fund dealer, Quadrus, continued to grow much faster than the market and key
competitors. Quadrus expects this accelerated growth to continue, fueled by further acquisitions of blocks of
mutual fund business which, during the last twelve months, significantly increased assets under administration and
distribution capacity.

Also introduced in 2006, Quadrus’s charitable giving program offers an innovative solution for donors wanting a

private foundation experience without the administrative complexity. Early results bode well for strong sales in
2007.
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Expansion of sales through increasing the number and productivity of advisors is an important area of focus. IIIP
distribution organizations will continue to invest in recruiting, training and advisor support strategies to achieve this
growth. Advisors highly value the organization's national network of product and marketing specialists. In the
coming year, the IIIP division will enhance its range of sales and marketing support for advisors, assisting them in
increasing their sales productivity.

After the strong sales performance in 2008, the Group Retirement Services division has momentum heading into
the new year. Sales results in 2007 are expected to be buoyed by recent product and service innovations. The
division will continue to develop relationships with consultants.

The organization will increase its agility and capacity through continued technology investments. This will help
bring products to market quickly, and will assist in serving clients and advisors efficiently, based on their needs and
preferences.

The IIIP division remains well positioned to meet the needs of clients and advisors.
CORPORATE

Canada Corporate consists of items not associated with the Canadian business units, including income on surplus
assets, financing costs, expenses and income taxes.

Net Income

In quarter

Net charge in the quarter was $6 million compared to a charge of $14 million in 2005. The increase in earnings
reflects higher tax benefits and real estate fee income recorded in 2006, partly offset by lower investment income
net of financing costs.

Twelve months

Net charge for twelve months was $25 million compared to a charge of $35 million in 2005. The increase in
earnings reflects higher tax benefits recorded in 2006 as a result of changes in federal and provincial tax rates. It
also reflects higher investment income net of financing costs. Partly offsetting the increase is the impact of the
release of a redundant real estate investment provision in 2005.

51




GREAT-WEST

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
LIFECOx

UNITED STATES

The United States operating results for Lifeco include the results of GWL&A and the results of the insurance
businesses in the United States branches of Great-West Life and Canada Life, together with an allocation of a
portion of Lifeco's corporate results.

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY
Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian dollars at the market rate at the end of the
financial period. All income and expense items are translated at an average year-to-date rate.

The Company, from time to time, mitigates the volatility associated with the fluctuation of foreign currencies by
using forward foreign currency contracts. The effect of these contracts is reflected in the net effective rates. In
20086, the Company had no forward foreign currency contracts in place.

The currency translation impact discussed in the United States section of this report is based on the application to
the 2006 results of the 2005 translation rates including, where appropriate, the impact of forward foreign exchange
contracts in place in 2005.

Currency translation impact is a non-GAAP financial measure which attempts to remove the impact of changed
currency translation rates on GAAP results. Refer fo Cautionary Note regarding Non-GAAP Financial Measures at
the beginning of this report.

BUSINESS PROFILE

HEALTHCARE

GWL&A is a national employee benefits provider with expertise in self-funding and innovative health care
management solutions focused on small to medium size employers. GWL&A provides employers in the United
States with a comprehensive portfolio of employee henefit products and services, including health plans, flexible
spending account administration, dental and vision plans, life insurance benefits, and short and long-term disability
coverage. Products offered include traditional and managed care plan designs, consumer-driven health plans and
tiered benefit options. The Company's preducts include state-of-the-art cost and care management programs, as
well as comprehensive networks that help ensure quality health care.

While the Company continues to reduce its focus on its Health Maintenance Organization (‘HMO") products in most
markets, Great-West Healthcare Consumer Advantage®™, a consumer-driven Preferred Provider QOrganization
(*PPO") product, has continued its success. This first-to-market consumer-driven PPQ provides employers with a
more affordable option than a traditional plan design and engages employees in health care decisions.

Because the majority of the Company’s health plans are self-funded, Great-West Healthcare's medical
management program, Medical Qutreach, is a standard offering with each health plan. Medical Qutreach identifies
ways to keep health plan members as healthy as possible, which results in claims cost savings. The Company's
disease management programs service, identify, and enroll members with asthma, cancer, diabetes, emphysema,
heart disease, end stage renal disease, chronic pain and premature births. The Company also offers a
comprehensive wellness program to help health plan members maintain good health. These programs benefit
employers and members by reducing hospitatization costs and employee absences, and by increasing productivity.
Great-West Healthcare contracts with Matria Healthcare, the nation's leading provider of health intelligence
solutions for many of these programs. Matria assists with data analysis, risk assessment and predictive modeling
for client groups and provides an interactive health and wellness web site for members. in addition, the Company
provides a nurse hotline and online educational and decision-making tools to help members manage their health
care and make medically and financially sound treatment choices.
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Products and services are distributed through field sales staff located in regional sales offices across the United
States and through arrangements with brokers and third-party administrators (TPAs).

FINANCIAL SERVICES

GWLEA provides an array of financial security products, including employer-sponsored defined contribution
retirement plans and defined benefit plans for certain market segments. Solid partnerships with government plan
sponsors helped the Company maintain its position as the largest provider of services to state defined contribution
plans, with 15 of 50 state clients as well as the government of Guam. It also provides annuity and life insurance
products for individuals, families and corporate executives. Through its FASCore subsidiary, it offers private-label
recordkeeping and administrative services for other providers of defined contribution plans.

MARKET OVERVIEW

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Company provides a focused product offering that is distributed throtigh a variety of channels.

HEALTHCARE

MARKET POSITION

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

DISTRIBUTION

« 2,203,893 medical members

+ Provides health, life and disability
insurance products for almost 5,200
employers

+ Self funded medical plans
+ Medical stop-loss: aggregate and specific
+ Consumer driven health models: heaith
reimbursement accounts (HRA), health
savings accounts (HSA), tiered PPO
HMO, PPO, POS
Pharmacy
Flexible Spending Accounts (FSA)
Ancillary products

- Long and shont term disability

insurance
- Life and ADD insurance
- Dentat and vision coverage

« 401 sales and service staff

« 16 regional offices

« Joint ventures with and acquisitions of
third-party administrators (TPAs)

FINANCIAL SERVICES

MARKET POSITION

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

DISTRIBUTION

« Fourth largest defined contribution record-
keepers in the country, providing services
for 3,413,562 participants

» Significant market share in state and
government deferred compensation plans

Retirement Servicos

+ Enroliment services, communication
materials, investment options and
education services to employer-
sponsored contribution plans

+ Comprehensive administrative and
recordkeeping services for financial
institutions and employer-sponsored
defined contribution plans.

Individual Markets

= Business-owned life insurance (BOLI)
products and customer services targeting
the general corporate and financia!
institution benefit plan markets

» Simple and transactional individual term
insurance products for institutional
markets

» 400 pension consultants, representatives
and service personnel serving the
retirement services market

« 401(k) plans also are distributed through
the U.S. Bank channel

+ FASCore provides recordkeeping and
administrative services through
institutional partners

¢ Marketing agreements are used with
financial institutions to distribute
individual life insurance

¢ Clark Consulting distributes business-
owned life insurance products (BOLI)

+ Charles Schwab & Co. Inc. distributes
individual life insurance and annuities
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COMPETITIVE CONDITIONS

Healthcare

The employee benefits industry is highly competitive. The marketplace creates pricing pressures that often
encourage employers to seek competitive bids. Although most employers are looking for affordably priced
employee benefits products, they also want to offer comprehensive coverage for their employees, while at the
same time, reducing overall health care costs. In many cases it is more cost-effective and efficient for an employer
to contract with a carrier such as GWL&A that offers multiple product lines and centralized administration. In
addition to price, there are a number of other factors that influence employer decision-making. These factors
include: size, cost effectiveness and quality of provider networks; quality of member and client services; cost-
containment services, flexible product designs; and, in some cases name recognition.

Financial Services

The life insurance, savings, and investments marketplace is competitive. The Company's competitors include
mutual fund companies, insurance companies, banks, investment advisors, and certain service and professional
organizations. No one competitor or small number of competitors is dominant. Competition focuses on service,
technology, cost, variety of investment options, investment performance, product features, price, and financial
strength as indicated by ratings issued by nationally recognized agencies.

2006 DEVELOPMENTS

* In the Financial Services Division, the Company closed on two separate agreements to acquire certain 401(k)
business. The first agreement, which closed on October 2, 2006, was a 100% reinsurance agreement to
acquire several parts of the full service-bundled, small and midsized 401(k} as well as some defined benefit
plan business from Metropolitan Life Insurance Company and its affiliates (“Met Life”). The second agreement,
which closed on December 29, 2006, acquired the bundled, full-service defined contribution business from U.S.
Bancorp (“U.S. Bank”). The acquisitions included the associated dedicated distribution groups, including
wholesalers, relationship managers, and sales and client service specialists. The combination of the two
agreements resulted in the addition of nearly 4,300 plans and 440,000 participants with participant account
values of over US$16.7 billion. In addition, GWL&A and U.S. Bank will establish a preferred provider
relationship to suppart ongoing 401(k} needs of U.S. Bank customers.

* On November 30, 2008, in the Healthcare Division, the Company completed an acquisition with Key Family of
Companies in Indiana to acquire all of the outstanding shares of Indiana Health Network, Inc. (IHN), an Indiana-
based hospital and physician network. The transaction added over 70,000 members to GWL&A’s Healthcare
Division.

* Healthcare membership continued an upward trend, due to growth in specialty markets.

+ Effective July 1, 2008, Financial Services recaptured the business ceded under a bulk reinsurance treaty in
2003. As aresult of the recapture, the Company increased its policy liabilities by US$497 million, and reduced
its funds held under reinsurance contracts by the same amount. The Company recorded a US$497 million
increase to both premiums and deposits and amounts paid or credited to policyholders.

» Overall, net income for the year, in US dollars, is 2% lower than 2005, with Financial Services up 6% and
Healthcare down 10%. During the quarter, in US dollars, net income is 8% lower than in 2005, with Financial
Services up 6% and Healthcare down 13%.

AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE PUTNAM INVESTMENTS TRUST

On February 1, 2007, Lifeco entered into agreements with Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc. whereby Lifeco will
acquire the asset management business of Putnam Investment Trust (Putnam), and Great-West Life will acquire
Putnam’s 25% interest in T.H. Lee Partners for approximately $410 million (US$350 million). The parties will make
an election under section 338{h)(10) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code that will resuit in a tax benefit which Lifeco
intends to securitize for approximately $644 million (US$550 million). In aggregate these transactions represent a
value of approximately $4.6 billion (US$3.9 bittion).
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Funding for the transaction will come from internal resources as well as from proceeds of an issue of Lifeco
common shares of no more than $1.2 billion, the issuance of debentures and hybrids, a bank credit facility, and an
acquisition tax benefit securitization.

This transaction will allow Lifeco to achieve a major presence in the mutual fund and institutional asset
management industry in the United States. The acquisition also includes operations in Europe and Asia. Putnam
had $225 billion (US$192 billion) in assets under administration at December 31, 2006 — $138 billion (US$118
billion) in retail assets for U.S. mutual fund investors, $46 billion (US$39 billion) for North American institutional
accounts and $41 hillion (US$35 billion) of institutional and retail assets in Europe and Japan.

The transaction is expected to close in the second quarter of 2007, subject to regulatory approval and certain other
conditions.

Selected consolidated financial Information - United States

For the three months For the twalve months
ended Dacember 31 ended December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change

Total premiums and deposits $ 2,823 § 2,437 16% $ 11,286 $ 10,915 3%
Fee and other income 312 294 6% 1,182 1,169 1%
Paid or ¢redited to policyholders 894 555 61% 3,995 3,362 19%
Net income - commeon shareholders 128 161 -20% 511 606 -16%
Total assets $ 29,330 § 27,334 7%
Segregated funds net assets (1) 18,858 17,008 11%
Total assets under administration $ 48,188 3 44 342 9%

1) The Company's United Slates segregated funds include investment options that purchase guaranteed annuity contracts issued by the
Company. As of December 31, 2006, such investments had been made in guaranteed inferest annuity contracts in the amount of $76 million
compared to $440 million for the same period in 2005. As the general account investments are also included in the segregated fund account
balances, the Company has reduced the segregated fund account balances by $418 million as of December 31, 2006 compared to $373
million for the same period in 2005 te avoid overstalement of customer account values under management,
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Consolidatod operations

For the three months For the twelve months
ended December 31 ended December 31
2006 2005 2006 2005
Income:
Premium income $ 722 3 440 $ 3,352 $ 2,769
Net investment income 382 344 1,393 1,467
Fee and other income 312 294 1,182 1,169
Total income 1,416 1,078 5,927 5,405
Benefits and expenses:
Paid or credited to policyholders 894 555 3,995 3,362
Other 336 291 1,198 1,191
Net operating income before income taxes 186 232 734 852
Income taxes 53 75 210 245
Net income before nen-controlling interests 133 157 524 607
Non-controlling interests 5 (4) 13 1
Net income - common shareholders $ 128 $ 161 $ 511 $ 606
] ———— E___ —| 1
NET INCOME
Net income - common sharecholders
For the three months For the twelve months
endaed December 31 ended December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Healthcare $ 47 § 62 -24% $ 177 $ 232 -24%
Financial Services 80 88 -9% 322 356 -10%
Corporate 1 1 -91% 12 18 -33%
$ 128 § 161 -20% $ 511 § 506 -16%
e e ]
In millions US § $ 113 § 123 -8% $ 452 % 459 -2%
f— | ——— |
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For the three months For the twelve months
Premiums and deposits onded December 31 ended December 31
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Healthcare $ 1,583 § 1,532 3% $ 6,397 3 6,410 -
Financial Services 1,240 905 37% 4,889 4,505 9%
Total premiums and deposits $ 2,823 § 2,437 16% $ 11,286 § 10915 3%
Summary by Type
Risk-based products $ 722§ 440 64% $ 3352 % 2,769 21%
Self-funded premium equivalents
{ASQ contracts) 1,303 1,348 -3% 5,241 5,580 6%
Segregated funds deposits
Individual products 139 59 136% 461 208 122%
Group products 659 590 12% 2,232 2,358 -5%
Total premiums and deposits $ 2,823 § 2437 16% $§ 11,286 $ 10,915 3%
Total premiums and deposits US $ $ 2,499 § 2,072 20% $ 9,888 $ 9,021 11%
For the three months For the twelve months
Sales ended December 31 ended December 31
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Healthcare $ 120 $ 124 -3% $ 770 % 968 -20%
Financial Services 492 N7 55% 1,878 1,506 25%
Total sales $ 612 § 441 39% $ 2648 $ 2,474 7%
Total sales US $ $ 542 % 378 43% _$ 2,343 $ 2,045 15%

BUSINESS UNITS - UNITED STATES

HEALTHCARE

Net income

In quarter

In quarter earnings in the Healthcare business unit totaled US$42 million, which is a 13% decrease compared to
the same period in 2005. A deterioration in the aggregate stop loss claims experience in all U.S. market segments
was partially offset by increased investment gains, administrative fees on higher membership and Pharmacy
Benefit Management revenue. Unfavorable currency translation impacted net income by $8 million in the quarter in
comparison to 2005 rates.

Twelve months

Net income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 was US$157 million compared to US$175 million a
year ago. The 10% decrease is the result of a deterioration in the aggregate stop loss claims experience in all
segments, excluding specialty markets, and individual stop loss claims experience in all segments. These results
were partially offset by increased investment gains, administrative fees on higher membership and Phammacy
Benefit Management revenue. Unfavorable currency translation impacted net income by $33 million for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2006 in comparison to 2005 rates.
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Premiums and deposits and sales

Healthcare - divisional summary

Premiums and deposits

Business/Product
Group life and health - guaranteed

-ASO

Total premiums and deposits

Total premiums and deposits US $

For the thres months
ended December 31

For the twelve months
ended December 31

2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Chan&

$ 280 % 184 52% $ 1,156 $ 830 39%
1,303 1,348 -3% 5,241 5,580 6%

$ 1,583 § 1,532 3% $ 6,397 $ 6,410 -
$ 1401 § 1,300 8% $ 5661 $ 5,298 T%

For the throe months

For the twelve months

Sales ended December 31 ended December 31
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Group life and health $ 120 § 124 -3% $ 770 § 968 -20%
Total sales US $ $ 106 § 108 -2% $ 681 § 800 -15%
Healthcare - members (in thousands)
Change for the
three months ended
Decomber 31 Total at December 31
2006 2005 2008 2005 % Change
Select and mid-market 3 7 1,218 1,292 6%
National and Specialty Market 99 53 986 733 35%
Total 102 60 2,204 2,025 9%

In quarter

Reported net premiums and deposits increased by 3% compared to the fourth quarter of the previous year.
Healthcare premiums and deposits for the fourth quarter of 2006 increased 8% to US$1,401 million due primarily to
the termination of a stop loss reinsurance agreement effective January 1, 2006. As a result of the termination,
ceded premium decreased US$64 million compared to the fourth quarter of 2005.

Excluding the impact of reinsurance activity, premium income in 2005 totaled US$1,364 million, compared to
US$1,401 million in 20086.

Sales decreased 2% to US$106 million for the three months ended December 31, 2006 over the same period last
year. The decline is primarily in the select market, partially offset by larger average cases sold in the mid-market.

Membership increased 102,000 members in the fourth quarter of 2006 compared to the same period in 2005,
primarily in the speciaity market segment. The increase is largely attributable to 70,000 members from the
November acquisition of Indiana Health Network, [nc. {IHN), an Indiana-based hospital and physician network.

Twelve months

Reported net premiums and deposits were flat compared to the previous year. Premiums and deposits increased
by 7% to US$5,661 million due in part to renewal price increases and increased membership in the select and
specialty markets. The termination of a stop loss reinsurance agreement effective January 1, 2006 resulted in a
decrease in ceded premium of US$254 million compared to the tweive months ended December 31, 2005.
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Excluding the impact of reinsurance activity, premium revenue in 2005 totaled US$5,552 million, compared to
US$5,661 million in 2006.

Sales decreased 15% to US$681 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2008 over the same period
last year. This decrease is primarily attributable to the national and mid-markets partially offset by an increase in
the select and specialty markets. The competitive environment contributed to the decline in sales.

Membership increased 9% from 2.025 million members at December 31, 2005 to 2.204 million members at
December 31, 2006. Increases in the specialty market segment have offset decreases in all other markets due to
lower sales. This membership includes 70,000 members from the November acquisition of IHN.

QUTLOOK — HEALTHCARE
Refer to Cautionary Note regarding Forward-looking Information and Cautionary Nole regarding Non-GAAFP
Financial Measures at the beginning of this document.

The Company continues to focus on programs that benefit members and deliver savings to employers. By
expanding the Company’s second-tier network program, whereby members are offered discounts on services from
thousands of additional providers outside the Company's proprietary network, members and employers enjoy
additional claim savings. Network expansion contributes to the Company’s competitive positioning as it continues
to provide claims savings to employers as well as more provider options for the employees of multi-state
employers.

During 2006, the Company continued to improve its position as a leader in consumer-driven health care through
growth in its portfolio of consumer-driven health plans: Great-West Healthcare Consumer Advantage and the HRA
and HSA plans.

Efforts surrounding provider re-contracting and additional disease management programs will cordinue to enhance
the Company's medical cost and market positions. These efforts are a key element in controlling health care costs
for clients and members.

In 2006, the specialty markets segment, which focuses on third-party administrators, insurance carriers, and other
specialized distribution channels, was expanded. The acquisition of Mediversal, Inc., a healthcare services
company that administers claims for employers with self-funded group health and workers' compensation plans,
was completed in September 2005. In 2006, IHN was acquired to strengthen the Company's network in Indiana.
The continued expansion of additional TPA and network relationships is a focus for 2007, as well as the
implementation of new product offerings such as pharmacy benefit management through our TPA channels.

The Company’'s core administrative systems will continue to be a focus in 2007 as efforts are underway to
implement a new system that would result in the consolidation of many existing core administrative systems.

Enhancing brand awareness also continugs with the theme of the Company's advertising campaign, “New Ideas
From the Frontier of Health Care”, which communicates the strategy for delivering innovative, affordable benefits
plans to businesses. The Company continues to promoete its strengths in self-funding, creative solutions, and
medical management expertise.
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FINANCIAL SERVICES
Net income

In quarter

In quarter earnings were $80 million, a decrease of $8 million or 9% compared to the same period in 2005. The
decrease is primarily attributable to the currency translation rates. In US dollars, earnings increased 6% compared
to the same period in 2005. The increase was due primarily to a combination of improved investment income and
higher fee income in 2006 associated with the 23% growth in participants in Retirement Services.

Twelve months

The decrease in earnings of 10% for the fwelve months ended December 31, 2006, compared to a year ago, is
driven primarily by the change in currency translation rates. In US dollars, eamings for the year ended December
31, 2006 increased 6% due to the aforementioned increases from fee and investment income.

Premiums and deposits and sales

Financia! Services - divisional summary

For the three months For the twelve months
Promlums and deposits ended Docember 31 ended December 31
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Individual Markets $ 321 § 227 41% $ 1,184 § 848 40%
Retirement Services o919 678 36% 3,143 3657 -14%
Sub-total 1,240 905 37% 4,327 4,505 -4%
Premiums recaptured - - - 562 - -
Total premiums and deposits $ 1240 $ 905 37% $§ 4889 $ 4505 9%
Individual Markets $ 321 $ 227 41% $ 1,184 3 B48 40%
Retirement Services 919 678 36% 3,705 3,657 1%
Total premiums and deposits $ 1,240 § 905 7% $§ 4889 § 4505 9%
Total premiums and deposits US $§ $ 1,098 3 772 42% $ 4,327 § 3,723 16%
For the three months For the twelve months
Sales ended Decomber 31 ended December 31
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Individual Markets $ 208 3 67 210% $ 641 $ 232 176%
Retirement Services 284 250 14% 1,237 1,274 -3%
Total sales $ 492§ 37 55% & 1,878 $ 1,506 25%
Total sales US $ $ 436 3 270 61% $ 1,662 $ 1,245 33%
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Financial Services - participant accounts (in thousands)

Change for the
three months ended

December 31 Total at December 31
2006 2005 2006 2005 % Change
Individual Markets {5) (2) 441 454 -3%
Public/Non-Prafit {19) 70 1,698 1,578 1%
FASCore (5) 10 903 716 26%
401(k) 439 {10} 913 473 93%
Retirement Services 415 70 3,414 2,767 23%
Total 410 68 3,855 3,21 20%5

In quarter

Premiums and deposits for the fourth quarter of 2006 were $1,240 million, an increase of $335 million or 37%
compared to the same period in 2005. Premiums and deposits in Individual Markets increased 41% in the fourth
quarter of 2006 primarily due to strong sales of the BOLI product. The in quarter increase in Retirement Services
premiums and deposits of 36% is from the additional ongoing premiums associated with the Met Life block of
business, and from transfers from the retail investment options to general account and segregated fund investment
options.

Sales for the fourth quarter of 2006 increased US$166 million or 61% compared to 2005. The increase is primarily
in Individual Markets, due to higher sales of the BOLI product in 2006, which is due to an increase in longer term
interest rates and enhanced investment options.

Twelve months

Premiums and deposits for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 increased $384 million or 9% over the
prior year. During the third quarter of 2006, premiums and deposits included $562 million (US$497 million) due to
the recapture of a reinsurance agreement. In US doltars, excluding the impact of the recapture of the reinsurance
agreement, premiums and deposits increased 3% compared to the same period in 2005. The increase is
attributable to sales of the BOL! product.

Sales for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 in US dollars reported an increase of 33% which was due
to Individual Markets sales of BOLI increasing significantly in 2006.

Retirement Services participant accounts increased 23% compared to December 31, 2005 due to the Met Life and
U.S. Bank acquisitions discussed above and from growth in the recordkeeping only business.
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Financlal Services - Retirement Services customer account values

Change for the
three months ended
December 31 Total at Decembor 31
2006 2005 2006 2005 % Change
Ganeral account - fixed options
Public/Non-profit $ 1™ 3§ - $ 4115 § 4,378 -6%
401(k} 1,730 (1) 2,990 1,280 134%
$ 1,831 3 (1) $ 7,105 § 5,658 26%
Segregated funds - variable options
Public/Non-profit $ 605 3% 60 $ 7,024 % 6,576 7%
401(k} 788 134 7,445 6,612 13%
$ 1,393 § 194 $ 14469 § 13,188 10%
Unaffiliated rotall investment optlons &
administrative services only
Public/Non-profit $ 3,802 % 3,876 $ 48556 3 42661 14%
401(k) 198,651 324 26,927 7.220 273%
Institutional (FASCore) 2,615 855 30,472 22,081 38%
$ 26,068 3 5,055 $ 105955 $ 71,962 47%

The increase in the account values reflected above is attributable to the acquisitions discussed previously and the
improvement in the U.S. equities markets increasing the value of both the unaffiliated retail investment and
administrative services only; and the variable segregated fund investment options.

QUTLOOK —~ FINANCIAL SERVICES
Refer to Cautionary Note regarding Forward-looking information and Cautionary Note regarding Non-GAAP
Financial Measures at the beginning of this document.

The Company recognizes that the financial services marketplace is very dynamic and continues to change. By
continued reinvestment in our infrastructure through technology enhancements and through service and product
offerings, the Company plans to continue to grow the business in 2007.

The past year has been a year of significant growth in the Retirement Services area. In the institutional
marketplace, the Company was able to form new partnerships to provide administrative and record-keeping
services to Federated Investors, Inc. and Franklin Templeten. Also in 2006, the Company completed the
acquisition of two important blocks of 401(k) business from Met Life and U.S. Bank. Through a combination of
sales and these acquisitions, the number of participants serviced by the Company reached a record 3,413,562,
placing the Company firmly in the top four record-keepers in the United States.

Both of the acquisitions included the associated dedicated distribution groups, including wholesalers, relationship
managers and client service specialists bringing the combined sales force to over 400 individuals who are fully
dedicated to expanding the retirement block of business along with providing excellent customer service.

Also, in late 2005 and throughout 2006, AAG, the Company's registered investment advisory subsidiary, expanded
Reality Investing, a program that extends AAG's participant level advice tool into a suite of investment advisory
services. Reality Investing provides access to a range of advice services including professional account
management at the participant level. In 2007, the Company will roll out these advisory services to existing and new
customers within Retirernent Services.
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In 2006, Individual Markets sustained focus on its core strengths by significantly increasing sales of the BOLI
products. The Company plans to expand upon its relationships with key BOLI sales consultants, along with
capitalizing on opportunities in the small corporate market to cross sell executive benefits to the existing corporate
retirement market customers through our internal distribution channel. The focus is to provide creative and flexible
solutions to meet client needs for financing non-qualified executive retirement plans through the use of life
insurance, and mutual funds. A key advantage will be a single platform for both non-qualified and qualified
retirement plan support and service. The area continues to enhance its relationships with key consultants, develop

new relationships, create new insurance products, and develop marketing materials to communicate the
Company's strengths and expertise.
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The European segment is broadly organized along geographically defined market segments and offers protection
and wealth management products and reinsurance. The segment is comprised of two distinct business units:
Insurance & Annuities, which consists of operating divisions in the United Kingdom, Isle of Man, Republic of
Ireland, and Germany; and Reinsurance, which operates primarily in the United States, Barbados and Ireland.

The Insurance & Annuities business is conducted through Canada Life and its subsidiaries. The Reinsurance
business is conducted through Canada Life, LRG, and their subsidiaries.

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY
Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian dollars at the market rate at the end of the
financial period. All income and expense items are translated at an average year-to-date rate.

The Company, from time to time, mitigates the volatility associated with the fluctuation of foreign currencies by using
forward foreign currency contracts. The effect of these contracts is reflected in the net effective rates. In 2008, the
Company had no forward foreign currency contracts in place. The rates used to translate foreign currency
denominated items are:

Period ended Balance sheet Operations
Assets & liabilities Income & expenses Net effective rate
British pound
December 31, 2006 $2.28 $2.09 $2.0900
September 30, 2006 $2.09 $2.06 $2.0600
December 31, 2005 $2.00 $2.21 $2.3272
September 30, 2005 $2.05 $2.26 $2.3214
Euro
December 31, 2006 $1.54 $1.42 $1.4200
September 30, 2006 $1.41 $1.41 $1.4100
December 31, 2005 $1.38 $1.51 $1.6159
September 30, 2005 $1.40 $1.55 $1.6180
United States dollar
December 31, 2006 $1.17 $1.13 $1.1300
September 30, 2006 $1.12 $1.13 $1.1300
December 31, 2005 $1.17 $1.21 $1.2553
September 30, 2005 $1.18 $1.22 $1.2534

The currency translation impact discussed in the Europe section of this report is based on the application to the
2006 results of the 2005 translation rates including, where appropriate, the impact of forward foreign exchange
contracts in place in 2005.

Currency translation impact is a non-GAAP financial measure which attempts to remove the impact of changed

currency translation rates on GAAP results. Refer to Cautionary Note regarding Non-GAAP Financial Measures at
the beginning of this repont.
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BUSINESS PROFILE

INSURANCE & ANNUITIES

The international operations of Canada Life and its subsidiaries are located primarily in Europe, and offer a focused
portfolio of protection and wealth management products and related services mainly in the United Kingdom, Isle of
Man, Republic of Ireland and Germany.

The core products offered in the United Kingdom are payout annuities, savings and group insurance. These
products are distributed through independent financial advisors and employee benefit consultants. The Isle of Man
operation provides savings and individual protection products that are sold through independent financial advisors

in the United Kingdom and in other selected territories.

The core products offered in Ireland are individual insurance and savings and pension products. These preducts
are distributed through independent brokers and a direct sales force. The German operation focuses on pension
and individual protection products that are distributed through independent brokers.

Canada Life has continued to increase its presence in its defined market segments by focusing on the introduction
of new products and services, enhancement of distribution capabilities and intermediary relationships.

REINSURANCE
The Company's reinsurance business is comprised of operations in the United States, Barbados and Ireland.

In the United States, the Company's reinsurance business is carried on through the U.S. branch of Canada Life,
through a subsidiary of LRG {London Life Reinsurance Company)}, and, commencing in 2005, through an indirect
subsidiary of GWL&A (Great-West Life & Annuity Company of South Carolina, or GWSC). This subsidiary was
created in 2005 in conjunction with the establishment of a new long-term letter of credit facility to meet the
Company's U.S. statutory Regulation XXX reserve requirements refating to its life reinsurance business. In 2005,
the U.S. branch of Canada Life retroceded to GWSC most of its Regulation XXX business issued before December
31, 2004.

In Barbados, the Company's reinsurance business is carried on primarily through three subsidiaries of LRG
{London Life and Casualty Reinsurance Corporation, London Life and Casualty (Barbados} Corporation, and
London Life International Reinsurance Corpoeration).

In Ireland, the Company's reinsurance business is carried on through a subsidiary of LRG {London Life & General
Reinsurance Co. Ltd), and through a subsidiary of Canada Life (Canada Life international Re Limited).

The Company's business includes both reinsurance and retrocession business transacted directly with clients or
through reinsurance brokers. As a retrocessionaire, the Company provides reinsurance to other reinsurers to allow
those companies to spread their insurance risk.

The product portfolio offered by the Company includes life, annuity and property and casualty reinsurance, provided
on both a proportional and non-proportional basis.

In addition to providing reinsurance products to third parties, the Company also utilizes internal reinsurance
transactions between affiliated companies. These transactions are undertaken in order to better manage insurance
risks relating to retention, volatility and concentration as well as to facilitate capital management for the Company
and its subsidiaries and branch operations. These internal reinsurance transactions may produce benefits that are
reflected in one or more of the Company's business segments.
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MARKET OVERVIEW

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Company provides protection and wealth management products

independent sales channels.

INSURANCE & ANNUITIES

that are distributed primarily through

MARKET POSITION

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

DISTRIBUTION

U.K. and Isle of Man

Among the top 30 life insurance
companies operating in UK.

A market leader, with 30% share of the
group life market

Second in the group income protection
market with 17% share

A top provider of offshore single premium
investment product into the UK., with
13% market share

Among the top four insurers in payout
annuities, with 9% market share
Among the top ten in the onshore unit-
linked single premium bond market

Ireland

» 5.4% of Insh life assurance market

« Among the top six insurers by new
business market share

Germany

+ The market leader in the broker unit-
linked market

+ Among the top three in the overall unit-
linked market

+ 1.6% market share in the German market

Wealth management
s Pensions

« Savings

« Payout annuities

Group Insurance
s Life insurance
« Disability

» Critical illness

Individual Insurance
+ Life insurance

= Disability

+ Crifical iliness

U.K. and Isle of Man
s Independent financial advisors
+ Employee benefit consultants

Ireland
» Independent brokers
« Direct sales force

Germany
+ Independent brokers

REINSURANCE

MARKET POSITION

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

DISTRIBUTION

« Among the top ten life reinsurers in the
U.S. by assumed business

» Niche position in property and casualty
and annuity business

Life
= Yearly renewable term
+ Co-insurance

Property and Casualty
« Catastrophe

Annuity

+ Independent reinsurance brokers

+ Direct placements

COMPETITIVE CONDITIONS
United Kingdom and Isle of Man

In the United Kingdom, the Company holds strong positions in several product focused markets with particular
strength in the payout annuity, onshore/offshore savings, group iife and income protection markets. Insurance and
wealth management products are sold primarily through independent financial advisors. To become the provider of
choice, the Company must maintain competitive product design and pricing, distribution compensation and service
levels.
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Canada Life was awarded a five star rating in the 2006 Financial Advisor Service Awards. This places Canada Life
among the top 10 service providers in the investment arena, recognizing the Company's continuing commitment to
service excellence.

Republic of Ireland

The life insurance market in Ireland is very mature with one of the highest penetration rates in the world. The larger
companies hold a significant share of the market. The Company operates in all segments of the market, and
focuses on higher margin products including pensions and single premium savings business. Canada Life is the
sixth largest life insurance operation in Ireland as measured by new business market share. Investment in product
development infrastructure, distribution capability and systems is critical to continued sales growth and retention of
in-force business.

Germany

The German market has experienced considerable change in 2005 and 2006 as a result of the December 2004 tax
changes and the consequent surge of business that occurred in late 2004 and early 2005. As a result of these
changes, the market for endowment savings contracts and regular premium personal pensions have declined,
whereas the markets for occupational and single premium personal pensions have grown because the tax
advantages available from these products are more attractive to clients. The market is becoming increasingly
competitive as a result of providers that previously sold mainly traditional endowment savings products are now
focusing on occupational and single premium persenal pensions as well as critical illness/disability products.

In spite of these changes, the Company has established itself in the German market as a provider of innovative
fund-based products for pensions, as well as disability and critical illness products and has managed to grow its
market share substantially. Canada Life now has the leading share in the broker unit-linked market and is among
the top three in the overall unit-linked market.

Reinsurance

In the United States life reinsurance market, major direct writers have continued to seek alternative solutions to
manage their U.S. Regulation XXX reserving requirements and, as a result, have reduced the amount of life
insurance business that they cede to reinsurers. The Company is responding by revamping its marketing strategy,
more effectively leveraging its financial strength, creative product solutions and strong client relationships.

Pricing in the property catastrophe retrocession market was very strong in 2006 following record hurricane losses of
the previous year. Pricing for January 2007 renewals remained steady driven by upwards revisions in modeled
loss estimates and a continued shortage of retrocession capacity.

2006 DEVELOPMENTS

e Shareholder net income was $486 million, up 22% from 2005. Excluding the unfavourable impact of currency
translation, shareholder net income was up 34%.

e Insurance & Annuities premiums and deposits increased by $1,760 million, up 30% over 2005. Excluding the
unfavourable impact of currency translation, Insurance & Annuities premiums and deposits increased 37%.

+ Insurance & Annuities sales increased by $1,608 million, up 38% over 2005. Excluding the unfavourable
impact of currency translation, Insurance & Annuities sales grew by 46%.

+« The Company agreed to purchase a payout annuity block of business from Equitable Life in the UK. in the
second quarter.

PURCHASE OF PAYOUT ANNUITY BLOCK IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

During the second quarter, the Company's United Kingdom subsidiary, Canada Life Limited, reached an agreement
to acquire the non-participating payout annuity business of The Equitable Life Assurance Society (“Equitable Life”)
in the United Kingdom. The block of business adds approximately 130,000 annuity policies to the existing portfolio
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and significantly increases the total number of such policies to 280,000. This acquisition, along with Phoenix and
London payout annuity acquisition in 2005, furthers the Company's strategy to capitalize on its position in core

European markets and will add to Canada Life’s strong position in the payout annuity market.

Under the terms of the transaction, the Company assumes a block of payout annuity liabilities, and receives a
corresponding amount of assets. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company acquired these liabilities by way of
indemnity reinsurance. The transfer of assets and liabilities has been approved by the courts and was completed

on February 9, 2007.

At December 31, 2006, the transaction resulted in an increase in funds held by ceding insurers and a

corresponding increase in policyholder liabilities of $10.2 billion on the consolidated balance sheet.

Selected consolidated financial Information - Europe

For tha three months
ended December 31

For the twelve months
ended December 31

2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Total premiums and deposits $ 3,693 §% 3,657 1% $ 12,241 % 10,614 15%
Fee and other income 158 124 27% 811 481 27%
Paid or credited to policyhclders 2,311 2,628 -12% 8,282 7,643 8%
Net income - common shareholders 150 122 23% 486 399 22%
Total assets $ 41,210 § 25,638 61%
Segregated funds net assets 26,632 19,296 38%
Total assets under administration $ 67,842 § 44,934 51%
Consolidated operations
For the three months For the twolve months
ended December 31 ended December 31
2006 2005 2006 2005

Income:

Premium income $ 2,156 $ 2,506 $ 7,223 7.154

Net investment income 397 320 1,710 1,149

Fee and other income 158 124 611 481
Total income 2,711 2.8950 9,544 8,784
Benefits and expenses:

Paid or credited to policyholders 2,311 2,628 8,282 7.643

Other 228 191 686 659

Amortization of finite life intangible assets 1 - 4 4
Net operating income before income taxgs 171 131 572 478
Income taxes 16 6 59 68
Net income before non-controlling interests 155 125 513 410
Non-controlling interests 1 3 17 11
Not income - shareholders 154 122 496 399
Perpetual preferred share dividends 4 - 10 -
Not income - common shareholdars $ 150 3 122 $ 486 399
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NET INCOME
Net income - common shareholders
For the three months For the twalve months
endad December 31 ended December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Insurance & Annuities $ 108 $ 122 -11% $ 382 % 356 7%
Reinsurance 44 5 - 121 58 109%
Corporate {2} {5} 60% {17) {15) -
$ 150 § 122 23% $ 486 $ 399 22%

Note: 2005 results have been reclassified to conform with the 2006 segment presentation.

PREMIUMS AND DEPOSITS AND SALES

For the three months For the twelve months
Premiums and deposits ended December 31 ended December 31
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
UK / Isle of Man $ 1,741 % 1,367 27% $ 6,186 % 4512 37%
Ireland / Germany 493 377 3% 1,483 1,388 7%
International 7 7 0% 23 32 -28%
Insurance & Annuities 2,241 1,751 28% 7,692 5,932 30%
Reinsurance 1,452 1,906 -24% 4,549 4,682 -3%
Total premlums and deposits $ 369 5 3,657 1% $ 12241 $ 10,614 15%
—
Summary by Type
Risk-based products $ 2156 $ 2,506 -14% $ 7,223 % 7,154 1%
Segregated funds deposits
Individual products 1,537 1,151 34% 5,018 3,460 45%
Total premlums and deposits $ 3,693 $ 3,657 1% $ 12241 $ 10614 15%
For the three months For the twelve months
Sales ended December 31 gnded December 31
Business/Product 2008 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
UK / Isle of Man $ 1458 §$ 1,105 32% $ 5040 § 3,464 45%
Iretand / Germany 297 213 39% 801 769 4%
Insurance & Annuities 1,755 1,318 33% 5,841 4,233 38%
Reinsurance 1,378 1,829 -25% 4,234 4,394 4%
Total sales $ 3,133 § 3,147 0% $ 10,075 § 8,627 17%
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INSURANCE & ANNUITIES

The 2005 net income results have been reclassified to conform with the 2006 segment presentation. A net
provision of $20 million relating to arbitrations together with income from the non-continuing operations have been
reclassified to a new Corporate line within the Europe segment.

Net income

In quarter

Net income attributable to common shareholders decreased $14 million, or 11% to $108 million compared to the
fourth quarter of 2005. Excluding the unfavourable currency translation impact of $6 million, net income was down
7%.

Strong operating earnings were offset by strengthening of actuarial reserves and provisions. Strong results in
Europe are largely due to the payout annuities and group businesses in the U.K. operations. The growth in payout
annuities was driven by favourable investment experience as well as the contribution from the Phoenix and LLondon
payout annuity block acquired in 2005 and the Equitable Life payout annuity block reinsured with effect from
January 1, 2006. The Phoenix and London block contribution represents mortality, investment and expense
experience, which is emerging more favourably than the pricing assumptions. The U.K. group insurance business
benefited from favourable mortality and morbidity experience. The Insurance & Annuities results also benefited
from a reduction in taxes arising from the utilization of prior period losses.

Twelve months

Net income attributable to common shareholders increased $26 million, or 7% to $382 million compared to the
twelve months ended December 31, 2005. Excluding the unfavourable impact of currency translation, net income
was up 18% reflecting strong operating eamings partly offset by the strengthening of actuarial reserves.

The strong operating results in Europe are largely due to the same reasons as the in quarter period. In addition,
the operating results in 2005 reflected a one-time investment gain in Ireland of 6 million euros resulting from lower
reserve requirements in connection with investment fund guarantees.

Improved operational efficiencies and equity market performance also contributed to the overall performance.
Premiums and deposits and sales

In quarter

Premiums and deposits increased $490 million or 28%. Excluding the favourable currency translation impact of $80
million, premiums and deposits increased $410 million or 23% compared to the fourth quarter of 2005. The
increase was due to higher segregated fund premiums on savings products in the United Kingdomy/lsle of Man and
Ireland and pension products in Ireland and Germany. In addition, payout annuity sales increased as compared to
the same period in 2005 as sales returned to long term levels following customer purchase decisions being delayed
prior to the implementation of new retirement legislation in April 2006.

Sales increased by $437 million or 33% compared to the fourth quarter of 2005. Excluding the favourable currency
translation impact of $58 million, sales increased by $379 million or 29% compared to the fourth quarter of 2005.
Strong sales growth was driven by the core products across the U.K./lIsle of Man, as well as single premium
savings products in Ireland and pension products in Ireland and Germany. While the results were very strong, sales
of savings products in the Isle of Man tend to be larger and less uniform, resulting in volatility in sales trends.
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Twelve months

Premiums and deposits increased $1,760 million or 30%. Excluding the unfavourable currency translation impact of
$451 million, premiums and deposits increased $2,211 million or 37% compared to 2005. The increase reflects
higher segregated fund premiums on savings preducts in the United Kingdom/lsle of Man and Ireland, pension
products in Ireland and Germany and higher premiums in U.K. payout annuities. The increase in U.K. payout
annuities reflected a recovery from the first quarter. A more competitive environment combined with customers
delaying purchasing decisions on payout annuities prior to the introduction of new retirement legislation in Agpril
2008, characterized the first quarter,

Sales increased by $1,608 million or 38% compared to 2005. Excluding the unfavourable currency translation
impact of $340 million, sales increased $1,948 million or 46% compared to the same period in 2005. Strong sales
growth was driven by savings products in the United Kingdom/Isle of Man, single premium savings products in
Ireland, U.K. payout annuities and pension sales in Germany. The first quarter of 2005 included a sales surge
caused by changes to the taxation of pension products in 2004. Excluding the carry over of the sales surge into the
first quarter of 2005, sales in Germany increased by 89% compared to the same period last year. The increase in
the U.K. payout annuities reflected a strong recovery from the first quarter. A more competitive environment
combined with customers delaying purchasing decisions on payout annuities prior to the introduction of new
retirement legislation in Aprit 2006, characterized the first quarter.

OUTLOOK — INSURANCE & ANNUITIES
Refer to Cautionary Note regarding Forward-looking Information and Cautionary Note regarding Non-GAAP
Financial Measures at the beginning of this document.

In 2006, the Company continued to grow each of its product focused positions profitably. To support its strategy of
a “multi-niche” European business, Canada Life acquired a £2.2 hillion {($5.0 billion at December 31, 2006) portfolic
of payout annuities from Phoenix and Londen in 2005 and a £4.5 billion ($10.2 billion at December 31, 2006)
portfolio from Equitable Life in 2006. These major acquisitions strengthen the UK. payout annuity business,
leverage a superior investment capability and lead to greater economies of scale, enabling the Company to grow
and compete successfully and more profitably in the future.

The European Integration Programme which integrates services, processes and practices across Europe is well
underway. The first phase, the data centre consolidation, was completed in 2006. During the year, the Company
launched a European wide technology platform initiative which will enhance its ability to interact with Independent
Financial Advisers. In addition, the Company is centralizing the administration function of its investment back office
for Europe as it strives to improve efficiencies.

The Company continues to look for further opportunities to capitalize on the strong niche positions in its core
businesses and to expand its distribution capabilities.

United Kingdom/isle of Man — The UK. will continue to focus on building market share and expanding its core
businesses of payout annuities, wealth management and group insurance through competitive pricing, enhanced
value proposition, expanded distribution capability and investment in systems. In addition, the Company will
continue to focus on increasing market share in the small and mid-sized case market segments of its group
business and by improving its overall offering in Group Income Protection. Innovative new products and services
were introduced in 2006 including an online quotation system and Business Care, an online employer assistance
program. In 2007, the Group business will continue to enhance its online system including providing online
capability for policy administration. In wealth management, the Company expects success in each of its niche
businesses to continue through excellent customer service, an efficient expense base, improving processes and
continued investment in its infrastructure.

Ireland/Germany — In Ireland, the Company will continue to leverage its strong presence in the pensions market in
2007. It is expected that the Irish economy and wealth management market will remain buoyant in the coming
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year. This is expected to be partly driven by the maturing of a government subsidized savings program which will
result in more funds being available in the market place. The emphasis in 2007 will be on retention of the maturing
savings program, expanding distribution capabilities, including strengthening intermediary relationships and
expanding our product range.

The fundamentals for growth in the German insurance sector are positive. The German market has relatively low
levels of insurance penetration. This factor, combined with reductions in the state pension provision, create a
significant growth potential in the German market and fund-based products in particular.

In December 2008, sales were at their highest levels since the December 2004 tax driven sales surge. Single
premium and critical illness/disability sales were particularly strong in late 2006. It is expected that these trends,
along with the movement from traditional personal pensions to occupational pensions will continue.

Canada Life is already a significant player in the fastest growing distribution segment (the broker market) and offers
products in most of the fastest growing segments (occupational pensions, single premium pensions and disability)
and is well positioned to benefit from the expected upturn in the market.

REINSURANCE

The 2005 net income results have been reclassified to conform with the 2006 segment presentation. The $43
million after tax provision relating to expected losses arising from hurricane activity along the Gulf Coast of the
United States and the $19 million reduction of provisions held in connection with 9/11 claims and benefits of $29
million arising from a reorganization of business carried on in London Life & General Reinsurance Co. Ltd., have
been reclassified to a new Corporate line within the Europe segment.

Net income

In quarter
Net income was $44 million, an increase of $39 million compared to the same period in 2005. Excluding the
unfavourable impact of currency translation, net income increased $43 million.

The 2006 results reflect higher renewal profits, lower new business strain, improved mortality and commutation
gains, parlly offset by the strengthening of actuarial reserves.

The 2005 results also included an increase in life reinsurance mortality reserves offset by favourable investment
experience and asset/liability matching and benefits arising from a reorganization of business carried on in London
Life & General Reinsurance Co. Ltd.

Twelve months
Net income for the Reinsurance business unit was $121 million, an increase of $63 million from a year ago.
Excluding the unfavourable impact of currency translation, net income was up 129%.

The 20086 results reflect higher renewal profits, lower new business strain, improved mortality and commutation
gains, partly offset by unfavourable morbidity experience and the strengthening of actuarial reserves.

The 2005 results also included favourable investment experience and asset/liability matching, benefits arising from
a reorganization of business carried on in London Life & General Reinsurance Co. Ltd., partly offset by anincrease
in life reinsurance mortality reserves and an increase in provision for adverse development as well as a decrease in
actuarial liabilities arising from a reinsurance agreement between London Life and General Reinsurance Company
Limited, a subsidiary of LRG and Canada Life Assurance (Ireland) Ltd., to provide guarantee risk protection.
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Premiums and deposits and sales

In quarter

Premiums and deposits for the Reinsurance business unit were $1,452 million, a decrease of $454 million or 24%
over the three months ended December 31, 2005. Sales were $1,378 million, a decrease of $451 million or 25%
over the same period in 2005. The decrease is primarily due to new structured life contracts written in 2005 partly
offset by commutation of structured life contracts in 20086.

Twelve months

Premiums and deposits for the Reinsurance business unit were $4,549 million, a decrease of $133 million or 3%
over the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. Sales were $4,234 million, a decrease of $160 million or 4%.
The decrease in premiums and deposits and sales is primarily due to new structured life contracts written in 2005,
partially offset by a large payout annuity reinsurance contract written in 2008, as well as the renegotiation and
commutation of certain reinsurance contracts in 2005 and 2006.

OUTLOOK - REINSURANCE
Refer to Cautionary Note regarding Forward-looking Information and Cautionary Note regarding Non-GAAP
Financial Measures at the beginning of this document.

The U.S. life reinsurance industry is expected to grow modestly as cession rates stabilize. The reserving
requirements imposed by U.S. Regulation XXX have caused a number of life reinsurers to develop cost effective
long-term solutions that, depending on pricing, may offer insurers an alternative to developing an in-house
approach. The Company expects continued growth in this line, building on the complementary strengths of Canada
Life and LRG in innovative product solutions and strong client relationships.

Pricing in the property catastrophe retrocession market is expected to weaken through 2007 (in the absence of
major loss events) due to the influx of new capacity seeking attractive returns. Technical pricing will likely remain
above historic norms given the new reality of increased modeled loss exposures and more rigorous rating agency
stress testing of capital positions.

The regulatory and business environment continues to influence how reinsurance counterparties conduct business.

The Company and subsidiaries are subject to legal actions and arbitrations arising in the normal course of
business. It is not expected that any of these matters will have a material adverse effect on the consolidated
financial position of the Company.

In one of the above-noted matters, the Company is involved in an ongoing arbitration relating to the interpretation of
certain provisions of the reinsurance treaties. In another of the above-noted matters, certain reinsurance client loss
statements relating to other reinsurance treaties are in dispute and may become subject to arbitration or other legal
action in the future. While the Company has obtained retrocession coverage for the treaties, payment of amounts
due under these retrocession treaties is contingent upon collection by the retrocessionaire under a separate
financial arrangement with another party. \We understand that the provisions of this separate financial arrangement
are also in dispute. The Company has established an actuarial liability provision for these two matters. While it is
difficult to predict the outcome of these matters with certainty, based on information presently known, they are not
expected to have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the Company.
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CORPORATE

in the second quarter of 2006, the Company established a Corporate line of business within the Europe reporting
segment. The Corporate account includes financing charges, certain non-continuing items relating to hurricane
provisions and 9/11 claims experience as well as the results for non-core internaticnal businesses.

Net income

In quarter
The fourth quarter 2006 results included financing costs of $4 million partly offset by income from the non-
continuing operations.

The fourth quarter 2005 results reflected a net provision of $33 million relating to expected losses arising from
hurricane activities along the Gulf Coast of the United States and provisions and recoveries on arbitrations. This is
partly mitigated by benefits of $29 million resulting from a reorganization of its reinsurance operations. A block of
life reinsurance business was transferred from Canada Life to a subsidiary of GWL&A in connection with the
establishment of a new long-term letter of credit facility.

Twelve months

The 2006 results include a charge of $32 million incurred by Canada Life in connection with the unfavourable
development related to an arbitration with one of its retrocessionaires in respect of discontinued product arising out
of the event of September 11, 2001 and financing costs of $10 million. This is primarily mitigated by other non-
recurring items which in aggregate increased net income by $21 million.

The 2005 results reflect a net provision of $63 million relating to expected losses arising from hurricane activities
along the Gulf Coast of the United States and provisions and recoveries on arbitrations partly offset by a $19 million
reduction in provisions held for 9/11 claims and benefits of $29 million arising from a reorganization of its
reinsurance operations as noted in quarter.
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LIFECO CORPORATE OPERATING RESULTS

The Lifeco Corporate segment includes operating results for activities of Lifeco that are not associated with the
major business units of the Company.

Consolldated operations

For the three months For the twelve months
ended December 31 ended Dacember 31
2008 2005 2006 2005

Income:

Premium income $ - $ - $ - $ -

Net investment income {9 3 18 ]

Fee and other income - - - -
Total income (9) 3 18 (6)
Banefits and expenses:

Paid or credited to policyholders - - -

Other 1 1 4 4

Restructuring costs - - - 22

Amortization of finite life intangible assets - - - -
Net operating income before income taxes (10} 2 14 (32}
Income taxes - - 29 4
Net income before non-controliing Interests {10) 2 (15) (36)
Non-controlling interests - - . .
Net Income - common shareholders $ {10) $ 2 $ (15) $ (36}

e — ——

in quarter

Corporate net income was a charge of $10 million compared to $2 million of income in 2005, comprised of the
following after-tax charges: $3 million of U.S. withholding tax ($0 million in 2005) incurred by Lifeco in the course of
receiving dividends from U.S. subsidiaries, $1 million of operating expense {$2 million in 2005) incurred at the
Lifeco level, and $6 million of foreign exchange losses on the weakening of the Canadian dollar in quarter.

Twelve months

Corporate net income was a charge of $15 million compared to a charge of $36 million in 2005, comprised of the
following after-tax charges: restructuring costs incurred in 2006 related to the CLFC acquisition of $0 million (317
million in 2005), $14 million of U.S. withholding tax ($14 million in 2005) incurred by Lifeco in the course of
receiving dividends from U.S. subsidiaries, $3 non-recurring capital tax charge on a Lifeco subsidiary, $3 million of
operating expense ($5 million of income in 2005) incurred at the Lifeco level, and $11 million of foreign exchange
gains offset by $6 million of tax charges ($0 million in 2005).

OTHER INFORMATION
Additional information relating to Lifeco, including Lifeco's most recent financial statements, CEQ/CFO certification
and Annual Information Form are available at www.sedar.com.
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